
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
June 22, 2011 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public comments. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the June 8, 2011 Board Meeting. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
b. Finance Committee Minutes 
 

7. Urban Water Management Plan 
 

a. Conduct Public Hearing 
 
b. Resolution Adopting the Urban Water Management Plan 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 

 1
 



 2

8. Public Hearing for the adoption of the 2011-2012 Budget. 
 

a. Public Hearing  
 
b. Resolution adopting the general fund budget, debt service fund and 

Mira Monte water assessment district fund budgets for the Fiscal 
Year ending June 30, 2012. 

  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
9. Resolution establishing the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year ending 
 June 30, 2012. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
10. Resolution fixing a tax rate for Fiscal Year 2011-2012 and authorizing the 
 President of the Board to execute a certificate requesting the Ventura 
 County Board of Supervisors to levy such a tax. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. News Articles. 
b. Investment Report 

 
12. Adjournment  
  

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

June 8, 2011 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 8, 2011 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Kaiser, Baggerly, Word, Hicks, and 
Bergen were present.  Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, Bob Krimmer.  There were one 
staff member and three members of the public in attendance.  President Kaiser 
led the group in the flag salute. 
 

1. Public comments. 
 
 None 
  
2. General Manager comments.   
 
 Mr. Wickstrum reported that a leak was discovered on the Matilija Conduit 
on Monday morning towards the Matilija Dam.  Our employees worked diligently 
through the night to get the water back online.  This brings up discussions 
regarding replacement of the conduit and flushing and maintaining service to the 
resort.  I will discuss that with Norma Camacho to determine if there is a need to 
continue water service or provide some options to lessen the size.  It is a 30 inch 
main in that area with only one or two people living up there. 
 

We have removed a water meter in the watershed area and are looking to 
abandon to a valve towards Santa Ana creek and then in November will eliminate 
the pipeline.  We will be getting rid of the water system in the Teague Memorial 
Watershed and no longer serve that area.  We have discontinued flushing in that 
area. 
 

There has been a change of date for the final presentation to Judge 
Weiss.  It will now be on July 12th.  I am flying in on July 11th and returning on the 
13th.  Director Kaiser asked for the Board’s concurrence to accompany Steve for 
the final arguments.  Director Hicks said it sounded good.  Direction was 
provided to staff. 
  

Director Baggerly asked if there was any news on the Voyce house.  Mr. 
Wickstrum said there was not.  Director Baggerly asked about the Webster 
house.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that no one is living in the house.  Someone is 
living in a fifth wheel and getting water out of the water well.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Bergen reported that she had received an email from a 
constituent on the out of state travel for our Fisheries Biologist.  She agreed that 
with the monitoring program and five year review, this is not something we 
should abruptly change what we are doing but she does have some questions on 
expenditures and felt there might be qualified individuals in the area. There was 



 2

discussion which committee that this should go to and it was determined that it 
could be reviewed at the Personnel Committee.  Director Hicks commented that 
it is an unusual situation.  We have not had an employee with those perks.  In 
many ways it is worth the extra effort, he knows more about the river than 
anyone and Director Hicks does not want to change horses midstream.  Director 
Hicks added it could be reviewed at a later date after the review period and 
added that the Fisheries Biologist has done a good job for us. 
  

Director Baggerly mentioned the Watershed Coordinator for the Ventura 
River opening.  This position is utilizing a three year grant from Prop 84 money 
and it is going to be coordinating all the work that needs to be done for the 
watershed management plan.   
 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the May 25, 2011 Board Meeting. 
 

On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly and 
passed, the Consent Agenda was adopted. 
 
5. Bills 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly and 
passed, the bills were approved. 
 
6. Recommend approval of a letter to Congressman Elton Gallegly in support 

of the proposed Wilderness Designation in Los Padres National Forest of 
the White Ledge Peak Area – Ventura County.   APPROVED 

 
  Mr. Wickstrum explained that this item is regarding the protection of the 

watershed and the environment.  In speaking with Brian Miller from 
Congressman Elton Gallegly’s office, they are interested in our perspective on 
this.  We fought the uranium mining in the past and this may stop that potential 
for mining leases being granted which could have negative impacts to our water 
quality.  
 

Mike Summers, a representative from Las Padres Forest Watch, made a 
presentation regarding the lands to be included and the reason for participation 
and support of the action.   
 

  On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word and 
passed, the above recommendation was approved. 
 
 
7. Discussion regarding any additional changes to the proposed Fiscal Year 

2011-2012 budget. 
 



 3

  Director Word commented that we are balancing the budget by utilization 
of some of our reserves.  Water sales will be less than average.  He added that 
he is uneasy with increased expenses and not having an increase in rates.  This 
is a tight budget.  We have to be mindful of what we are spending and be mindful 
of what we do.  If we have two years like this one you will be looking at cut backs 
someplace. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum added one unknown is the repayment on the Safety of 
Dams which we have been waiting for information on for the past ten years.  
 

  Director Word added staff has done a terrific job in pulling it together and 
making it tight.  Director Bergen added that she reviewed the budget with a fine 
tooth comb.  It is honest and tight.  We have some conditions that could make it 
tighter than we want it to be.  She is comfortable with it.  A mid-year review was 
suggested.  Director Word stated that he doesn’t want to go back into the cycle of 
deferred maintenance. 
 
8. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. News Articles 
c. Investment Report 

 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 

passed, the information items were approved for filing. 
  
 President Kaiser moved the meeting to closed session at 3:31 p.m. with 
Attorney Bob Krimmer notifying the public of the closed session items. 
 
9. Closed Session 
 
 a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision 

(a) of Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Ortiz 
v. Casitas Municipal Water District. 
 

b. (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 
Conference with Labor Negotiators:    
Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira, Draza 
Mrvichin 
Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit 
and Recreation Unit.  

 
President Kaiser moved the meeting back into open session at 4:32 p.m. 

stating no action was taken on either closed session items. 
 
10. Adjournment  
  



 4

 President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 4:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
       _________________________ 
       Secretary 
 

































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  June 7, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of June 7, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Kaiser and Hicks 
 Staff – PSM Carol Belser and APSO Jeff Mosdale, GM Steve Wickstrum  
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

Director Kaiser suggested additional review of reduce rates for motorcycle entrance 
and look into marketing strategies that would encourage local public use of the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area 
 

4. Update on Memorial Day weekend 
PSM Belser informed the committee on the level of attendance and revenues that 
were experienced on Memorial Day 2011.  Attendance was up over 10% from 2010.  
There were only a few minor incidents to report and one eviction for a noise violation.  
The park store was open for business, mostly wood and ice sales. 
 

5. Status of the Park Store and Concessionaire agreement. 
PSM Belser stated to the committee that a request has been received from the Park 
Store operator for District support in obtaining the alcoholic beverage sales license.   
 
The committee briefly discussed the need to review options and conditions for the new 
concessionaire contracts.  The new contracts will be subject to USBR review for 
compliance with USBR directives and standards.  As the new agreement for recreation 
appears to be near conclusion, the District will need to move forward with new 
concession agreements. 
 

6. Discussion regarding the potential of bow carp fishing at LCRA.  
PSM Belser presented a staff memorandum on Bowfishing for Carp.  This is an activity 
under the Department of Fish and Game Code that allows fishing for carp with a bow-
tether-arrow.  This activity is being allowed at Big Bear Lake and Lake Cachuma.  
PSM Belser presented a staff memo that provided several recommendations for 
controls or conditions which would be applied to this activity.   
 
APSO Jeff Mosdale provided samples of the equipment and discussed further the 



benefits to the fishery that the removal of the carp can provide.  He reported observing 
as many as fifty carp in certain areas of the lake.  The carp are invasive species that 
impact other fish populations.  Some carp can grow to as large as fifty pounds. 
 
This activity has been reviewed by Scott Lewis, Casitas’ Fisheries Biologist, and it 
appears that this activity is not likely to significantly reduce the numbers of carp in 
Lake Casitas. 
 
The Committee suggested that staff put together the entire bowfishing program, check 
on insurance issues, and then bring the proposal to the Board of Directors.  October 1 
thru May 1 is the desired period to allow bowfishing at Lake Casitas.  Staff will target 
the September 2011 committee meeting to review the bowfishing package. 
 

7. Update on north boundary fence. 
PSM Belser reported that monitoring of the fence is still being conducted and there are 
recent photos of deer on the lake side of the fence.  The District is awaiting direction 
from the Department of Fish and Game on whether monitoring is needed to continue. 
 

8. Review of Incidents and Comments. 
PSM Belser shared a few of the recent incidents.  Most of the incidents have been 
minor in nature.   No comments have been received. 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  June 17 20, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Finance Committee Meeting of June 17, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

 Director Bergen and Director Word  
 Staff – Steve Wickstrum and Denise Collin 
   
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. None. 

 
4. Review of the Financial Statement for May 2011. 

The Committee reviewed the May 2011 financial statement.  Noting water sales are 
lagging from last year.  Water sales reductions noted in Resale Pumped and Agriculture, 
likely due to wet winter and soft summer months.  Denise Collin explained the 
Miscellaneous Revenue that was collected by the District.  It was noted that the delay in 
performing the Rincon 2(M) Main replacement and work for the Senior Canyon grant has 
provided a positive balance between revenues and expenditures. 
 

5. Review of the Water Consumption Report for April 2011.  
It was recognized that the agricultural and pumped resale classifications are behind last 
year’s pace due to the rainfall and a foggy June climate. The Ojai and Ventura River 
groundwater basin are in full condition, making water available to groundwater purveyors, 
and water pricing may have something to do with declining water purchases by Golden 
State Water Company.   
 

6. Review of Preliminary Draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2011-2012. 
The Committee has reviewed the budget several times and had nothing new to add to the 
budget. 

 
7. Review of Prop 4 appropriations limit for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. 

Denise Collin provided the Committee with the background for the appropriations limits 
and noticed that this item will be on the next Board meeting agenda. 



 

 

 

 

2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: 

Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
Ron Merckling, Water Conservation/Public Affairs Manager 

 
 
 www.casitaswater.org 

1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California 93022 
Phone: (805) 649-2251    Fax: (805) 649-3001



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

2 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
TABLE OF CONTENTS .........................................................................................................................................................2 
LIST OF TABLES.............................................................................................................................................................. 3-6  
LIST OF FIGURES................................................................................................................................................................6 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................................................................................. 7-8 
SECTION 1 PLAN PREPARATION.......................................................................................................................................10 
        COORDINATION................................................................................................................................................... 10-12 
        PLAN ADOPTION AND SUBMITTAL ....................................................................................................................... 11-12   
        OTHER INFORMATION ...............................................................................................................................................12 
SECTION 2 - SYSTEM DESCRIPTION............................................................................................................................ 13-20 
        HISTORY.............................................................................................................................................................. 13-16 
      Service Area Physical Description............................................................................................................................17 
        SERVICE AREA CLIMATE .......................................................................................................................................18-19 
        SERVICE AREA POPULATION .....................................................................................................................................20 
SECTION 3 - SYSTEM DEMANDS................................................................................................................................. 21-37 
         WATER DEMANDS.............................................................................................................................................. 21-31 
         LOW INCOME DEMAND ............................................................................................................................................31 
         BASELINES AND TARGETS ................................................................................................................................. 33-36 
SECTION 4 – SYSTEM SUPPLIES.................................................................................................................................. 37-45 
         WATER SOURCES......................................................................................................................................................38 
         SURFACE WATER ......................................................................................................................................................39 
         GROUNDWATER.................................................................................................................................................. 39-41 
         TRANSFER OPPORTUNITIES ................................................................................................................................ 41-42 
          DESALINATED WATER OPPORTUNITIES ............................................................................................................ 42-43 
          RECYCLED WATER OPPORTUNITIES.................................................................................................................. 44-45 
          FUTURE WATER PROJECTS................................................................................................................................ 45-46 
SECTION 5 – WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING .............................. 46-66 
          WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY............................................................................................................................ 46-49 
          WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY ANALYSIS ................................................................................................. 49-51 
          WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN.......................................................................................................... 52-55 
          WATER QUALITY IMPACTS ON RELIABILITY ...........................................................................................................55 
          DROUGHT PLANNING......................................................................................................................................... 56-57 
          MODIFICATIONS TO THE 2003 RATES AND REGULATIONS FOR WATER SERVICE................................................ 58-61 
          WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY .......................................................................................................................... 62-66 
SECTION 6 – DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES .................................................................................................... 67-77 
 APPENDIX A ADOPTION RESOLUTION ...................................................................................................................... 78-80 
APPENDIX  B URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT .................................................................................. 81-88 
APPENDIX  C  OTHER SOURCES .......................................................................................................................................89 
APPENDIX  D CMWD WATER SUPPLY AND USE STATUS REPORT.......................................................................... 90-175 
APPENDIX  E  RULE CHANGE FOR AGRICULTURAL ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY ................................................176-177 
APPENDIX  F  WATER WASTE ORDINANCE..............................................................................................................178-178 
APPENDIX G  DRAFT WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY RESOLUTION ......................................................................   179 
APPENDIX H  COMMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE ................................................................................................180-186 
RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING.......................................................................................................................187 
60 DAY NOTICE TO COUNTY AND CITIES ...............................................................................................................188-190 
LETTERS NOTIFYING RESALE AGENCIES OF PUBLIC HEARING AND PROVIDING DRAFT UWMP COPY.................191-201 
SAMPLE LETTER SENT TO STAKEHOLDERS REGRADING PLANNING PROCESS FOR UWMP ..............................................202 
ADOPTION RESOLUTION.................................................................................................................................................203 
APPENDIX  I   BMP COVERAGE REPORTS PER CUWCC ..............................................................................................TBD 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

3 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

LIST OF TABLES 

 PAGE 

Table 1           Agencies Notified ..............................................................................................................    9 

Table 2          Coordination With Appropriate Agencies .........................................................................   10 

Table 3          Average Climate Data For 2009 ........................................................................................   18 

Table 4          Average Rainfall ................................................................................................................   19 

Table 5          County Sub-Area Population .............................................................................................   20 

Table 6          Population And Water Demand Projections ......................................................................   20 

Table 7          CMWD Deliveries And Metered Use With Rainfall .........................................................   23 

Table 8          Water Use By Resale Agencies (2008) ..........................................................................................  27 

Table 9          Sales To Other Water Agencies – AF/Y ........................................................................................  27 

Table 10        Past, Current And Projected Water Deliveries – AF/Y...............................................................  30 

Table 11         Low Income Projected Water Demand ..........................................................................................  31 

Table 12         Past, Current And Projected Water Deliveries ..................................................................   30 

Table 13         Sales To Other Agencies – AF/Year .................................................................................   32 

Table 14         Additional Water Uses And Losses – AF/Year.................................................................   33 

Table 15         Average Daily Per Capita Gallons  5 Yr Baseline.............................................................   36 

Table 16         Average Daily Per Capita Gallons 10 Yr Baseline............................................................   36 

Table 17         Current And Planned Water Supplies................................................................................   37 

Table 18          Amount Of Groundwater Pumped....................................................................................   39 

Table 19          Amount Of Water Projected To Be Pumped 2010-14......................................................   39 

Table 20          Amount Of Water Projected To Be Pumped 2015-35 .....................................................   39 

Table 21          Waste Water Generation And Collection .........................................................................   43 

Table 22          Waste Water Treatment ...................................................................................................   43 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

4 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table 23          CMWD Budgetary Revenues And Expenditures Impact.................................................   51 

 Table 24         Water Storage Stages, Triggering Mech. And Red. Goals................................................   57 

Table 25          Theoretical 3 Yr Water Supply Drought Projections .......................................................   60 

Table 26          1988-90 Based 3 Yr Drought Water Supply Projections .................................................   60 

Table 27          Factors Resulting in Inconsistency of Supply .....................................................................   61 

Table 28          30 Yr Historic Rainfall At Casitas Dam...........................................................................   62 

Table 29          Water Use Multiple Dry Year ..........................................................................................   63 

Table 30          Basis Of Water Year Data................................................................................................   63 

Table 31          Projected Average Water Year Supply.............................................................................   64 

Table 32          Projected Average Water Year Demand ..........................................................................   64 

Table 33          Projected Average Year Supply And Demand.................................................................   64 

Table 34          Projected Single Dry Year Supply And Demand Comp ..................................................   64 

Table 35          Projected Supply & Demand During a Multiple Dry Period ...........................................   64 

Table 36          Projected Demand Multiple Dry Year Period Compared with Average Demand 

                       Ending in 2020 .................................................................................................................   65 

Table 37          Projected Supply and Demand for Multiple Dry Year Period Ending In 2015– AF/Y ...   65 

Table 38          Projected Supply & Demand Comparison for Multiple Dry Years Ending In 2020 .......   65 

Table 39          Projected Supply  & Demand Comparison for Multiple Dry Years Ending In 2025.......   66 

Table 40          Projected Demand During Multiple Dry Year Period Ending In 2030 – AF/Y...............   66 

Table 41          Projected Supply & Demand Comparison  

                        During Multiple Dry Year Period Ending In 2035- AF/Y.  .............................................   66 

Table  42         Water Surveys Actual ........................................................................................................ 67 

Table  43         Water Surveys Planned ...................................................................................................... 67 

Table  44        Plumbing Fixtures Actual .................................................................................................    67 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

5 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table  45        Plumbing Fixtures Planned ...............................................................................................    68    

Table  46        Large Landscapes Actual ..................................................................................................    69     

Table  47        Large Landscapes Planned ...............................................................................................    69 

Table  48        Washing Machine Rebates Actual ....................................................................................    70 

Table  49        Washing Machine Rebates Planned ..................................................................................    70 

Table  50        Public Information Actual.................................................................................................    71 

Table  51        Public Information Planned...............................................................................................    72 

Table  52        CII Conservation Program Actual.....................................................................................    73 

Table  53        CII Conservation Program Planned...................................................................................    73 

Table  54        Wholesale Agency Programs ............................................................................................    74 

Table   55       Wholesale Agency Programs ............................................................................................     75 

Table   56       Retailers Water Rate Structure..........................................................................................    75 

Table   57       Wholesalers Water Rate Structure ....................................................................................    75 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

 Page 

Figure 1           CMWD Service Area Map...............................................................................................   16 

Figure 2      Total Water Demand.........................................................................................................   22 

Figure 3      CMWD Water Deliveries And Rainfall ..............................................................................   22 

Figure 4      Census Tract Map Including CMWD Census’ Tracts.........................................................   35 

      Figure 5            Lake Casitas Storage Model Based on the 1944-65 Drought Period ..................................   49     

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

6 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The 2010 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) is prepared by the Casitas Municipal Water 
District (CMWD) and to be submitted to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) in 
accordance with the Urban Water Management Act (Act), all subsequent amendments adopted through 
December 2009, California Water Code, Sections 10610 through 10657, which were added by Statute 
in 1983, Chapter 1009, and became effective on January 1, 1984. The Act was known as Assembly 
Bill (AB) 797 while pending before the Legislature. The Act requires every urban water supplier that 
provides water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 connections or supplying more than 3,000 
acre-feet (ac-ft) of water annually, to adopt and submit a plan every five years to the California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR). Further, the Act specifies that Plans be filed with the DWR at 
least once every five years in years ending in five and zero. In compliance with the Act, CMWD filed 
prior Plans with the DWR in 1985, 1990, 1995, 2000 and 2005.  CMWD’s current 2010 Plan, 
contained in this report, is an update of the 2005 Plan and will be submitted to the DWR after approved 
by the CMWD Board of Directors. The Act has evolved since its passage in 1983. Since 2000, there 
have been substantial changes to the Act, with the most recent occurring in 2009. There are many new 
requirements and provisions in the Act: 
 

• Requirement that the water purveyor of a public water system prepare a water supply assessment 
to be included in the environmental documentation of certain large proposed projects. 

• Requirement for affirmative written verification from the water purveyor of a public water system 
that sufficient water supplies are available for certain large residential subdivisions of property 
prior to approval of a tentative map. 

• Requirement for a description of water management tools in the plan that maximizes resources 
and minimizes imported water supplies. 

• Requirement to notify all cities and counties within service area that a plan or amendment to the 
plan is being prepared. 

• Requirement for additional information if groundwater is identified as an existing or planned 
water source. 

• Requirement to describe specific water supply projects, programs, and implementation schedules 
to meet projected demands over the 20-year planning horizon. 

• Requirement to describe opportunities for development of desalinated water as a long term 
supply. 

• Requirement for data sharing between suppliers and wholesale agencies and a provision allowing 
suppliers to rely on information provided by wholesaler. 

• Provision allowing DWR to take into consideration a water supplier’s implementation plans and 
achievements for water conservation when evaluating application for grants and loans. 

• Requirement to discuss recycled water opportunities. 
• Requirement to describe water quality over a 20-year horizon and the manner in which quality 

affects management strategies and supply reliability. 
• Requirement to notify all cities and counties within the service area of the time and place of the 

public hearing on plan adoption. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

7 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

• Requirement to file the plan or any subsequent plan amendment with all cities and counties within 
service area. 

• Requirements that DWR make a supplier ineligible to receive Prop 204 or Prop 13 funding if 
supplier does not comply with the Act. 

 
The 2010 UWMP plan reports the activities of the CMWD to secure a safe, reliable water supply 

for the district. The structure of the 2010 Plan is based upon the information required by the Urban 
Water Management Planning Act (Act) for the 2010 update, as coordinated by the California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR). This document has been laid out according to DWR’s 
guidance manual to ensure and easily verify that the information presented here meets all of the DWR 
requirements.  

 
SECTION 1 – PLAN PREPARATION 

Coordination 
CMWD has coordinated its UWMP planning efforts with a number of agencies to ensure the 

accuracy of the data and issues presented in this plan. Table 2 lists the agencies that provided 
assistance with the development of this UWMP. Public comment was solicited on the Plan in the form 
of public forums for the general public, taxpayers, water users, local governments, and state agencies.  
 

This plan provides information on present and future water supplies and demands, and provides an 
assessment of CMWD’s water resource needs.  It serves as a long-range planning document for 
CMWD’s water supply. Droughts, limited supplies, environmental demands - all of these factors must 
be taken into consideration to provide a safe and reliable water supply for western Ventura County. 
The intention of the 2010 Plan is to demonstrate CMWD’s water supply reliability over the next 25 
years in 5-year increments.  The plan addresses CMWD’s water system and includes a description of 
water supply sources, magnitudes of historical and projected water use, and a comparison of water 
supply to water demands during normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years. It also describes CMWD’s 
efforts to implement water conservation and water efficient uses for urban and agricultural water 
supplies. The plan is CMWD’s commitment to a long-term plan to ensure water reliability into the 
future. 

City and County Notification and Participation (§ 10621(b))  
The CMWD notified all the agencies listed in Table 1 of planned public meeting dates and times 

during the preparation of the 2010 UWMP that were scheduled as part of the process for updating the 
plan to encourage representatives from those agencies to attend CMWD’s public meetings (Table 2). 
CMWD invited comments from all agencies as well.  An initial letter was mailed on April 1, 2010 to 
all of the agencies listed in Table 1 below.  In accordance with the requirement to provide notice to all 
cities and counties at least 60 days prior to the public hearing, a second letter was mailed to the City of 
Ventura, City of Ojai and County of Ventura on April 5, 2011 which indicated that a copy of a plan 
would be available for review on CMWD’s website and at the CMWD office on June 3, 2011. The 
letter also indicated that the public hearing was scheduled at 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, June 22, 2011 at 
the District Office located at 1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California 93022.   



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

8 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

CMWD encouraged active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the 
population within the service area prior to and during the preparation of the plan. CMWD’s Spring 
2010 newsletter was sent out in June of 2010 to all 30,000 households within the District. It provided 
all of the planning, meeting times and locations for the Urban Water Management Plan.  It was also 
noted in the Ventura County Watershed U – classes in the spring of 2010. And, it was posted to 
CMWD’s website at www.CMWDwater.org. The Winter 2011 newsletter also noted the intention of 
CMWD to hold a public hearing in May or June of 2011 regarding the adoption of the 2010 UWMP. 
The District noticed and advertised the public hearing in accordance with all of the requirements of the 
Urban Water Management Planning Act. 
 
TABLE 1 - AGENCIES NOTIFIED 
Agencies Notified by Letter 
City of Ojai – City Manager and Mayor 
Ventura County Resource Conservation District 
Ventura County Watershed Protection District 
Faria Beach Homeowner’s Association 
Ventura County Supervisors 
Sulphur Mountain Road Water Association 
Rincon Water & Road Works 
Hermitage Mutual Water Company 
Carpinteria Valley Water District 
Ojai Valley Land Conservancy 
Siete Robles Mutual Water Company 
Ventura River County Water District 
Sisar Mutual Water Company 
Rancho Del Cielo Mutual Water Company 
Southern California Water Company 
City of Ventura – Utilities Manager 
Ojai Basin Groundwater Agency 
Tico Mutual Water Company 
Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company 
Meiners Oaks County Water District 
City of Ventura – Public Works Director, City Council, Mayor 
Ojai Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

9 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 
Table 2 - Coordination with Appropriate Agencies  

 

Check at least one box per 
row  

Participated in 
UWMP 
development  

Commented 
on draft  

Attended 
public  
meetings  

Contacted 
for 
assistance  

Received  
copy of draft  

Sent notice 
 of intention 
to adopt  

Not 
Involved / 
No 
Informati
on  

City of Ventura X X  X X X  
County of Ventura     X X X  
City of Ojai     X X  
Ojai Land 
Conservancy 

      X 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

      X 

Golden State Water 
Company 

X   X X X  

Hermitage Mutual 
Water Company 

    X X  

Meiners Oaks County 
Water District 

   X X X  

Rancho Del Cielo 
Mutual Water 
Company 

      X 

Rincon Water & 
Road Works 

    X X  

Senior Canyon 
Mutual Water 
Company 

   X X X  

Sisar Mutual Water 
Company 

    X X  

Sulphur Mountain 
Road Water Assoc. 

      X 

Casitas M.W.C.       X 
Tico Mutual Water 
Company 

    X X  

Ventura River County 
Water District 

X X X X X X  

Ojai Basin 
Groundwater Agency 

   X    

Siete Robles Mutual 
Water Company 

    X X  

Ojai Valley Sanitary 
District 

 X  X X X  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

10 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 

Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation 
It is imperative for CMWD to maximize its water resources, efficiencies, and minimize losses 

because the water comes from 100% local sources. The 2010 UWMP updates the CMWD 
implemented strategies included in the 2005 UWMP. These plans assist CMWD to address local water 
supply management issues. The implementation of these plans includes actively cultivating community 
participation in water management activities that encourage greater water use efficiency within the 
District.   Implementing the water conservation strategies included in the plans will assist the District 
to delay as long as possible the need to import water.  Some of these implementation activities include: 

 
 Announced Urban Water Management Planning schedule and contact information at the 

Watershed U – Ventura River training in April 2010 that was attended by 
approximately 100 participants. 

 Sent out quarterly newsletters that include information on water conservation to all 
residents within the District.   

 Provided water conservation information to all new customers to the District.   
 Participated in local community events to provide information on water conservation.   
 Spoke to local community groups about water conservation.   
 Provided information on website on how to use water more efficiently.   
 Supplied curriculum to elementary schools in the District on water conservation. 
 Provided free residential water audits to residents within the district. 
 Provided free commercial, industrial, and institutional water audits within the district. 
 Provided free water conservation devices to residents, businesses, institutions, industrial 

entities in district. 
 Provided free audits to agricultural customers. 
 Provided rebates to residential and commercial customers for High Efficiency Washing 

Machines; High Efficiency Toilets; Smart Irrigation Controllers; and, high efficiency 
sprinkler nozzles for landscapes. 

 
In 2004, CMWD began participating in the Ventura County Integrated Regional Water 

Management Plan group now called the Ventura County Watershed Coalition.  This effort included 
developing a list of all potential projects among regional water agencies and organizations that could 
benefit from seeking regional cooperation. CMWD submitted an application through the Ventura 
County Watershed Coalition for Proposition 50 regional grant funds and was awarded a grant to 
improve the reliability of Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company’s groundwater resources so they 
would rely less on CMWD’ surface water supply. This project will improve conjunctive use of local 
groundwater and surface water supplies. This proposal was done in conjunction with the Senior 
Canyon Mutual Water Company. CMWD also participated in the development of the county-wide 
landscape water efficiency website ventura.watersavingplants.com. This website promotes native and 
drought tolerant plants on a regional basis and makes it easier for residents to plan water efficient 
landscapes. It offers visitors the ability to maintain a plant database, browse numerous garden plans, 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

11 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

and provides information on a large number of native and drought tolerant plants to include plant 
requirements for sun, soil, and water.  

In accordance with the Act and also to encourage involvement of public and community groups, 
CMWD held a public hearing on June 22, 2011 in CMWD’s board room before adoption by the Board 
of Directors. The plan was than submitted to the California Department of Water Resources within the 
30 day requirement. Proof of this public hearing is provided in Appendix A, which contains a copy of 
the resolution adopting the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan.  

 
Other Information 
      Please direct any questions regarding this plan to Ron Merckling, Water Conservation/Public 
Affairs Manager for CMWD at (805) 649-2251 Extension 118 or rmerckling@CMWDwater.com 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

12 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 2: SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

CMWD lies in Southern California's semi-arid coastal plain. Specifically, the district is located in 
western Ventura County (Figure 1) where there is a history of drought, water supply shortages and 
efforts to develop local water supplies. The area has and continues to be solely dependent upon local 
water supplies. Local rainfall contributes to the Ventura Watershed by replenishing local groundwater 
sources and the Ventura River. CMWD’s population growth and urban water demand have changed 
nominally in recent years and this trend is expected to continue. 

 
Figure 1 – CMWD Municipal Water District Service Area 

 
 
History 
The western portion of Ventura County, California, which includes unincorporated portions of Ventura 
County and the cities of Ojai and San Buenaventura, struggled with water shortage issues in the early 
to mid 1900’s.  At the beginning of the 1900’s western Ventura County began to experience growth in 
agriculture and population. The primary growth areas, the City of Ventura and Ojai Valley, relied on 
either diverting river flows or groundwater pumping to satisfy water demands.  By the 1930’s, the local 
agriculture and cities began to experience drought conditions and question the reliability of their water 
supplies. The first half of the 20th century experienced several drought periods and caused western 
Ventura County to consider various options to increase local water supply reliability. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

13 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

In 1933, the State issued Bulletin No. 46, Ventura County Investigation, in response to the filing of 
applications to appropriate water from the extreme headwaters of Sespe Creek and import Sespe Creek 
water by way of a proposed tunnel to the Ventura River watershed. Bulletin No. 46 identified that the 
agriculture of the Ventura River Basin had grown to 4,535 acres. Bulletin No. 46 considered, with the 
lack of any other data, that the 1892 through 1932 period is assumed to have established a normal or 
long-time average rainfall and run-off, and that all conclusions as to water supply are made on this 
assumption. It was further recognized in Bulletin No. 46 that Ventura County went through two 
successions of wet and dry cycles, each cycle persisting for approximately twenty years that were 
evenly divided between a wet or dry period.   
 
The conclusion of Bulletin No. 46 was that the Ventura River Basin would provide ample supply if the 
city had the ability through its facilities to extract water from the Ventura River.  Likewise in the Ojai 
Valley, groundwater appeared to be more than sufficient to meet demand on the groundwater basin. 
Bulletin No. 46 did recognize that fluctuations in the water table with wet and dry cycles are drastic, 
but when the water table is high there is waste by seepage out of the basin and it was suggested that 
spreading of water for basin recharge may come about as development increases.   
 
The significance of the Bulletin No. 46 conclusion was that there appeared to be plenty of water to 
meet the demands over the course of the study period. Bulletin No. 46 did not address the conditions 
that were experienced during the two ten-year dry cycles; This may have promoted local action to 
consider to appropriate additional water supplies from the Sespe Creek, which is in a different 
watershed and miles away from the Ventura River Basin.  Bulletin No. 46 appears to oversimplify the 
comparison between the average water availability and the average demand for the forty year period, 
nevertheless,  Bulletin No. 46 recommended actions that were developed in the following decade – 
primarily for more local water source (Matilija Dam) for recharging the Ojai groundwater basin during 
drought conditions.   
  
By 1940, the County of Ventura began a series of reconnaissance and water supply evaluation studies 
to consider a variety of dam site alternatives to develop a surface water supply on the Ventura River 
that could buffer the drought and augment groundwater supplies. The drought period of 1944 through 
1951 was first responded to by the Ventura County Flood Control District with a joint flood control 
and water storage-spreading project known as the Matilija Dam Project. The Matilija Dam was erected 
in the Matilija Creek and completed in 1948. By 1950, with little water stored behind the Matilija Dam 
and the continuation of drought conditions, the County of Ventura pursued additional investigations 
through consulting engineers and the State of California, as described in Bulletin No. 12, which 
recommended the development of surface water supplies to augment the local groundwater basins. 
Bulletin No. 12 went one step further in viewing the water needs and water quality issues of the entire 
Ventura County, and by also suggesting water importation from the Colorado River and Feather River 
(which became the County’s interest in the development of the California State Water Project to bring 
Northern California water to Southern California).  Bulletin 12, page 3-59, states:  
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

14 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

“As has been stated, the security of existing developments and economies in Ventura County is 
threatened by water supply shortages which develop during periods of drought, by perennial 
lowering of ground water levels, and by the intrusion of sea water into pumped aquifers.  
Furthermore, the growth and enhancement of the economy of portions of the County have been 
impeded by the lack of firm water supplies.  Elimination of present water resources problems 
and provision for indicated increased future water requirements of the County will require the 
development of additional water supplies.” 

 
In 1952, the formation of the Ventura River Municipal Water District (VRMWD, which later was 
renamed Casitas Municipal Water District CMWD in 1971) was quick to follow with a request of the 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation to make a water requirement and water supply study for western Ventura 
County. The people of the VRMWD had been noting the progress of the Cachuma Project in Santa 
Barbara County and were pleased with the “know how” handling of the Cachuma Project.  By March 
1953, VRMWD and the Bureau of Reclamation entered into a cooperative investigation contract. By 
the fall of 1953, Bureau investigators completed reconnaissance-level studies to determine the 
approximate long-range water requirements, comparison of the merits of available dam sites, and 
determination of the river diversion and storage capacity required to meet the long-term water needs of 
the area (Bennett, 1967).  The feasibility study also considered the recreational benefits that the project 
would have for the area. 
 
The Bureau’s feasibility report recognized the need for water supply development, as stated in the 
following:  

1)  Page 6, “Development of an additional firm water supply is urgently needed in the Ventura 
River Project Area.  Although the overall safe yields of the ground-water basins are 
approximately in balance with the amounts used, maldistribution of the use in relation to the 
supply now exists.  Consequently, additional quantities are needed to serve some areas of 
insufficient ground-water storage capacity.  This situation applies particularly to the developed 
lands lying around the edge of the Ojai Valley where wells went dry during the recent 
drought.”   

2)  Page 7, “The City of Ventura is in critical need of additional water supplies under conditions of 
present development.”    

3)  Page 8, “Ventura County is receiving more than its proportionate share of the present 
population growth of the State.  This is due to its favorable location, agriculture, industrial, and 
commercial activities, and climatic and scenic attractions.  This growth is expected to 
continue.” 

As an appendix to the feasibility report, the Bureau developed operational studies for the Ventura 
River Project.  In the Water Resources Appendix, the Bureau describes the runoff characteristics of the 
Ventura River Basin as follows on Page 16:  “Runoff from stream in the Ventura River Basin is 
derived almost entirely from rainfall, consequently exhibits the same monthly and seasonal variations 
as the rainfall.  Since there is no accumulation of snow in the watershed, all streams diminish fairly 
rapidly in flow at the conclusion of the rainfall season.  Small summer flows are maintained in the 
upper reaches of the larger watersheds by springs (Plate 15).  Following severe storms, discharge in the 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

15 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Ventura River has been known to increase in a few hours from practically no flow to a rate of 
thousands of cubic feet per second.  Seasonal runoff has varied from a maximum in excess of 400 
percent of the mean to a minimum of less than 5 percent of the mean.” 
 
In the Bureau’s determination of the Ventura River Project’s safe yield (USBR 1954b), the Bureau 
summarized its approach to the safe yield as follows:  “In general, for smaller reservoirs the most 
intense drought is critical, while for larger reservoirs the drought with the greatest product of length 
times mean deficiency is critical.  Reconnaissance studies indicated that for CMWD Reservoir at 
250,000 acre-feet the greatest drought of record (length times mean deficiency) is critical.” 
 
The Ventura River Project received the support of many federal agencies and moved with a sense of 
urgency to be authorized by Congress, design, and completion of facility construction by 1959.  The 
key elements of the Ventura River Project are Casitas Dam and Reservoir (Lake Casitas), the Robles 
Diversion and Canal on the Ventura River, and the water distribution system that consist of pipelines, 
pump plants, storage tanks and chlorination stations.  Under a repayment Contract with the USBR, 
CMWD was assigned the responsibilities for the operation and maintenance of the Ventura River 
Project and the perpetual right to use all water that becomes available through the construction and 
operation of the Project, subject to the satisfaction of vested rights. 
 
During the first 30 years of the Ventura River Project, Lake Casitas filled for the first time in 1978 and 
demands for water developed to full safe yield levels by 1990. The Project serves as a primary supply 
for many direct customers and as a supplemental, or backup supply, for groundwater users during 
times of drought. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

16 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Description of the Physical system - Distribution Facilities and Water Treatment 
       CMWD’s water supply comes completely from local water sources. The main source of water 
supply for CMWD is Lake Casitas, which has a full capacity of 254,000 acre-feet of water. The 
reservoir when full covers a surface area of 2,760 acres and has 32 miles of shoreline. It is 200 feet at 
its deepest spot. The source water for Lake Casitas is direct rainfall on the lake surface, local watershed 
runoff from Coyote and Santa Ana Creeks and from diversions from the Ventura River made through 
the Robles Diversion Facility and canal.  The maximum diversion rate at the Robles Diversion Facility 
is 500 cubic feet per second.  
 
     CMWD also maintains and operates one well with an approximately 300 acre-feet per year 
capacity.  The water from the well exceeds the State’s maximum contaminate level for nitrate and is 
blended with lake water to an acceptable level of nitrate before delivery to the CMWD customers. 
 
     CMWD’s service area, while holding 5,000 acre-feet of annual State Water entitlement, is not able 
to receive those annual entitlements due to the lack of any physical connection (pipeline or canal) to 
the State Water Project to bring State Water into the service area.   Due to the cost of the physical 
connection, estimated in 1990 at over $100 million, and cost of State Water, the service area has not 
proceeded with the physical connection to the State Water system. 
 

CMWD’s distribution system includes approximately ninety-seven miles of main and distribution 
pipelines, nine pumping plants, four chlorination stations, and thirty million gallons of treated water 
stored in fourteen steel reservoirs located throughout the District.  CMWD meters all of its direct 
service customers, including meters on all connections to other water agencies. Resale water agencies 
in the district meter their own customers. Balancing reservoirs placed throughout the system at various 
elevations presently regulate water system pressures within CMWD’s distribution system. These 
elevations are determined from the requirements of various zones of service ranging from sea level to 
1,500 feet above sea level. Because of the variations in terrain and microclimates in the CMWD 
service area, the water requirements of individual customers within the various zones vary widely. 
Some areas of the District that have excessive pressures require pressure-reducing stations. The vast 
majority of customers are furnished between 50 to 80 pounds per square inch pressure at their meters. 

 
In 1995, CMWD added to the original facilities a sixty-five million gallon per day pressure 

filtration treatment plant that enables CMWD to meet the regulations set forth in the State of California 
Surface Water Treatment Rules.  The plant continues to meet its original water quality objectives.  
CMWD further treats filtered water with a chloramination process and additives for corrosion control, 
as directed by the State Department of Health Services. 

 
 
 
 

 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

17 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Service Area Climate: 
The climate in CMWD’ district boundaries is Mediterranean, which is characterized by cool, wet 

winters and warm, dry summers. However, climate does vary significantly based on distance from the 
Pacific Ocean, elevation, area drainage and slope aspect. The closest comparable standard monthly 
Average Evapotranspiration (ETo) available for 2009 comes from the CIMIS station located in Santa 
Paula Table 3. Precipitation, as reported by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
(NOAA), a federal agency, weather station located at Ojai, averages 21.7” annually. Average 
precipitation at the NOAA Ventura station near the coast is 14.5.”  Annual historical rainfall is 23.49” 
as reported by the Lake Casitas Recreation Area Weather Station from 1958 to 2009, shown in Table 
4. Nearly eighty percent (80%) of annual rainfall occurs from December to March.  Winter low 
temperatures can fall below freezing in inland areas and hit above 100 degrees Fahrenheit in the 
summer, driving higher water demand from customers. Temperatures along the coast are moderated by 
the ocean and seldom reach the inland extremes. Coastal marine fog occurs throughout the year but 
usually is present from May until July, generally burning off in the inland areas, but may persist all day 
on the coast. Hot, dry easterly winds (Santa Anas) typically occur in the fall, which increases 
evapotranspiration (ET) and increases agricultural and landscape water use. 
 
Table 3 - AVERAGE CLIMATE DATA FOR 2009 
Month Avg. Max. Temp.  F Avg. Min. Temp. F Total Precipitation (Inches per month) ETo (Inches per month) 
January 73.6 46.4 0.61 3.81 
February 67.5 42.2 3.19 2.60 
March 69.4 42.9 0.54 4.27 
April 72.0 42.9 0.18 4.80 
May 74.3 50.5 0.00 5.57 
June 74.1 54.0 0.10 5.18 
July 79.4 54.7 0.00 6.71 
August 80.9 55.2 0.00 5.62 
September 83.3 55.6 0.01 4.97 
October 78.0 49.7 2.64 4.04 
November 75.6 42.9 0.01 3.21 
December 66.4 40.7 3.50 2.17 
Annual 75.54 48.14 .90 4.41 
ETo Data based on: http://wwwcimis.water.ca.gov/cimis/sampMonthlyReport.do?src=samp 
Info – This information is from nearest CIMIS station (Santa Paula, CA). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

18 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE 4 - AVERAGE RAINFALL *RAINFALL IN INCHES, WATER YEAR OCTOBER 1 THRU SEPTEMBER 30 
WATER YEAR CMWD DAM CMWD RCREATION MATILIJA DAM YEARLY MEAN 

1958-59 10.22 11.84 16.62 12.89 
59-60 15.79 14.70 14.45 14.98 

1960-61 8.77 8.42 13.24 10.14 
61-62 37.75 33.96 39.21 36.97 
62-63 18.70 17.54 20.07 18.77 
63-64 13.62 12.04 16.13 13.93 
64-65 23.26 22.77 22.83 22.95 
65-66 25.23 25.23 30.30 26.92 
66-67 34.43 32.30 44.78 37.17 
67-68 16.61 16.44 15.20 16.08 
68-69 46.57 47.55 69.94 54.69 
69-70 16.70 16.52 18.98 17.40 

1970-71 19.72 19.71 22.65 20.69 
71-72 11.94 13.72 15.49 13.72 
72-73 34.79 34.56 45.91 38.42 
73-74 19.95 18.43 22.16 20.18 
74-75 23.83 24.05 26.83 24.90 
75-76 17.90 17.23 20.85 18.66 
76-77 12.90 11.98 13.75 12.88 
77-78 49.05 49.66 63.04 53.92 
78-79 25.80 25.64 28.66 26.70 
79-80 34.06 35.15 42.43 37.21 

1980-81 16.24 16.99 21.88 18.37 
81-82 19.35 20.34 25.35 21.68 
82-83 51.14 48.22 58.65 52.67 
83-84 17.91 16.63 19.34 17.96 
84-85 17.30 15.93 19.00 17.41 
85-86 33.49 32.20 41.32 35.67 
86-87 10.86 9.83 11.44 10.71 
87-88 18.62 18.40 21.58 19.53 
88-89 11.73 11.85 13.65 12.41 
89-90 9.46 8.86 12.48 10.27 

1990-91 24.43 23.59 26.01 24.68 
91-92 29.75 28.53 34.27 30.85 
92-93 41.20 43.31 60.38 48.30 
93-94 16.08 14.69 16.27 15.68 
94-95 49.84 49.04 58.17 52.35 
95-96 18.8 16.91 22.78 19.50 
96-97 24.37 25.27 27.8 25.81 
97-98 59.54 58.78 64.27 60.86 
98-99 12.68 10.67 12.56 11.97 
99-00 24.35 21.94 26.79 24.36 

2000-01 29.36 27.86 33.45 30.22 
01-02 9.28 8.77 10.10 9.38 
02-03 24.83 23.69 30.58 26.37 
03-04 17.03 14.33 18.84 16.73 
04-05 54.66 51.28 74.44 60.13 
05-06 26.52 25.84 34.58 28.98 
06-07 8.60 7.15 9.23 8.33 
07-08 26.19 24.58 33.62 28.13 
08-09 14.82 12.91 16.56 14.76 

AVERAGE 24.24 23.49 29.00 25.57 
MAXIMUM 59.54 58.78 74.44 60.86 
MINIMUM 8.60 7.15 9.23 8.33 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

19 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Service Area Population 
Population growth in the district paralleled population growth in Southern California up until 1960.  

The District’s population in 1960 was 45,000.  The population forecast for the District’s service area 
reflects a very low growth period through the year 2035. CMWD serves directly and indirectly a 
population of 68,557.  There is a large population within the District’s boundaries that are served by 
other water agencies from groundwater sources. CMWD’s largest customer, the City of Ventura, is 
projected to have a 0.96% population increase and the Ojai area is projected to have a 0.43% increase 
during each of the next five years according to data from the Ventura County Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) shown in Tables 5 and 6. This average indicates a population growth of about 
0.70%, which is higher than the 0.04% rate indicated by the US Census data from 2000 to 2009 for the 
district’s census tracts. CMWD is the backup water supply for nine water purveyors within the District 
and for some individual agricultural customers with groundwater wells. CMWD has over 3,000 
customers in total with 2,715 direct urban customers and almost 300 agricultural customers. 
 

The population five year growth increments within CMWD boundaries are depicted in Table 6. 
They show population increases from 63,934 in the year 2000 to 82,914 in 2035. The growth rate for 
the incremental years is predicted to be about six percent each decade. These population increases are 
dependent on both local groundwater and on CMWD’s surface water supply. The potential growth 
areas are within the cities of Ventura and Ojai, which are not directly served by CMWD. 
 
TABLE 5 - COUNTY SUB-AREA POPULATION (NOT CMWD SERVICE AREA)* 

Sub Area 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Ojai Area 32,901 33,866 34,190 34,925 35,676 36,294** 

Ventura Area 119,652 125,454 130,696 136,969 142,491 148,210** 
*Projected from data at http://www.ventura.lafco.ca.gov/pdf/MSR/CSA3414MSRFinal.pdf. 
**Assumed 2020-2025 projection rate for 2025-2035 projection rate. 
***Assumes projection rate for 2010-2025 continues for 2025-2035 period. 
 
TABLE 6 – POPULATION AND WATER DEMAND PROJECTIONS AFY* 
Year Population1 Urban Water 

Demand 

Agricultural Demand Unaccounted Water Total Demand 

2000 63,934 10,274 9,115 3,671 23,060 
2010 68,557 9,603.4 6,398 447 16,398 
2020 73,137 7,7482 7,9223 1,6844 17,3545 
2030 78,312 7,7482 7,9223 1,6844 17,3545 
2035 82,914 7,7482 7,9223 1,6844 17,3545 
*Acre-feet per year.  

1Based on Countywide population forecast adopted by Ventura Council of Governments on May 24, 2001. 
2Average Urban Water Demand from 1999-2009, strongly dependent upon weather, population growth unlikely to effect because of low 
growth projects. 
3Average agricultural demand from 1999-2009, average not expected to change excepting influence of weather trends. 
4Average unaccounted for water demand from 1999-2009. This figure is expected to decrease due to implementation of water loss program. 
5Average water demand from 1999-2009.  Water demand is expected to increase during drought and decrease during wet conditions so a more 
accurate number to use would be the safe yield number. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

20 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 3 – SYSTEM DEMANDS 

Water Demand 
Water consumption within the CMWD service area has remained relatively constant in recent years 

with minimal population growth, no new water demands, and water demand variations notably related 
to local annual rainfall conditions.  

 
The historical record of annual water deliveries from Lake Casitas is illustrated in Figure 2. The 

graph shows a large increase in water demand during drought conditions, especially during the several 
years of drought conditions that occurred from 1988 to1991. By the early 1990’s, the number of new 
accounts added annually diminished considerably as the area became nearly built out. Overall average 
water demand has remained relatively steady since the late 1990’s except for the rise in dry year water 
demand, Figure 3 illustrates how large rainfall years are associated with low water demand and low 
rainfall years are associated with increases in district water demand. Resale and agricultural customer 
groups have a much stronger influence on CMWD water demands during low rainfall periods, as 
compared to the CMWD residential customers that show very little response to weather conditions. 
Agricultural and residential customers have a higher rate of increase in water demand versus 
residential customers during low annual rainfall years because their primary groundwater sources 
become depleted quickly and they then must rely on CMWD’s surface water supplies.  CMWD’s water 
demand has historically increased during drought conditions due to the nature of CMWD being a 
backup water supply to local groundwater resources that quickly diminish during drought conditions. 
CMWD’s Lake Casitas reservoir is managed as a long term water supply with a 21 year safe yield of 
20,840 acre-feet based on the historical 1944-1965 drought cycle under certain conditions as 
highlighted in the “Water Supply and Use Status Report”, December 2004. 

 
Water demand includes water delivered to the various CMWD customer classifications, minor 

losses in the distribution system due to leaks, and flushing of the system for water quality maintenance. 
CMWD water demand can vary dramatically from year to year. Water demand can range from 16,135 
acre-feet in 1993 to a maximum of 26,253 acre-feet in 1989 at the height of a drought, see Figures 2 
and 3. Water demand is closely tied to rain conditions as shown in Figure 3. During wet years, there is 
a major reduction in water demand compared to dry years. During dry years, demand can increase 
dramatically when local groundwater sources utilized by agriculture and other customers are no longer 
available. Customers increase their reliance on CMWD’s surface water during these dry years Table 7 
illustrates water demand from 1975 to 2009 in acre-feet per year.   
 

 

 

 

 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

21 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

                                Figure 2 - Total Water Demand 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

19
60

19
63

19
66

19
69

19
72

19
75

19
78

19
81

19
84

19
87

19
90

19
93

19
96

19
99

20
02

20
05

20
08

Year

A
c

re
-f

e
e

t

Total Acre-Feet
 

Figure 3 - CMWD Water Deliveries to System and Rainfall 

                  

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010

Water Year

W
a
te

r 
D
e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 (
a
c
re

-f
e
e
t)

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

R
a
in

fa
ll 
(i
n
c
h
e
s
)

Deliveries - AF

Rainfall- in

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

22 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table 7 - CMWD DELIVERIES AND METERED USE WITH RAINFALL – WATER YEAR 

             

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11 (12 

           Total System 

Water Rainfall Deliveries to ----------------------------Metered Water Use (AF)------------------------------  Metered Losses 

Year 
On 

Lake 
Main 

Conveyence        
Water 
Use 

(3) - 
(11) 

 Surface System Agriculture Residential Business Resale Resale Other Industry 
in 

System  

 (AF) Water Year    Pumped Gravity   
Water 
Year  

   (AF)        (AF)  

1975 5,019  16,156          

1976 3,782  18,725 5,681  776  454  783  8,381  904 265 17,244 1,481 

1977 3,352  16,779 6,283  677  416  736  8,105  671 208 17,096 -317 

1978 9,879  15,080 5,037  729  420  745  7,094  382 254 14,661 419 

1979 5,395  12,499 5,205  759  443  779  5,098  500 221 13,005 -506 

1980 7,393  14,651 5,628  796  436  944  6,882  519 229 15,434 -783 

1981 4,002  20,012 6,678  927  396  1,311  8,997  677 198 19,184 828 

1982 5,645  16,702 5,693  828  417  1,070  7,269  675 154 16,106 596 

1983 11,699  16,026 4,094  884  378  607  7,976  547 178 14,664 1,362 

1984 2,924  21,832 8,650  1,209  611  985  9,742  852 232 22,281 -449 

1985 2,637  20,274 8,200  1,183  746  920  8,443  352 207 20,051 223 

1986 5,589  16,606 6,873  1,199  538  556  6,343  379 170 16,058 548 

1987 3,142  22,339 9,732  1,372  650  826  9,107  476 196 22,359 -20 

1988 3,715  21,032 8,489  1,416  620  685  8,496  458 162 20,326 706 

1989 1,399  24,416 10,449  1,530  688  849  9,510  401 162 23,589 827 

1990 1,447  22,454 9,830  1,353  678  1,632  6,672  448 130 20,743 1,711 

1991 4,496  17,723 8,118  1,237  644  2,149  3,411  583 113 16,255 1,468 

1992 5,620  13,189 6,698  1,272  507  1,461  1,370  307 72 11,687 1,502 

1993 7,849  11,694 5,814  1,213  515  1,029  1,708  316 108 10,703 991 

1994 3,458  15,555 7,421  1,369  566  1,361  2,968  361 126 14,172 1,383 

1995 10,895  12,107 5,897  1,322  526  1,108  1,813  674 127 11,467 640 

1996 6,897  16,135 6,799  1,506  588  1,651  2,502  549 120 13,715 2,420 

1997 4,304  18,996 7,345  1,636  917  2,091  5,251  460 122 17,822 1,174 

1998 12,632  14,372 5,230  1,433  550  1,177  5,708  313 122 14,533 -161 

1999 2,552  17,942 7,291  1,719  616  759  6,229  405 92 17,111 831 

2000 4,784  23,060 9,115  1,826  638  751  6,435  533 91 19,389 3,671 

2001 5,879  18,743 7,518  1,619  620  373  6,299  647 51 17,127 1,616 

2002 1,924  21,066 9,003  1,738  725  712  6,628  467 111 19,385 1,681 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

23 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

2003 4,726  16,476  7,483  1,550  617  399  4,891  357 60 15,356 1,120 

2004 2,890  20,088  8,902  1,702  623  594  5,432  431 176 17,859 2,229 

2005 10,282  16,953  6,357  1,504  617  623  6,819  387 170 16,478 475 

2006 5,765  17,331  6,484  1,415  674  444  6,053  376 124 15,569 1,762 

2007 1,686  21,014  9,358  1,732  756  591  6,730  456 49 19,672 1,343 

2008 5,159  19,137  8,416  1,785   672  679  
       
5,375  

        
440  60  

       
17,427  

     
1,710  

2009 3,646  17,610  7,211  1,549  650  524  
       
5,137  

        
407  46  

       
15,523  

     
2,087  

 
In 1989, CMWD’s supply and demand studies indicated water demand was approaching the safe 

annual yield and any significant increase above existing levels could ultimately lead to demand out-
stripping supplies. A continued water supply deficit could lead to future supply shortages during long-
term drought conditions. In 1992, CMWD’ Water Efficiency and Allocation Program was adopted by 
the District’s Board of Directors to encourage efficient use of water to reduce overall water demand 
and to ensure the safe annual yield of supply would not exceed the critical 21,920 acre-feet per year 
average (as it was determined at that time). Average demand is not anticipated to increase above the 
current safe yield of 20,840 that is derived from the “Water Supply and Use Status Report” completed 
in December of 2004. Steps are now being taken by the District to limit future demand including 
changes in the District’s allocation program.  The Ojai City Council adopted a growth management 
plan that restricted housing and population growth to less than 1 percent annually through 2010. 
Census data reported in 2011 indicated that the City of Ojai had a 5% decrease in population.  
 
Regression Analysis: 
Future water demand projections for each classification can be approximated by using regression 
analysis. Regression analysis is a statistical term where one or more variables are measured to predict a 
pattern for how those variables will likely react or occur in the future. In other words, past data allows 
for a basic predictive model for future data. A cautionary note of reference, utilized by financial 
analyst, “past performance does not guarantee future results.” The word ‘regression’ literally means ‘a 
move backwards,’ but in statistics it can be viewed to mean ‘a move forward. Linear regression allows 
the use of data on past customer water usage to create a graph line that can show a trend toward future 
water usage for a customer. A line formula is developed using regression analysis to plot a trend line 
for future water usage, where y = x + 1, where y = water usage, x = year, 1 = where the line intercepts 
graph lines, and the number before the x = the slope of the line. This line is created using past annual 
water usage for each customer group. The line can help predict future water usage trends, all other 
variables being equal, for customers. One potential variable that could influence this analysis could be 
the impact of long-term climate change. It is still not clear what that impact will be at this time. 
 

Some CMWD’s customer classifications have particular circumstances that have influenced 
past usage that may make this analysis less reliable as a predictor for future water usage. For example, 
the agricultural and residential customer base was in a development period from 1960 through 1990. In 
1990, the District began to limit expansion of water service and impose water allocation purchase for 
any future expansion of water use. This water use trend of the development period is not representative 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

24 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

of the growth trend of the past ten years and is not likely to be similar to the growth trend of the next 
ten years. For this reason, the demand projections are partially based on trends of each classification 
for the 2000 through 2009 period.  Other factors such as County of Ventura and Cities’ growth 
projections will also be considered in the future water demand projections. 
 
The following explanation on the predicted future water usage for each customer group explains the 
result of the regression analysis performed.  It then explains what other possible variables could 
influence these results. This analysis provides some reliable guidance methodology that can be used to 
help determine the most likely changes in future water usage among all customers.      
 
Customer Classification: 

Residential Classification – Residential customers are typically single-family residences.  The 
residential classification also includes a limited amount of multi-residential accounts. CMWD is 
providing additional residential water allocations only if additional water supply is identified. CMWD 
is also implementing water conservation best management practices that are likely to reduce water 
usage as well. Linear regression analysis (y = -12.47x + 1723.8, where 1999 = 1, x = year, y = usage) 
indicates a trend of slight decreasing water usage. Limited growth in new housing due to economic and 
land planning factors are also likely contributing factors to this decrease. The number of new 
customers over the last five years averaged five per year, most being residential customers and some 
agricultural-residential customers. 
 

Agricultural Classification – The Bureau of Reclamation has classified approximately 12,500 
acres of land as irrigable lands within CMWD district boundaries.  CMWD provides water service to 
approximately 5,700 acres irrigated lands.  Some agricultural lands are served by well water or receive 
water from other water agencies.  Based on CMWD’s 2009 crop report data, CMWD provides water 
directly to 3,445 acres and supplements groundwater use on approximately 2,168 acres of irrigated 
crop lands.  The total irrigated lands which are receiving CMWD water is 5,613 acres which is 
primarily avocado and citrus orchards, and a limited amount of flowers, strawberries, apples and 
walnuts.  Agricultural water demand will fluctuate depending on weather conditions, but generally 
demands an annual average of two and a half acre-feet per acre for inland areas and two acre-feet per 
acre on the coast.  The portion of CMWD’s safe annual yield allocated to agricultural is 8,880 acre-feet 
or 44 percent of the safe annual yield. Agricultural is not expected to increase over the next twenty 
years.  Agricultural expansion requires approval and purchase of additional allocation, which is cost 
prohibitive for most agricultural interests. CMWD has not had any new agricultural allocations 
purchased in the last several years. CMWD is implementing the Significant Watering Efficiency 
Assistance Program (SWEAP) to assist agricultural customers in improving irrigation efficiencies. 
Linear regression analysis (y = -34.886x + 8131, where 1999 = 1, x = year, y = usage) indicates a 
slight decrease in water demand.   
 

Business Classification – Businesses directly served by the District range from small restaurants, 
gas stations, beauty shops and small strip malls to two local golf courses. CMWD is implementing 
water conservation best management practices that are likely to reduce some water usage. CMWD 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

25 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

does not anticipate any growth in this area even though linear regression analysis (y = 5.5564x + 
621.86, where 1999 = 1, x = year, y = usage) shows a slight trend toward increasing usage. 

 
Industrial Classification – A limited number of industrial customers are served directly by the 

District.  Industrial services are primarily oil field and gas production facilities. High-pressure water 
injection for oil recovery is the primary use of the industrial demand. The changes in the economics of 
the oil industry may result in greater oil pumping, which could result in greater water usage in this 
sector.  Recently, a large oil producer converted a part of its CMWD water demand to an alternative 
groundwater source and lessened the demand for CMWD water.  The linear regression trend line (y = -
2.0355x + 105.86 where 1999 = 1, x = year, y = usage) indicates a slight decreasing usage.   
 

Interdepartmental Classification – This classification is for the District’s own services, which 
includes the Lake Casitas Recreation Area, Dam tender’s house, and CMWD’s office. This usage 
represents a small portion of CMWD’s overall usage. 
 

Institutional/government Classification– This classification includes government and non-profit 
organizations.  The linear regression trend line (y = -9.9018x + 505.37 where 1999 = 1, x=year, 
y=usage) indicates a slight decrease in usage in the future. Water demand in this category is not 
expected to change much since the number of customers is unlikely to change.   
 

Multi-family and Landscape Classification – CMWD does not currently separate customer 
accounts with these categories.     

 
Resale Classification - Within CMWD’s boundaries there are nine other public and private water 

agencies known as resale customers (Table 9).  The majority of the resale agencies are primarily 
dependant upon available local groundwater as their main source of water supply. They rely on 
CMWD as a supplemental and drought contingency water supply.   
 
During dry years, resale water demand for CMWD water supply can increase dramatically when local 
groundwater sources that are utilized by resale agencies become diminished or no longer available.  
Resale customers then rely more on CMWD’s surface water, and in some cases rely exclusively on 
water deliveries from Lake Casitas until groundwater supplies are replenished by rainfall events.  
Depending on the severity and duration of the drought period, it could be anticipated that any one or 
more resale agency will have limited groundwater supply and may rely on CMWD for the balance of 
essential water supply needs of each agency. 
 
Given the nature of the resale service and water use trends, the use of a regression analysis is not a 
good tool to make projections of future water demands. CMWD has contacted each of the agencies to 
gather information on future projections of water use.  Except for the City of Ventura, the resale 
agencies are subject to the low growth projections that are same as that for CMWD. Therefore, for the 
purpose of projecting future resale water demands placed on CMWD, the Plan will reflect the 
information gathered from each water agency and project from a normal, non-drought, water use year.  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

26 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

The year of 2008 has been selected to represent the normal base year and the agency information is 
provided in Table 8. 
 
   Table 8 - Water Use by Resale Agencies (2008) 

Agency Name Public/ 
Private 

Groundwater 
(AF) 

CMWD 
Water 
(AF) 

Total 
Agency 
Usage 
(AF) 

Population 
in District 

No. of 
Connections  
in District 

City of Ventura* 
 

Public N/A** 5,083 5,083 30,000 9,138 

Golden State W.C. 
 

Private 1,749 439 2,188 8,202 2,775 

Ventura River C.W.D. 
 

Public 1,133 222 1,355 6,850 2,150 

Meiners Oaks W.D. 
 

Public 1,113 2 1,114 4,200 1,286 

Senior Canyon M.W.C. 
 

Private 305 289 595 800 257 

Tico M.W.C. 
 

Private 13 5 18 77 38 

Sisar M.W.C. 
 

Private 11 1 12 325 105 

Hermitage M.W.C. 
 

Private 15 477 492 35 22 

Siete Robles M.W.C. Private 42 0 
 

42 245 98 

   *Water usage from CMWD is based on in-district usage.   
 **In 2008 the City of Ventura did not have groundwater production due to storm damage to water wells. 
 
   Table 9 - Sales to Other Water Agencies 

Agency Name 2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
City of Ventura 7,867 5,500 6000 6,100 6,200 6,500 7,000 
Golden State W.C. 403.63 122.93 125 125 125 125 125 
Ventura River C.W.D. 254 190 190 190 190 190 190 
Meiners Oaks C.W.D. 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Senior Canyon M.W.C) 406 217 200 200 200 200 200 
Tico M.W.C. 7 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Sisar M.W.C. 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Hermitage M.W.C. 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Siete Robles M.W.C. .04 .01 .01 .01 .01 .01 .01 
Total 8,953 6,042 6527 6,627 6,727 7,027 7,527 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

27 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

The following is a description of the various agencies that are Resale classification customers of the 
CMWD. 
 

1. City of Ventura – The City service area is partially within the CMWD boundary and partially 
outside of the CMWD boundary.  This Plan only considers the part of the City service area that 
is within the CMWD boundary.  The City has a portfolio of water resources that includes water 
well extractions in the Ventura River near Foster Park, rights to reclaim water from the Ojai 
Valley Sanitary District treatment Plant, several connections to a CMWD pipeline, and 
groundwater sources from the east end of Ventura.  The City and CMWD have a 1995 water 
service agreement to secure a minimum of 6,000 acre-feet annual purchase of water from 
Casitas to the City.  In recent years, the City has lost two large water customers and has seen 
reductions in water purchases from oil production.  The City completed its Water Master Plan 
in March 2011 and 2010 Urban Water Management Plan in June 2011.  In preparation of these 
plans, the City has indicated that there is a potential for specific projects and land use changes 
that will cause water use to increase from 5,083 acre-feet in 2008 to potentially over 7,000 
acre-feet in the next 25 years. 

 
2. Golden State Water Company – Service area is approximately the limits of the City of Ojai.  

GSWC relies on groundwater extractions from the Ojai groundwater basin and supplements the 
groundwater supply with additional water from CMWD service connections. Groundwater is 
the preferred and least expensive of the two water sources. GSWC has the highest water rates 
of any agency in the CMWD boundary, which has led to limited use by its customers.  
According to the United States census, the City of Ojai has seen a 5% reduction in population 
in the last ten years, which should influence future water demand. 

 
3. Ventura River Water County Water – Service to a limited boundary area which is not 

expected to have any appreciable growth in water demands over the next thirty years.  VRCWD 
relies primarily on two wells in the Ventura River and only relies on CMWD when 
groundwater sources become depleted. VRCWD is proactive with its customers in requesting 
timely water use reductions to lessen the demand for CMWD water.  Future demand increases 
on CMWD’ water supply would be dependent upon increased drought frequency. 

 
4. Meiners Oaks Water District – Service to a limited boundary area which is not expected to 

have any appreciable growth in water demands over the next thirty years.  MOWD relies 
primarily on two wells in the Ventura River and has only relied on CMWD during infrequent 
system emergencies (i.e., 1985 Wheeler Fire).  Future demand increases on CMWD’ water 
supply would be dependent upon increased severe drought frequency. 

 
5. Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company – Service to a limited boundary located in the east 

end of the Ojai Valley.  The SCMWC customer base is a mix of residential, large residential 
and agricultural land use.  The primary source of water supply are three wells in the Ojai 
ground water basin and diversions from a tunnel and creek source. SCMWC uses CMWD as a 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

28 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

secondary source of water to buffer peak demands and as a drought contingency supply. The 
SCMWC water demands have remained fairly consistent from year to year, and can be 
expected to remain consistent in the future without any other foreseen changes to land use. 
System improvements could decrease reliance on CMWD’s water supply.     

 
6. Tico Mutual Water Company – Service area is a limited boundary area in Mira Monte. The 

TMWC customer base is small residential with no prospects of water use expansion. The 
TMWC water source is one small water well in the Mira Monte area and one 2-inch service 
connection to CMWD as a backup supply. Water use in TMWC has remained consistent over 
the past ten years and is expected to remain so in the future. 

 
7. Sisar Mutual Water Company – Service to a limited boundary that is partially in the CMWD 

boundary, located in the northeast area of the Upper Ojai Valley.  SMWC has been self-reliant 
on its water wells and on a one 4-inch connection to CMWD as an emergency water source. 
Water use in SMWC has remained consistent over the past ten years and is expected to remain 
relatively constant in the future. They have no further ability to grow. 

 
8. Hermitage Mutual Water Company – Service to a limited boundary in the foothills north of 

the Ojai Valley.  The HMWC customer base is primarily agriculture with several large 
residential estates.  The primary source of water is from wells in the Ojai groundwater basin 
and a 6-inch supplemental connection to CMWD.  Water use is driven by agricultural water 
demands, attributed to local annual rainfall conditions and conditions in the Ojai groundwater 
basin.  The HMWC water demands have remained fairly consistent from year to year, and can 
be expected to remain consistent in the future without any other foreseen changes to land use.  

 
9. Siete Robles Mutual Water Company – Service is to a limited housing tract that is located 

southeast of the City of Ojai.  The source of water for SRMWC is a well in the Ojai 
groundwater basin, and one service connection to CMWD.  SRMWC has been self-reliant on 
its well water except during high nitrate events or emergency well repair periods. The 
residential housing tract is fully developed with no expectation for additional water use.  

 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

29 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE 10 - PAST, CURRENT AND PROJECTED WATER DELIVERIES INCLUDED 
URBAN AND AGRICULTURE 

 
      The District is not anticipating any significant changes in population growth within its service area 
boundaries within the next twenty five years.  The low population growth is likely to limit overall 
customer water demand in the future because most of this growth is likely to occur in resale agencies 
service area, which will allow other agencies groundwater sources to supplement the increased 
demand. Resale agencies seeking additional water supplies from CMWD will need to negotiate 
additional water allocations from CMWD or find other water supplies including water conservation 
and additional groundwater sources. 
 
 
 

Year  
   

Water Use 
Sectors  

Single 
family  

Multi- 
family 

Commercial Industrial 
Instit/ 

gov  
Land- 
scape  

Ag  
 

Resale Total  

# of accounts  2,594 0 97 10 91 0 260 9 3,061 
Metered  

Deliveries AF/Y  1,826 0 638 91 533 0 9,115 7,186 19,389
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2000  

Unmetered  
Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of accounts  2,682 0 107 12 97 0 260 9 3,167 

Metered  
Deliveries AF/Y  1,877 0 725 170 399 0 8,370 7,442 20,494
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2005  
Unmetered  

Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of accounts  2,718 0 116 12 105 0 260 9 3,220 Metered  
Deliveries AF/Y  2,076 0 775 197 364 0 8,755 6,458 18,209
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2010  
Unmetered  

Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of accounts  2,772 0 125 12 113 0 260 9 3,291 

Metered  
Deliveries AF/Y  2,275 0 824 254 328 0 9,139 6,301 19,347
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2015  
Unmetered  

Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of accounts  2,827 0 135 13 121 0 260 9 3,365 

Metered  
Deliveries AF/Y  2,473 0 874 311 293 0 9,524 5,937 20,102
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2020  
Unmetered  

Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of accounts  2,883 0 144 13 129 0 260 9 3,438 Metered  
Deliveries AF/Y  2,672 0 923 368 257 0 9,908 5,573 20,855
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2025  
Unmetered  

Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of accounts  2,940 0 153 13 137 0 260 9 3,512 

Metered  
Deliveries AF/Y 2,870 0 972 425 222 0 10,293 5,209 21,809
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2030  
Unmetered  

Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of accounts  2,999 0 163 13 145 0 260 9 3,589 Metered 
Deliveries AF/Y  3,027 0 972 482 185 0 10,355 4,845 21,247
# of accounts  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2035 
Unmetered 

Deliveries AF/Y  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

30 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Projected Lower Income Housing Demand 
     Ventura County’s General Plan includes background information and data in Chapter 3 of the 
Land Use Appendix on low income housing in unincorporated areas of the county, which includes the 
CMWD service area. Section 3.3.6 identifies water supply constraints regarding CMWD. Section 3.3.7 
contains the "Land Inventory" that discusses where different income level housing could be located.  
Beginning on page 107 there is a discussion concerning where, and the types of, lower-
income housing that can be built in the unincorporated area.  The figure 3.3.7-10 in Section 3.3.7 
regarding the Land Inventory generally depicts where there are vacant properties that could 
accommodate lower and moderate-income dwellings, which does not include the CMWD service area.  
 
     The county is currently working on re-zoning to 20 units per acre as required by the state. None of 
the parcels identified are located within CMWD, however, there are some parcels that could 
accommodate farm worker complexes or second dwelling units that are considered to be a form of 
lower-income housing. CMWD has not had one additional agricultural account in the last five years 
and does not anticipate any additional agricultural accounts over the next 25 years. Since there is no 
agricultural growth and very little or decreasing residential populations CMWD does not anticipate any 
low income housing over the next 25 years, see table 11 below.    
 
Table 11 - Low Income Projected Water Demand 
Low Income Water Demands 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Single-Family residential 0 0 0 0 0 
Multi-Family residential 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Water Use Reduction Plan  

CMWD is focused on limiting current deliveries to maintain the safe annual yield average of 
20,840 acre-feet during a historical drought period or 19,780 acre-feet during a drought recovery 
period.  No water shortages requiring mandatory rationing of water have to date been mandated. 
Although, CMWD has yet to enact the rationing stages of the Water Efficiency and Allocations 
Program, controls on the expansion of water use remain in effect since 1991 in an effort to protect the 
district’s supplies from long-term drought conditions. The District continues to implement an 
aggressive water conservation program and to offer assistance to all customer groups to help improve 
water use efficiency. 
 
Wholesale Water Supplier Water Demand Reduction Programs 

CMWD has pursued a coordinated regional effort with both resale agencies and with water 
agencies throughout the County of Ventura to pool resources, submit grants, and implement projects to 
conserve and preserve local water supplies. The Ventura County Watershed Coalition (VCWC) has 
multiple opportunities to collaborate and enhance supply and delivery systems for the benefit of all. 
The coalition has received $25 million in implementation grants from Proposition 50 Integrated 
Regional Water Management Plan Group Funding. One subcommittee of this group is the Water 
Efficiency Committee. CMWD has pool funding with agencies throughout the county to sponsor an 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

31 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

interactive website to help residents plan drought tolerant landscapes. CMWD currently is working on 
a Proposition 84 implementation grant that again works with agencies throughout the county to 
conduct landscape water audits. These projects would not be as cost effective for CMWD to fund 
independently. 
 
Retail Water Supplier Water Demand Reduction Programs 

CMWD has implemented a four tier residential rate structure. Tiered rate structures are one of the 
most effective means to target wasteful use. The residential rate structure currently used is as depicted 
in Table 12 below. 

 
Table 12 - Residential Tiered Rate Structure 

Units (HCF) Gravity Rate $      Pumped Rate $
0-20 .567 .831 

 
21-34 1.003 1.267 

 
35-100 1.404 1.668 

 
101 + 2.200 2.464 

 
         

     This structure creates a financial incentive for customers to conserve water. The benefits of this rate 
structure are that those customers that limit their water usage pay less per unit than those that use more 
on an increasing scale.  
 
    CMWD provides a condition for every will-serve letter for the purpose of obtaining a Ventura 
County building permit, with the requirement to install water conserving plumbing fixtures. 
 
     CMWD has implemented a Smart Irrigation Controller rebate program for an amount up to $350 
per applicant. These weather based controllers are showing on average a more than 15% reduction in 
water usage from those applicants that have installed them. CMWD has targeted larger landscape 
customers in its marketing efforts. The program requires a customer to have more than 2,000 square 
feet and more than 4 irrigation valves to participate.  
 
     CMWD is a member of the California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC) and as a 
result plans to provide detailed Demand Management Measure (DMM) information when it is 
available. CMWD is working to implement all of the water conservation best management practices as 
defined by the CUWCC. The major tools that CMWD is using to conserve water include a tiered rate 
structure that encourages greater water use efficiency that reduces higher use customer consumption, 
active membership in the CUWCC and implementation of their water conservation best management 
practices, and working with resale agencies and other water agencies on a regional basis with shared 
water conservation programming and funding for regional projects. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

32 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Baselines and Targets 
According to the Guidebook, an urban retail water supplier (excepting resale and agricultural water 

sales), that provides potable municipal water to more than 3,000 end users or that supplies more than 
3,000 acre-feet of potable water annually at retail for municipal purposes, must set a 2020 water use 
target and a 2015 interim target using one of four methods according to the Water Conservation Act of 
2009. Three of these are defined in Section 10608.20 (a) (1), with the fourth developed by DWR. The 
methodologies, water use targets, and reporting that apply to urban retail water suppliers as defined in 
the Act, therefore, do not apply to CMWD. CMWD delivered 2,651acre-feet of potable water to its 
2,715 direct retail end users in 2009. CMWD’s annual retail urban water use averaged 2,866 acre-feet 
from 2000 to 2009.   While CMWD deliveries are below the threshold that is stipulated in the Act, 
CMWD will develop these targets on a voluntary basis. 
 
US Census Data and Number of Residential Connections Used to Project District Population 

CMWD is a wholesale, agricultural, and an urban water supplier. The population projections and 
Gallons Per Capita Day (GPCD) methodology incorporated here adheres to the California Department 
of Water Resources (DWR), “Methodologies for Calculating Baseline and Compliance Urban Per 
Capita Water Use (For the Consistent Implementation of the Water Conservation Act of 2009), 
October 1, 2010.  

 
The population projection for this plan utilizes US census data for those areas of the district that 

receive urban water deliveries. The GPCD calculations used in this plan incorporate the number of 
residential connections and group residents reported in each of the US census tracts located directly in 
the district. The United States Census 2000 Summary File Data was used to calculate population 
number averages per average number of persons living in single and multi-family housing, and group 
residences in each of the census tracts that are located within the district. The census tracts were then 
aligned with pump zones within the district for which the number of multi-family and single family 
connections are available in the current year, 2010. The population average per single and multifamily 
residential unit for each census tract were than multiplied by the number of metered accounts in each 
census tract for single and multi-family units respectively. The United States Census Bureau census 
tract family household size ratios are used in Table 13 and are compared to water or pump zones in 
CMWD’ distribution system and to the particular number of group residents found in each census tract. 
The ratios in Table 13 are multiplied by the number of residential single family and multi-family units 
found in each water zone or census tract in Table 14 to find a total population for 2010. A population 
figure for the year 2000 was not possible since the number of residential customers within each census 
tract is only known presently. To calculate populations for previous years, Table 14 uses the 4% US 
Census population growth figure over the ten year period for these census tracts as a basis for a reverse 
linear regression in population. It assumes that each zone had the same rate of population growth, 
which would equate to a .4% growth rate per year over the ten year period.  
 
     Agricultural, Resale and the attributed water losses for agricultural and resale customers in the 
system are removed proportionately from the urban water usage in the system, as shown in Table 15. 
Table 15, is a five year baseline calculation for the average Gallons Per Capita Day and Table 16 is a 
10 year baseline calculation utilizing the same methodology 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

33 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE 13 - TOTAL CMWD URBAN RETAIL SERVICE POPULATION 2010 
Census 
Tract* 

Group 
Pop.** 

Casitas 
Pump  
Zone 

Single-
Family 
units 

Single 
Family 
House-
hold Size 

Total 
Single 
Family 
Pop 

Multi-family 
units (18 
Res. Meters) 

Multi-
Family 
House-
hold Size 

Total 
Mult-
Family 
Pop. 

Total 
Pop. 

9.01 61 8 66 2.45 162 0 1.95 0 223

9.02 57 4 101 2.77 280 383 2.12 812 1,149

9.03 383 5,6 63 2.81 177 0 2.59 0 560

10.01 64 9 266 2.7 718 0 2.57 0 782

10.02 53 3 512 2.69 1,377 40 2.76 110 1,540

11.01 148 2 609 2.78 1,693 77 3.00 231 2,072

11.02 90 2 609 2.76 1,681 77 2.49 192 1,963

12.04 26 1 100 3.06 306 56 2.9 162 494

12.05 11 9 266 2.2 585 0 2.56 0 596
Total 893    6,979   1,507 9,379

Footnote:  *Numbers provided by US Census for each tract at www.census.gov, American FactFinder, Census 2000 
Summary File 1 (SF-1). 
**Group residents are nursing homes, hospitals, or other institutional residence. 
 
Figure 4 - Census Tract Map including Casitas Municipal Water District Census Tracts 

 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

34 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE 14: TOTAL CMWD DIRECT SERVICE AREA URBAN POPULATION GROWTH 
Number of Residential Customers 

 
Year 

 
# of Customers 

% Change 
Per Year 

Total Population CMWD direct 
service area 

2000 2,602 0.4 9,004 
2001 2,673 0.4 9,046 
2002 2,675 0.4 9,088 
2003 2,675 0.4 9,130 
2004 2,762 0.4 9,172 
2005 2,680 0.4 9,214 
2006 2,692 0.4 9,256 
2007 2,694 0.4 9,298 
2008 2,691 0.4 9,340 
2009 2,707 0.4 9,379 

US Census information indicated 4% population growth for census tracts identified between 2000 and 2009. 
 
Urban Retail Water Use Targets: 
The Water Conservation Act of 2009 requires two baseline periods be determined during the 
calculation of the base daily per capita water use. The two baseline periods utilized for CMWD are as 
follows: 
 

 The 5-year base line period from 2004- through 2008 (Table 15), which is used to determine 
whether the 2020 per capita water use targets meets the legislative requirements minimum 
water use reduction requirements of at least a 5 percent reduction per capita water use. 

 The 10- year base period from 1999 to 2008 (Table 16). 
 
The 5- year base line period’s 5% reduction calculation of 291.65 Gallons Per Capita Day (GPCD) is 
greater than the 20% reduction for the 10- year base line period, which is 255.36 GPCD, therefore, 
CMWD is required to use the 10- year base line period for developing its GPCD targets. This means 
CMWD’s 2020 urban water use target will be 255.36 GPCD and its 2015 target will be 287.28 GPCD, 
which represents a 10% reduction target goal. The GPCD figure is much higher than the California 
average.  There will be significant challenge for meeting a 20% reduction given that CMWD has a 
disproportionate number of commercial and institutional large urban water users compared to a small 
number of direct residential 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

35 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE 15 - AVERAGE DAILY PER CAPITA GALLONS 5 YEAR BASELINE - WATER YEAR  
 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

     3/2 5 x 4 2-(3+6) 7/365 days x 
325,851 gallons 

8/1 

CMWD 
MWD 

October 1 to 
September 30 

Base 
Years 

Service 
Area 
Pop. 

Volume 
from own 
Sources  

Agricultur
al and 
Resale 
Water 
Use 

System 
Water 
Loss 
AF 

% 
Ag/Resale 

System 
Water Loss 

Ag/Resale 
Share of 
System 
Water 

Loss AF 

Gross Water 
Use (AF)* 

Urban Retail 

Gross Water 
Use (gal per 
day) Urban 

Retail 

Daily 
Per 

Capita 
Water 
Use 

2004 9,172 20,088 14,928 2,293 0.74 1,704 3,456 3,085,320 336 

2005 9,214 16,953 13,799 533 0.81 434 2,720 2,428,404 264 

2006 9,256 17,331 12,981 1,774 0.75 1,329 3,021 2,697,212 291 

2007 9,298 21,014 16,679 1,279 0.79 1,015 3,320 2,963,768 319 

2008 9,340 19,137 14,470 1,658 0.76 1,254 3,413 3,047,041 326 
*Includes unaccounted for water use. Metered deliveries to urban retail customers for this period averaged 2,826 acre-feet.per 
year.   

Average Daily Per Capita Usage Baseline for 5 years 
307.2 
  

Base Daily Per Capita Water Use Calculation for Section 10608.20 
 
TABLE 16 -  AVERAGE DAILY PER CAPITA GALLONS 10 YEAR BASELINE – WATER 
YEAR 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

     3/2 5 x 4 2-(3+6) 7/365 days 
x 325,851 
gallons 

8/1  

CMWD 
MWD 

October 1 to 
September 30 

Base 
Years 

Service 
Area 
Popula
tion 

Volume 
from own 
Sources 

Agricultur
al and 
Resale 
Water Use 

System 
Water 
Loss 

% 
Ag/Resal
e System 

Water 
Loss 

Ag/Resale 
Shareof 
System 

Water Loss 

Gross 
Water Use 
(AF)* 
Urban 
Retail 

Gross 
Water Use 
(gal. per 
day) Urban 
Retail 

Daily 
Per 
Capita 
Water 
Use 

Rainfall 
in 

inches 

1999 8,968 17,942 14,279 831 0.80 661 3,002 2,679,705 298 10.67 

2000 9,004 23,060 16,301 3,671 0.71 2,595 4,164 3,717,369 412 21.94 

2001 9,046 18,743 14,190 1616 0.76 1,223 3,330 2,972,435 329 27.86 

2002 9,088 21,066 16,343 1,681 0.78 1,304 3,419 3,052,180 336 8.77 

2003 9,130 16,476 12,773 1,068 0.78 828 2,875 2,566,665 281 23.69 

2004 9,172 20,088 14,928 2,293 0.74 1,704 3,456 3,085,320 336 14.33 

2005 9,214 16,953 13,799 533 0.81 434 2,720 2,428,404 264 51.28 

2006 9,256 17,331 12,981 1,774 0.75 1,329 3,021 2,697,212 291 25.84 

2007 9,298 21,014 16,679 1,279 0.79 1,015 3,320 2,963,768 319 7.15 

2008 9,340 19,137 14,470 1,658 0.76 1,254 3,413 3,047,041 326 24.58 

*Includes unaccounted for water use. Metered deliveries to urban retail customers for this period averaged 2,866 acre-feet.   

Average Daily Per Capita Baseline for 10 years 319.2  

 
 
 
 
 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

36 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 4 – SYSTEM SUPPLIES 

WATER SOURCES 
CMWD relies on surface water and groundwater sources to meet the water demands of the area.  

The following is a description of each water source, source limitations (physical or political), and 
water quality for each source.  Table 17 describes the current and projected quantities in the CMWD 
water portfolio. 

  
Table 17 - Current and Planned Water Supplies – AF/Y  

Water Supply Sources  2010 2015 2020 2025  2030 2035/opt
Wholesale water providers  0  0 0 0 0 0 
Supplier produced groundwater  300  300 300 300 300 300 
Supplier surface diversions  20,540 20,540 20,540 20,540 20,540 20,540 
Transfers in or out  0  0 0 0 0 0 
Exchanges in or out  0  0 0 0 0 0 
Recycled Water (current and projected use)  0 0  0 0  0  0  
Desalination   0 0  0 0 0 0 
Other   0 0 0 0 0 0  

 
Surface Water Supply 

The primary source of water for the CMWD is from the collection and storage of precipitation and 
runoff from the local Ventura River watersheds.  After a series of prolong droughts in the first half of 
the 20th century, the United States Bureau of Reclamation (Bureau) improved western Ventura 
County’s water supply reliability by constructing the Ventura River Project (Project).  The key 
elements of the Project are Casitas Dam, Robles Diversion and canal, and other associated water 
distribution facilities.  Since 1959, CMWD has operated an maintain the Project under a repayment 
contract to the United States and in conformance with the guidelines, standard operating procedures, 
standards of the Bureau.  In the initial sizing of the Project, the Bureau considered the Project 
requirement to provide an adequate water supply during the longest period of drought on record.  The 
Project that was built has a surface water storage volume of 250,000 acre-feet, known as Lake Casitas, 
which took approximately twenty years to initially fill to maximum capacity. 

 
The quantity of Project water is dependent on local rainfall and runoff from the Coyote watershed 

that is upstream of Casitas Dam and the Matilija watershed that is partially diverted from the Ventura 
River to storage behind Casitas Dam.  The Project has been modeled several times in the past to 
determine a safe yield of the Project storage, and recently CMWD has considered additional influences 
on water supply resulting from the Biological Opinion for the Robles Fish Passage and the planning in 
progress to remove Matilija Dam.   According to the peer reviewed CMWD “Water Supply and Use 
Status Report,” December 7, 2004, the safe yield of the Project during a twenty-one year drought 
period is 20,840 acre-feet.  

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

37 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

The local watersheds are primarily located in the Los Padres National Forest and lands purchased 
by the United States for protection of the water quality in Lake Casitas.  The watersheds within the 
Forest area do accommodate a small number of residential homes with individual septic systems and 
minimal public access for recreation. CMWD has also sought cooperative measures to prevent mining 
and other water quality impact activities in the Forest watersheds.  The water quality from the Coyote 
and Matilija watersheds is not influenced by industrial or municipal waste discharges.   

 
Lake Casitas is formed by the collection of watershed runoff and diversions behind Casitas Dam. 

The Bureau sized Casitas Dam to hold 250,000 acre-feet of water at maximum capacity and to perform 
as a reliable water supply during the course of a long-term drought.  All water extractions from Lake 
Casitas are made at Casitas Dam through the intake structure, pipelines, and treated to meet State water 
quality standards prior to the delivery to the first water customer.  The water quality in Lake Casitas is 
typical for any deep lake.  The key water quality issues that are addressed by CMWD are algae blooms 
resulting in taste and odors, turbidity, dissolved oxygen levels, protection from human contamination 
and invasive species.  Lake Casitas does provide a limited recreational opportunity, but does not allow 
body contact activities with the waters of Lake Casitas.  CMWD manages the recreational aspect of 
Lake Casitas and provides strict oversight to assure lake water quality is maintained at all times. 
 
Groundwater Supplies  

CMWD acquired the Mira Monte Mutual Water Company in November 1982 along with its well. 
The water company had gone out of business and deeded the well to CMWD because of high nitrate 
content of the well.  Treatment techniques to make it a stand alone potable supply are cost prohibitive. 
CMWD made improvements to blend the high-nitrate well water with lake water, reducing the level of 
nitrate to acceptable levels, and amended the domestic water permit with the State Department of 
Health Services.  The well has demonstrated an ability to provide 300 acre-feet per year of water 
supply. The blending process has been subject to interruption, which resulted in shut-downs during the 
past five-years. In 2009, repairs to the well resulted in zero production. The well has since been 
repaired. Specifically, the problems with the well production included: 

 
 Equipment failures at the Mira Monte well dictated an engineering study, which resulted in the 

replacement of the pump and electrical motor controls.   
 Wireless communication problems. Intermittent radio frequency disruption required an 

enhanced computer program that could address communication loss problems without causing 
a water quality issue from developing.  Well production is now immediately halted when a 
signal disruption occurs. 

 Newly enacted public health regulations (Groundwater Treatment Rule) required 
implementation of a new program to continuously monitor, record and report the ph, chlorine 
residual, water temperature and hourly CT calculations of the well's water just prior to 
blending.  When data collection is not working well production ceases until repaired. 

 
 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

38 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table 18 - Amount of Groundwater pumped – AF/Y  
Basin Name (s)  2005  2006 2007 2008 2009 

 Mira Monte Well (Ventura River Groundwater Basin)   103 201 278 224 0 
% of Total Water Supply   .01 .01 .01 .01 .01 

 
Table 19 - Amount of Groundwater Projected to be Pumped – AF/Y  

Basin Name (s)  2010  2011  2012  2013  2014  

 Mira Monte Well (Ventura River Groundwater Basin)   300 300 300 300 300 
% of Total Water Supply   .01 .01 .01 .01 .01 

       
Table 20 - Amount of Groundwater Projected to be Pumped – AF/Y  

Basin Name(s)  2015  2020 2025  2030  2035/opt 

 Mira Monte Well (Ventura River Groundwater Basin) 300  300 300 300 300 
% of Total Water Supply   .01 .01 .01 .01 .01 

 
CMWD is the backup water supply to several groundwater purveyors of the Ventura River and 

Ojai groundwater basins.  The groundwater basins are known to be in a depleted state after four years 
of below average rainfall, as occurred during the 1986 through 1990 period.  Once these basins have 
depleted, water demand shifts from the groundwater basins to the surface water supply of Lake 
Casitas.  In 1990, CMWD and consultant Don Kienlen reviewed and summarized the yields from the 
groundwater basins and the demand transfer to surface water supply.  The following is a summary of 
the conditions in each of the groundwater basin areas within the CMWD boundary. 

 
Upper Ventura River Basin 

The upper Ventura River Basin extends from Matilija Dam to Robles Diversion Dam.  The basin is 
extremely limited, making most wells in this reach of river under the influence of surface water.  The 
average usage above the Robles Dam over the years is approximately 2,800 acre-feet.1 (Ojai 
Groundwater Basin Study for CMWD, Murray, Burns, & Kienlen, MBK, August 1988).  A large 
portion of the upper river extraction is for local agriculture, only a portion of which would rely on 
Casitas in the case of a long term drought.  The Meiners Oaks Water District’s average annual 
extraction from this reach is 229 acre-feet, and may require Casitas backup supply in the event of a 
future long-term drought. 

 
Lower Ventura River Basin 

The lower Ventura River Basin is that portion of the Ventura River which extends from Robles 
Diversion Dam to the Pacific Ocean.  The lower Ventura River Basin had an average yield during the 
period of 1944-1983 of 7,493 acre-feet.2 (Water Supply and Demand Study:  Status Report, by R. 
Barnett June 6, 1989). During this historic period, the City of Ventura extracted an average annual 
yield of 5,506 acre-feet and the other wells between Robles Dam and Foster Park extracted and 
average annual yield of 1,987 acre-feet. During dry cycle periods when the full yield is not available 
water supply must be obtained from alternate sources such as Lake Casitas.  The City of Ventura 
forecasts extractions from the Ventura River at Foster Park for 2010-2025 years at 6,700 acre-feet per 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

39 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

year. The City primarily uses this water in areas outside of the CMWD boundaries and balances the 
City’s water supply needs inside of the CMWD boundary.  
 
Ojai Ground Water Basin 

The Ojai Groundwater basin is located in the Ojai Valley. The source water for the basin is local 
rainfall and runoff that is captured by the alluvium of the Ojai Valley.  Storage in the Ojai 
Groundwater basin has been estimated to have a capacity as high as 68,722 acre-feet, with a low of 
40,700 acre-feet, which occurred in 1951.3 (Murray, Burns, & Kienlen, MBK, 1989).  The average 
annual extraction from the Basin (2004-2008, OBGMA 2008 Annual Report) was 4,823 acre-feet. 
 

The Ojai Basin Ground Water Management Agency (OBGMA) was formed in 1992 to protect the 
Ojai ground water basin.  The water extracted from the basin is used 54% by agriculture, 41% by the 
Golden State Water Company which serves potable water to the City of Ojai, and 5% by individual 
residential and landscaping usage.  

 
1 Ojai Groundwater Basin Study for CMWD, Murray, Burns, & Kienlen, MBK, August 1988.   
2 Water Supply and Demand Study:  Status Report, by R. Barnett June 6, 1989.   
3 Murray, Burns, & Kienlen, MBK, 1989. 

 
TRANSFER OPPORTUNITIES 
Given the location of the CMWD service area and the lack of physical connections to other water 
resources in California, there are limited opportunities for water transfers for CMWD.  The two 
opportunities that CMWD has are described in the following sections. 
 
State Water Project Entitlement 

CMWD administers the Ventura County entitlement to State water and has contracts with the City 
of San Buenaventura (the City) and United Water Conservation District (WCD) to redistribute the 
20,000 acre-foot entitlement between these three agencies.  The CMWD entitlement to State Water is 
5,000 acre-feet, based on 100% State allocation of annual scheduled deliveries. As of the date of this 
Plan, CMWD has not made a physical connection to the State Water Project that would allow State 
Water to reach the CMWD boundary.  Several studies were completed on the feasibility of bringing 
state water to the District to include the following: 

 
 Final Program Environmental Impact Report for Joint Agencies Water Supply Project, 

April 1992, prepared by Woodward-Clyde for CMWD, the City, and United WCD; 
 Alternatives Evaluation Study for a Joint Agency Water Supply Project, November 1991, 

prepared by Boyle Engineering for CMWD, the City, and United WCD; 
 Alternatives Selection Study for a Joint Agency Water Supply Project, March 1991, 

prepared by Boyle Engineering for CMWD, the City, and United WCD; 
 Optimization Study of State Water Importation, May 1990, prepared by 

Kennedy/Jenks/Chilton, May 1990; 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

40 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 Evaluation of Alternatives Involving a Castaic Lake Delivery Point, Importation of State 
Project Water to Ventura County,” December 1988; 

 Feasibility of Importing state project water into Ventura County, June 1987, prepared by 
James M. Montgomery Consulting Engineers; 

 Feasibility Study for Importation of State Project Water, , December 1975, prepared by 
Engineering Science; and 

 A Report on the Feasibility of Water Supply Development, October 1968, prepared by 
Bureau of Reclamation.  

 
The preferred pipeline project estimated in the Montgomery study conducted in 1987 projected a 

total cost of $109 million dollars (ENR Index 6000).  CMWD’s cost would be a proportion of this 
overall cost that would be shared with the partnering agencies.  For example, if three other major water 
purveyors were involved with this project, CMWD’s cost would be 25% of the $109 million total.  
Alternative methods to bring State Water to western Ventura County were also considered in 1990 
(Optimization Study of State Water Importation, Kennedy/Jenks/Chilton, May 1990).  The alternative 
methods involved groundwater banking, interagency coordination, water transfers and exchanges.  

 
Water transfers and/or exchanges with other agencies in Ventura County associated with the State 

Water Project may provide opportunities to shift away from the reliance on Lake Casitas’ water during 
times of depleted water storage in Lake Casitas. The City of Ventura has stated an ability to 
temporarily move away from Casitas’ water supply, i.e., during extremely low water storage levels at 
Lake Casitas, to the credits the City has in the Fox Canyon basin. There has been recent (2010) 
uncertainty as to the availability of these water credits.  The success of this approach to water transfer 
would be contingent upon the availability and reliability of other water resources, i.e. State water and 
local groundwater banks, during an extended drought period.  During the last decade, the reliability of 
the State Water Project has been questioned and work is ongoing to improve reliability of the State 
Water supply.  
 
Local Groundwater Transfer 

In 1985, CMWD made arrangements for an emergency transfer of groundwater from the Ojai 
Basin to CMWD customers in the Ojai area.  There can be conditions in which Lake Casitas is at 
minimum storage and local aquifers are replenished by a single rainfall event, and the needs of the Ojai 
area can only be met by inter-agency agreements to utilize the Ojai Basin.  CMWD has worked with 
many of the local groundwater agencies during times of emergencies to provide alternative emergency 
supplies.  The proximity of system interconnections and political decisions make these types of 
arrangement physically possible.  These periods are likely to be short term, less than six months in 
duration.  
 
DESALINATED WATER OPPORTUNITIES 
CMWD is located on the Pacific Ocean coastline of Ventura County, California.  This proximity to the 
Pacific Ocean does provide an opportunity for the District to consider development of desalinated 
water supplies to supplement surface water supplies and to provide potential increased system 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

41 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

reliability, most notably for coastal communities within the district. However, for CMWD to move 
forward with a desalination project a public consensus would need to be developed, followed by a 
feasibility study to determine whether the project will have a positive cost-benefit result.  As of April 
2010, there is no active proposal in place for a desalination feasibility study.   

The City of Ventura and the Rincon beach communities represent water service areas for which 
desalination water supplies could possibly be applicable. 
 
City of Ventura   

A portion of the City of Ventura is within the boundaries of CMWD. The city purchases 
approximately 6,000 acre-feet of water each year from the District’s surface water supply, which is 
used toward the annual water demand for the western portion of the city, inside of the District’s 
boundaries. The City had considered desalination in the early 1990’s drought, but did not proceed with 
the project.   
 

There may be opportunities for future joint-agency coordination to build a desalination plant to 
supplement local surface water and groundwater supplies.  The city’s growth projections and the 
ability of the city’s groundwater supplies to keep up with growth are the driving factors that may lead 
to desalinated water in the CMWD and City service areas. The production rate and location of a 
desalination plant would need to be addressed in a feasibility study. 
 
Rincon Service Area   

The Rincon service area includes oil and gas production facilities, residential beach communities 
and, rural agricultural lands southwest of Lake CMWD to the Pacific Ocean.  The coastal communities 
lie in a 10-mile stretch between the City of Ventura and the Santa Barbara County line.  The key water 
demands of the area include the residential communities of La Conchita, Mussel Shoals, Seacliff, Faria 
and Solimar Beach, and the oil production industry (Conoco, Aera Oil, Mobil Oil, and several other 
small oil and natural gas production companies in the coastal zone).   The residential and industrial 
annual water demand for the Rincon coastal service area is approximately 300 acre-feet.  The oil 
industry could potentially increase water demand based on rising costs of fossil fuels and the 
profitability of increasing oil production rates.  The coastal zone has approximately 100 acres of 
agricultural production that is comprised of lemon orchards and flower fields. 
 

The sole source of potable water for the Rincon coastal area is Lake CMWD.  Potable water is 
pumped from the base of CMWD Dam through a single water transmission pipeline to the inland 
agricultural areas and to coastal communities.  There is an increased energy cost in serving this area 
because water must be pumped up a 900-foot lift. There are water reliability concerns for this area 
because in the past the main pipeline serving the area has been severed by landslides following a heavy 
rainstorm, which temporarily left coastal communities and industries without water supply.   

 
A desalination supply to the coastal communities would not be reliant upon the pumping and 

transmission pipelines from Lake CMWD, which are susceptible to short-term outages during storm 
events. Desalination would decrease demand on existing local water supplies. An initial estimate of the 
coastal community desalination plant production was 1 Million Gallons per Day (MGD or 1,121 acre-



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

42 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

feet per year (AF/Y).  The plant citing and need for additional pipelines, pumping and storage facilities 
would require further analysis.  The sources of water may include direct withdrawal from the Pacific 
Ocean, shoreline rainy collectors or wells, and may include various locations from the Ventura River 
estuary to Mussel Shoals.  The brine water outfall discharges may be constructed as new facilities or 
further investigations may discover existing ocean discharge pipelines that may be converted to brine 
discharge lines.  The District may also determine that this project may be feasible if a partnership was 
to be developed with oil companies and land developers of the Rincon service area, or the City of 
Ventura. 
 
RECYCLED WATER OPPORTUNITIES 

No recycling activities are currently in operation; however, developing a policy for the sale of, 
and/or storage of reclaimed water in the winter months, while continuing to discharge to the Ventura 
River during the summer months is addressed in the Sanitary District’s 2011 Strategic Plan. The Ojai 
Valley Sanitary District and the City of Ventura provide wastewater collection and treatment within 
CMWD’s boundaries.  The City of Ventura provides a level three treatment for approximately 10,000 
acre-feet per year and has initiated several successful recycling projects.  The Ojai Valley Sanitary 
District provides level three treatment for approximately 3,000 acre-feet per year, see Table 21 and 22.  
The Sanitary District built a thirty million dollar tertiary treatment upgrade to its existing plant several 
years ago.   

 
 The wastewater treated by the Ojai Valley Sanitary District is placed back in the Ventura River for 

the benefit of the aquatic habitat and the Endangered Southern California Steelhead. Any additional 
treated water that could be utilized for any other purpose would require the completion of an 
Environment Impact Report. By agreement for the land use for the Ojai Valley Sanitation Plant, the 
City of Ventura has retained the first right to reclaim the effluent water from this facility.  It is likely 
that any reclaimed water development from the City of Ventura facility will benefit the City of 
Ventura’s water portfolio.  There appears to be no other opportunities for CMWD to be directly 
involved and benefitted by reclaimed water, given the lack of any other opportunities to acquire 
reclaimed water. 

 
Table 21 - Wastewater Generation and Collection – Ojai Valley Sanitary District 

WASTEWATER GENERATION AND COLLECTION 
 2005 2010 2015 2020 

 
2025 2030 

Wastewater collected and 
treated in service area (MGD) 

 
2.29 

 
2.34 

 
2.39 

 
2.44 

 
2.49 

 
2.54 

 
Table 22 - Wastewater treatment MGD 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

(MILLION GALLONS PER DAY) 

TREATMENT LOCATION AVERAGE MAXIMUM YEAR OF PLANNED 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

43 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

PLANT NAME (CITY) DAILY  

(2010) 

DAILY 

(2010) 

PLANNED 

BUILD-OUT 

MAX. DAILY 

VOLUME 

OJAI VALLEY 

SANITARY 

DISTRICT 

 

OJAI, CA 

 

2.0 MGD 

 

5.37 MGD 

 

N/A 

 

3.0 MGD 

 
The wastewater treated by the Ojai Sanitation District is placed back in the Ventura River for the 

benefit of the Endangered Southern California Steelhead. Any additional treated water that could be 
utilized for any other purposes would need to be approved  
 
FUTURE WATER PROJECTS 
     CMWD currently does not have any specific future water projects that will develop more water for 
the system.  CMWD plans to utilize the program management of the safe yield of Lake Casitas to 
balance water supplies within the CMWD boundary, understanding also that water demands placed on 
CMWD are likely to exceed safe yield levels during periods of long-term drought.  
 
1. Extended Water Conservation for Municipal and Industrial Customers.  

CMWD is to continue California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC) Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) in the District and to continue to expand the ongoing program to support water 
conservation with all the customers of the District.  A High Efficiency Toilet (HET) distribution 
program saved 6 acre-feet per year.  It is expected that future HET rebate programs will save a total of 
about 18 acre-feet of water per year.   
 
2. The SWEAP Program: 

The SWEAP program is a three-stage program, which is to address about 20% of the agricultural 
users of the District.  The first stage is to identify the top 20% of agriculture customers who appear to 
be using more water than can be justified on their crop report.  The District continues to work with this 
first-stage group to reach better agricultural water use.  This has been completed in the 2005 to 2010 
period. 

 
The second stage of the program is to develop a loan/grant program to assist the customer in 

reducing their water demand to the amount needed based upon 2.5 acre-feet of water per acre per year.  
This would provide money to recondition wells, put in pressure regulators on the sprinkler systems, put 
in mini sprinklers, put in ground cover to prevent evaporation of the water, or other incentives to 
reduce demand. This program has been implemented. 

 
The third stage is to implement an increasing block rate to cause the agricultural customer to get 

his water use below the 2.5 acre-feet per acre.  This increasing block rate will be implemented in the 
first stage of the Allocation Program. While the first stage consist of voluntary water conservation, 
CMWD will use the incentive of additional cost to help the customer get there water use down below 
the threshold of 2.5 acre-feet per acre per year.  This may require the assignment of individual 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

44 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

agricultural user allocations and additional cost incentives to keep annual water use at or below the 
allocation amount. This program has not been implemented. 
 
3. MOU’s for Each Purveyor: 

Another idea is to develop a Memorandum of Understanding for each purveyor.  These 
memorandums could provide that a particular type of water waste ordinance be used, it could require 
the use of any water reserves before coming onto CMWD, and it could require participation in a public 
relations program for water conservation.  If an incentive were attached to the program, it may cause 
other systems to join.  CMWD plans to work with other water purveyors to coordinate such a plan in 
the future. 
 
4.  Status of 2005 UWMP Suggested Projects: 

There are additional water supply projects that were suggested in the 2005 UWMP that CMWD 
has implemented and some that are in need of further investigation.  Examples of such projects 
include: 

 
 Resale water company system retrofit and/or rehabilitation to assist water agencies to rely 

less on CMWD’s water – CMWD is assisting Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company to 
improve. 

 San Antonio Recharge Basin - project is in progress of design and implementation in 2011. 
 Renegotiate agreement with City of Ventura – renegotiations are in progress. 
 Aggressive leak detection and repair program – CMWD is conducting this program. 
 Excavate the north end of Lake Casitas during low water storage – not implemented, 

environmental and financial feasibility and justification assessment is needed. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

45 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 5: WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY AND WATER SHORTAGE 
CONTINGENCY PLANNING 

WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY 
This section of the Urban Water Management Plan provides a description of the water management 

tools and options used by CMWD that will maximize resources and minimize the need to import water 
from other regions. This section assesses the CMWD’s ability to provide reliable future water supplies 
in the event of any circumstance that may pose significant challenges.   

 
The primary sources of water for western Ventura County are the watersheds of the Ventura River.  

The precipitation in the Ventura River watershed is extremely unpredictable and characterized by long 
periods of little or no rainfall followed by short periods of intense precipitation with high runoff peaks.  
During the drought periods of the 1930’s and 1940’s, western Ventura County cities and agriculture 
recognized that local groundwater sources and surface diversions alone were not reliable and were 
inadequate for both agricultural use and for municipal and industrial purposes.  The development of an 
additional water supply was urgently needed in western Ventura County for stabilization of present 
agriculture and other economic activities, for new irrigated lands, for new industry, a rapidly 
expanding population, and for new economic opportunities (USBR Feasibility Study, 1954).  By 1954, 
western Ventura County had requested the United State Bureau of Reclamation to prepare a water 
supply project feasibility study that led to the planning, design and construction of the Ventura River 
Project.   

 
The Bureau of Reclamation’s plan for providing a water supply for the Ventura River Project area 

included a storage reservoir to be filled from erratic stream flows with the capacity to hold water over a 
period of several dry years; diversion works to divert water into the reservoir, and a conduit system to 
convey the water to points of use. The Bureau of Reclamation determined in its analysis a safe yield 
and prediction of future water demands of 28,000 acre-feet annually that would be needed from the 
supplemental water supply, that a 250,000 acre-foot capacity reservoir was needed to provide this level 
of demand. The construction of the Ventura River Project was completed and the responsibilities for 
operation were given to CMWD in 1959.   The Ventura River Project was to be operated in 
conjunction with the Matilija Dam water supply. By 1978, the 254,000 acre-foot reservoir (formally 
known as Lake Casitas) filled to full capacity.   

 
On September 28, 1982, the California State Water Resources Control Board issued to CMWD a 

License for Diversion and Use of Water of the Ventura River and Coyote Creek in Ventura County.  
License No. 11834 establishes the date of August 16, 1954, as the priority for the water right and the 
amount of water to which the right is entitled and limited to the amount actually beneficially used for 
the stated purposes. The total amount of water to be placed to beneficial use (direct diversion plus 
withdrawal from storage) shall not exceed 28,500 acre-feet per year. 

 
The period of 1959 through 1989 was a water use development period during which CMWD made 

numerous water service connections to serve water to western Ventura County.  By 1989, during the 
third year of a four year drought period, water demands from Lake Casitas approached and exceeded 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

46 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

the safe yield value of Lake Casitas. In 1990, CMWD took specific actions to control the expansion of 
water use beyond a level experienced in 1989 and further evaluated the safe yield of the Ventura River 
Project (Kienlen and Barnett, 1990). As of 2011, Lake Casitas provides a source of water for 
approximately 5,600 acres of orchard-type agriculture, approximately 2,600 other service connections 
that includes resale, residential, commercial, industrial, institutional customers, and supplemental 
water supply to the local wholesale water agencies and agriculture users of groundwater during 
drought periods.  
 

In response to the additional need for water after the CMWD action of 1990 to curb water use 
expansion, CMWD re-activated the 300 acre feet per year Mira Monte well. The water from this well 
contain levels of nitrate that exceed the maximum contaminate levels established by the State of 
California.  In order to utilize this water, the CMWD blends or dilutes the well water with water from 
Lake Casitas to reduce the nitrate level. The well produced 204 acre-feet in 2006, 272 acre-feet in 
2007,146 acre-feet in 2008, and 0 acre-feet in 2009 due to repair issues that have since been corrected.  
CMWD anticipates production to occur to 300 acre-feet annually if no unforeseeable conditions arise. 
 

In 2003, CMWD recognized two specific projects, the decommissioning of Matilija Dam and the 
application of a fish passage at Robles Diversion Dam, that were likely to impact water supply. 
CMWD proceeded to evaluate the water supply impacts of each project, as described in the 2004 
Water Supply and Use Report. The proposed decommissioning of Matilija Dam had gone through 
several years of study and consideration by federal, state and local agencies and appeared to be on a 
rapid track to decommissioning. The storage capacity behind Matilija Dam had diminished by way of 
collective siltation and was further described as an obstruction to the migration of steelhead trout to the 
upper reaches of the Matilija Creek.  The initial options for natural transport of sediments downstream 
of Matilija Dam pose a water quality and quantity impact to CMWD’s diversions to Lake Casitas. As 
of March 2011, efforts are continuing to find an appropriate project to attain the objectives of 
decommissioning the dam. 

 
The application of a fish passage facility at Robles Diversion Dam had specific conditions in the 

Biological Opinion that water be taken from the diversion and provided downstream of the Robles 
Diversion for steelhead trout migration and passage.  The Robles Fish Passage Facility was constructed 
at Robles Diversion Dam in 2005 and operational in 2006, at which time the full effect of the 
Biological Opinion became the standard operating procedure for flow at Robles Diversion Dam.  The 
Biological Opinion may be subject to further revision upon determination of scientific data that would 
support changes to the current Biological Opinion and any such revision may impact diversions to and 
safe yield of Lake Casitas. Presently, CMWD’s “Water Use and Supply Status Report” estimates a 360 
acre-foot annual water demand excess over safe yield under the current Biological Opinion so any 
additional impacts on water supply could further strain long term water supplies. 

 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

47 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

       The District has evaluated the reliability of the Lake Casitas water supply and its vulnerability 
to climatic and seasonal variations in weather, changes in water demands, and changes to water supply 
operations.  “The Water Supply and Use Status Report”, December 7, 2004 is attached to this 
document, as Appendix D. It considered the historical hydrology of the Ventura River for the period 
1945 through 2003 and historical water demands for the period of 1983 through 2003. The hydrology 
periods studied provide an extensive drought period, associated with the diminishment of local water 
supply as illustrated in Figure 5, followed by a series of wet years that result in the restoration of the 
Lake Casitas water supply as illustrated by Figure 6. The Report also reviewed historical water 
demands to provide an indication of water demand growth and the influence of climate on agricultural 
water use within CMWD’s service area. 

 
The 2004 “Water Supply and Use Status Report” also evaluated the impact to water supplies 
that could result from federal requirements to release additional water for fisheries and the 
removal of Matilija Dam from the water system. The change in annual safe yield of the Ventura 
River Project was calculated to be 1,930 acre-feet per year, providing a resultant annual safe 
yield of 20,840 acre-feet.  
 
Figure 5 – Lake Casitas Storage Model based on the 1944-1965 Drought Period 

Lake Casitas Storage Trend - Drought Period 
1944-1965 Hydrology 

BO Criteria - No Matilija Dam

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

19
44

19
45

19
46

19
47

19
48

19
49

19
50

19
51

19
52

19
53

19
54

19
55

19
56

19
57

19
58

19
59

19
60

19
61

19
62

19
63

19
64

Year

L
a
k
e
 C

a
s
it
a
s
 S

to
ra

g
e
 (
A

F
)

 
 
 

 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

48 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Figure 6 – Lake Casitas Storage Model based on the 1965-1980 Recovery Period. 

Lake Casitas Storage Trend - Recovery Period 
1965-1980 Hydrology 

BO Criteria - No Matilija Dam

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

19
65

19
66

19
67

19
68

19
69

19
70

19
71

19
72

19
73

19
74

19
75

19
76

19
77

19
78

19
79

Year

L
ak

e 
C
as

it
as

 S
to

ra
g
e 

(A
F
)

 
 
In addition to the local surface water and groundwater resources, western Ventura County has 

carried the cost for an entitlement to State Water since 1972.  CMWD is the administrator of the 
Ventura County’s 20,000 acre-foot entitlement which is distributed to CMWD, City of Ventura, and 
United Water Conservation District (5,000, 10,000 and 5,000 acre-feet respectively).  To date, the City 
of Ventura and CMWD have not received any of the entitlement into the respective service areas, or 
western Ventura County. 
 
WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING ANALYSIS 
 

This section of the Urban Water Management Plan provides the actions to be taken by the urban 
water supplier to prepare for, and implement during a catastrophic interruption of water supplies, 
including but not limited to a regional power outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. 

Preparation for Catastrophic Interruption in Water Supply – Water Code Section 10632 (c): 

Catastrophic events include non-drought related events.  In the occurrence of a catastrophic event 
involving facilities and/or water service area sources, CMWD personnel must respond to the 
emergency in an organized and methodical manner. CMWD has as its resource tool for emergency 
response the Casitas Dam Emergency Action Plan and the CMWD Emergency Response Plan. Each 
plan has been prepared and practiced with federal, state, and county emergency response agencies to 
provide a coordinated response to emergency conditions. CMWD has also performed vulnerability 
assessments for each facility and have improved facilities to lessen the potential impacts of 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

49 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

catastrophic events. The Casitas Dam is of special interest and coordination with the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation due to its importance and risk.  Each emergency plan provides specific levels 
of response for various conditions, making the response fit appropriately to the degree of the 
emergency, and providing for an escalation or de-escalation of the response to match conditions found 
in the event area.  The emergency plan will be implemented at the local level, damage assessments 
conducted and reported, and if warranted, actions will be taken by CMWD during and following the 
emergency event, and CMWD may request additional assistance through the Ventura County Office of 
Emergency Services.  

A key element to the Emergency Response Plan is the Communications section, which provides 
the pubic communications strategy, water quality notification plan, and directions for public and 
agency notifications in the event of a water emergency. In the event of a catastrophic interruption of 
water supply, the respective emergency plan will be implemented and the affected areas notified of 
water supply outages and/or water quality actions. CMWD notification plan considers the use of direct 
telephone notification, media outlets (radio and television), posting individual service hang tags, and 
notification over the emergency broadcast network. CMWD keeps and updates the contact information 
on an annual basis, or as the customer of record changes. 

The CMWD water system relies on Lake Casitas as the main source of water supply and the 
groundwater basin agencies as the backup water sources to Lake Casitas.  It should be noted that the 
groundwater supplies are generally limited in storage capacity and ability to instantaneously delivery 
water to the CMWD system, and interagency agreement is sought for specific and limited emergency 
conditions.  CMWD does have interconnection with most groundwater agencies in the CMWD service 
area.  Beyond the Lake Casitas source, CMWD has approximately 22 million gallon of water storage 
in the distribution system to provide approximately three days of reserve water supply. CMWD also 
has four portable water tanks (water buffalos), 500 gallons each, for placing in residential areas during 
isolated water outages. CMWD has also employed contract water trucks to provide water to residential 
areas during major water outages. CMWD will respond to water outages with a pipeline repair crew, 
contract pipeline crews, engineers, water quality and customer service personnel, and may request 
assistance from local, state, and federal agencies, as warranted. 

Prohibitions, Penalties and Consumption Reduction Methods – Water Code Section 10632 (d-f): 
In the event of a short-term emergency for which CMWD has a definite plan and schedule to 

restore its system to pre-disaster condition, CMWD may implement water use restrictions in 
accordance with the adopted Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance (Appendix F).  CMWD may further 
make requests of agricultural and resale accounts to move to alternate water sources and curtail water 
demands.  If the emergency conditions persist, CMWD may consider a shift to a more restrictive Stage 
of the Water Allocation and Efficiency Program, applying limits to water use allocations and incentive 
rates to meet water use goals during the emergency. Additional restrictions may be considered and 
implemented upon direction from the CMWD Board to include, but not limited to, prohibiting the use 
of potable water for street cleaning.  Additional action may include, but not limited to, the installation 
of flow restrictors or the shutoff of service in order to maintain enough water supply in the system for 
health and safety purposes.  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

50 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Analysis of Revenue Impacts from Reduced Sales During Shortages – Water Code Section 10632 
(g): 

Section 10632(g) of the Act requires an analysis of the impacts of the actions and conditions 
described in subdivisions 10632 (a) to (f) resulting from a catastrophic water shortage on the revenues 
and expenditures of the urban water supplier and proposed measures to overcome those impacts, such 
as development of reserves and rate adjustments.  The extent of the impact is to be related to a 
maximum of 50 percent loss of water supply (§10632 (a)).      

 
In the preparation of the CMWD financial budget, CMWD averages the previous three years of 

water use to project a revenue estimate for the upcoming year.  The annual commodity income from 
15,866 acre-feet of water sold from the CMWD sources is $6,650,796 (CMWD FY 2010-2011 
Budget) and the fixed water service charge income of $1,992,717.  The total revenue from water sales 
and service charges anticipated in the FY 2010-11 Budget are $8,643,512.  In the event of a 
catastrophic interruption of water supply that would reduce the annual revenue to 50 percent, CMWD 
could see a budget deficit of approximately $4,241,011, as provided in Table 23.  For CMWD, the key 
reduction in costs are directly associated with the reduction in chemical purchase due to less water to 
treat and provide as potable water, and less energy to pump water to the various zones of service.  In 
each case, the reduction in water sales is in direct relation to the reduction in chemical and electrical 
power purchases. 

 
Table 23 – CMWD Budgetary Revenue and Expenditures Impact 

15,866 Acre-Feet 15,866 AF 100% 7,943 AFY – 50% 
Revenue:   
   Commodity Charges $ 6,650,796 $ 3,325,398 
   Fixed Charges $ 1,992,717 $ 1,992,717 
           Total Water Revenue: $ 8,643,513 $ 5,318,115 
   
Expenses:   
   Salaries/ benefits $ 4,969,539 $ 4,969,539 
   Fixed Services/Supplies $ 3,650,097 $ 3,003,297 
   Variable Services/Supplies $ 3,172,580 $1,586,290 
            Total Water Expense: $11,792,216 $9,559,126.00 
   
Budget Deficit ($ 3,148,703) ($ 4,241,011) 

 
CMWD has un-restricted reserves of $9,260,461.86 in designated funds for cash flow, storm 

damage, variation in water sales, and capital improvements.  The CMWD Board of Directors could 
direct a portion of these funds be used to balance the budget.  An increase in water rates could be 
considered by CMWD with further understanding of the resultant revenue that may or may not be 
generated by this action.  An increase in rates may result in less water demand and generate no more 
additional revenue to offset the budget deficit. 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

51 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Adoption of Resolution 

An emergency resolution shall be adopted by the CMWD Board of Directors and the General 
Manager to address a particular water shortage with the appropriate guidelines, procedures and 
regulations and to announce to the public the implementation of the Water Shortage Contingency plan.  
The provisions of the resolution shall be developed and implemented in a manner to provide water 
service during emergency conditions to all of CMWD’ customers in a fair and equitable manner and in 
recognition of the given conditions. Please see Appendix H Draft Water Shortage Contingency 
Resolution. 

 
Water Priorities: The CMWD Board declares by adoption of this Urban Water Management Plan the 
following water priorities for the distribution of CMWD’ water during an emergency condition for both 
alert levels are: 
 

 Residential and residential resale to water agencies without alternate water sources. 
 Irrigation and irrigation resale without alternate water sources 
 Residential resale to water agencies with alternate water sources 
 Irrigation and irrigation resale with alternate water sources 
 Industrial and industrial resale 
 Oil recovery program 
 Other 

 
Declaration of Emergency 
1.Declare Level One Alert 
The General Manager shall have the authority to declare a Level One Alert for an emergency condition 
and to implement the provisions of the emergency ordinance related to the Level One Alert. 
 
2. Declare a Level Two Alert 
The CMWD Board may declare by resolution either a level one or two alert and implement the 
appropriate provisions of that alert level. 
 
Definition of a Level One Alert: 
An emergency condition that will occur in the event of a catastrophe or disaster caused by a natural 
phenomenon or man-made event such that the availability of the water supply from  
Lake Casitas or the distribution system, on a short-term basis, has become unreliable as determined by 
the General Manager.  
 
Total Available Water Supply: The total amount of water, as determined by the CMWD Board, to be 
distributed during an emergency condition at either alert level. 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

52 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Declaration of a Level One Alert may Result from the following: 
 Earthquakes 
 Power outages 
 Chemical/toxic spills in Lake Casitas 
 California Department of Health Services’ determination groundwater basins are contaminated 
 Sudden deterioration of water quality in Lake Casitas 
 Interruption of service due to pipeline breaks, loss of pumping plants, chlorination stations, etc. 
 Immediate hazard to public health 
 Uncontrolled watershed burn resulting in flooding, thereby impacting water served from lake 

CMWD because of: 
1. High turbidity 
2. Bacteriological quality 
3. High organic content 
4. Damage to distribution system 

 
Provisions to be Implemented During a Level One Alert 
For a period of time as determined by the General Manager, the General Manager may: 

 
 Direct the implementation of appropriate portions of the Interim Control Measures to Insure 

Domestic Water Quality as adopted by the CMWD Board on August 28, 1985, relative to the 
storage and distribution of CMWD water. 

 Implement the media campaign to inform all or affected CMWD customers that CMWD water 
is not to be used for non-life-support purposes; e.g., washing down driveways, sidewalks, etc., 
or watering any landscaping, etc. 

 Direct all irrigation customers and all water agencies, when possible, to utilize their 
groundwater or other surface water sources and/or cease using water from Lake Casitas. 

 Direct all oil companies to stop taking CMWD water for oil recovery or other non-life-
sustaining purposes. 

 Direct all other water agencies, which are customers of CMWD to practice water conservation 
measures similar to those contained herein. 

 If appropriate, issue a boil water order to affected CMWD customers and resale agencies.  
 Other orders as may be deemed appropriate under the existing circumstances. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

53 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Definition: Level Two Alert: 
 
A long-term or district-wide emergency condition has occurred and the availability of water supply 
from Lake Casitas has become unreliable, as determined by the CMWD Board.   
 
Declaration of a Level Two Alert may Result from the Following:   

 
 Low water level of Lake Casitas such as Lake Casitas at or near reaching the 50% full level. 
 Low water levels in the groundwater basins. 
 Increases in demand for CMWD water. 
 Abandonment of wells due to low groundwater levels in basins and/or well refurbishing costs. 
 Surface diversion resources diminished. 
 Records indicate rates of withdrawals of water from Lake Casitas are in excess of the safe yield 

and low lake levels exist. 
 
Provisions to be Implemented During a Level Two Alert: 
For a period of time as determined by the CMWD Board, the CMWD Board: 
 

 Shall establish the baseline water usage for each service connection. 
 Shall establish a water allocation program based on historical uses of CMWD water or other 

fair and equitable bases, which will establish the amount of water that can be obtained from 
CMWD by each customer of CMWD, including other water agencies. 

 May implement or adjust an increasing-block rate structure for any classification of water 
service. 

 Shall require all water agencies taking water from CMWD to implement water conservation 
and restrictive water use measures similar to those implemented by CMWD. 

 May request water from other water agencies – as appropriate – to wheel water from their 
supplies through CMWD pipelines to the agencies and customers currently being served from 
CMWD supplies. 

 May direct all customers and all other water agencies to utilize their groundwater or other water 
resources as their sole water source when practicable, and not take any CMWD water during 
the period of time so established. 

 May direct the oil companies to cease taking any CMWD water for secondary oil recovery 
purposes or other non-life-sustaining purposes. 

 May request the Ventura County Board of Supervisors and the Cities of Ojai and San 
Buenaventura to place a moratorium for all building permits, lot splits or subdivisions within 
CMWD boundaries. 

 Shall direct all customers of CMWD who have wells to report the condition of their wells to 
CMWD when reasonably requested, including the capacity of the well and the quality of the 
water. 

 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

54 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Consumption Reduction Methods: 
The primary method for consumption reduction is built into the water rate mechanism for each 

stage with charges for excess water use above the allocation amount.  Further, CMWD is only allowing 
expansion of water service through the issuance of additional water allocations, only when water is 
made available by CMWD and subject to CMWD allocation fees. 
 
WATER QUALITY IMPACTS ON RELIABILITY 
 

The water quality of Lake Casitas may significantly vary as the lake storage transitions from full 
stage to minimum pool.  Surface water supply from Lake Casitas is treated by filtration and 
chloramination prior to the delivery to the distribution system. The treatment process ensures that the 
water meets all state and federal regulations.  At lower levels of Lake Casitas storage there are specific 
lake water quality issues that will challenge CMWD’s ability to treat and deliver potable water from 
Lake Casitas.  During the condition of low lake level the water quality can unfavorably change due to 
the concentrating of nutrients resulting in lake eutrophication, increased algae blooms, reduction in 
dissolved oxygen, and increased turbidity during storm event that could significantly impact filtration 
treatment process and the rate of water production for the distribution system.  CMWD has also been 
concerned about the release of organic-laden silts from Matilija Dam that, if not properly mitigated 
during the Matilija Dam decommissioning, can add to the mass balance of nitrogen and phosphorous 
compounds and increased turbidity of water flowing into Lake Casitas.   

 
Specific actions that CMWD has considered and implemented are lake management strategies such 

as algae control and lake aeration.  The level of the lake management implementation may increase as 
the problem intensifies during low storage conditions.  

 
CMWD’s groundwater source represents only 300 acre-feet of water per year compared to the 

nearly 20,000 acre-feet from Lake Casitas. The well water is blended with lake water at a high ratio 
with surface water to ensure the maximum contamination level for nitrate is met. The resulting blended 
water is well below the maximum contamination level for nitrate.  Drought impacts to the well water 
quality are not understood completely.  CMWD has an agreement with a neighboring well agency to 
cease pumping at a specific groundwater elevation.  Over the past twenty years, the groundwater 
elevation has remained above the agreement level. Additional consideration for on-site treatment and 
additional blending may be required to mitigate the drought caused water quality in the Mira Monte 
Well. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

55 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

DROUGHT PLANNING 
 
This section of the Urban Water Management Plan describes the reliability of the water supply and 
vulnerability to seasonal or climatic caused water shortages, to the extent practicable, provide data for 
an average water year, a single dry water year, and multiple dry water years, and describe action to be 
taken by the urban water supplier in response to drought caused water supply shortages. 
 
Stages of Action – Water Code Section 10632 (a): 

The CMWD Board of Directors adopted the Water Allocation and Efficiency Program on January 
8, 1992 in response to the need to balance supplies and demand through an equitable plan of 
distribution of existing supplies. Various customer groups, retail agencies and citizens of CMWD’s 
service area reviewed the program in June 12, 1992.  The Program reflects the input of those 
participating in the review process. CMWD’s program incrementally provides adequate time and 
warning for customers to prepare for water use changes.  The goal of the Program is to maximize the 
efficient use of water while maintaining the quality of life, health and safety of the service area.  The 
Program is described in detail in the CMWD Rates and Regulations for Water Service, specifically 
Section 15.  The CMWD program includes voluntary and mandatory stages, changes to incentive water 
rates, adjustment of allocations and procedures for appeals.  Table 24 provides a summary of the 
effective triggering of each stage of water reduction goals and incentives. CMWD may implement any 
of the actions listed in the Level 1 or 2 Alert in the proceeding section of this plan to encourage further 
reductions in water demand. 
 

The implementation of any Stage of the Program requires an assessment of conditions (lake 
elevation, water demand trends and proximity to the lake’s safe annual yield, and yields available in 
local groundwater basins) and the recommendation by the CMWD General Manager to the Board of 
Directors to implement any particular stage.  The CMWD Board of Directors has the authority to 
implement this water use management strategy to the degree and duration it believes is necessary to 
maintain a safe water supply for the community.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

56 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE 24 - WATER STORAGE STAGES, TRIGGERING MECHANISMS & REDUCTION GOALS 
Customer Class Stage Lake Casitas Storage Trigger (AF) Water Use Reduction Goals Conservation Incentive 
Residential 1 254,000 20% Voluntary 
 2 127,000 20% Mandatory 
 3 100,000 30% Rate Incentive 
 4 75,000 40% Rate Incentive 
 5 65,000 50% Mandatory 
Business 1 254,000 20% Voluntary 
 2 127,000 20% Mandatory 
 3 100,000 30% Rate Incentive 
 4 75,000 40% Rate Incentive 
 5 65,000 50% Mandatory 
Resale 1 254,000 20% Voluntary 
 2 127,000 20% Mandatory 
 3 100,000 30% Rate Incentive 
 4 75,000 40% Rate Incentive 
 5 65,000 45% Mandatory 
Agriculture 1 254,000  Voluntary 
 2 127,000  Mandatory 
 3 100,000  Rate Incentive 
 4 75,000  Rate Incentive 
 5 65,000 85% of ET Mandatory 
Temporary 1 254,000   
 2 127,000   
 3 100,000   
 4 75,000   
 5 65,000 No Service Provided  

Not to exceed evapotranspiration (ET) requirements.  Penalty per unit over estimated allocation. 
 
     CMWD has been developing allocations for all its customers.  When the allocation ordinance was 
adopted in 1992, the ordinance set the allocation of all customers at 80% of 1989 usage.  Allocation 
assignment is the connection of the individual customer water use to the safe yield.  As CMWD has 
deemed water is available for allocating to new or expanded use, CMWD has created a waiting list and 
offered the opportunity to purchase limited water allocations to waiting list applicants.  An example of 
water becoming available is the adaption of the Mira Monte Well to the CMWD system, providing 300 
acre-feet of new water to be allocated to the service area.  For the Program, the allocation becomes the 
point at which excess water use charges are applied to the customer’s water bill, encouraging the 
customer to reduce water use to level that is at or below the allocation. 
 

CMWD water allocations are assigned to properties or water purveyors, are not transferable from 
one property or water purveyor to another, and may not be sold or traded by Casitas customers.  
CMWD Board of Directors reserve the right to alter allocations for any customer class at any time and 
the term allocation shall not mean an entitlement or imply a water right. 
 
Evaluation of prior stage measures: 

CMWD has been in Stage 1, Voluntary Conservation, since the adoption of the program. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

57 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Modification of the 2003 Rates and Regulations for Water Service 
 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR REGULAR WATER SERVICE 
CMWD is in a state of permanent delay in issuing new services. Both the 1991 reports on water supply 
and the “Water Supply and Use Status Report” of December 7, 2004 indicate a shortage in supply 
during a drought. CMWD, in its will serve letters to the County, promises to supply the customer 
reliably for forty years. The purpose of this requirement is to provide for only the services that CMWD 
can supply during a long-term drought.  Upon report from staff about the availability of water, the 
Board may release additional water for services for new or existing customers of CMWD. 
 
CONDITIONS OF PRIORITY AND PRIORITIES FOR NEW SERVICE AND EXPANDED 
EXISTING SERVICE AFTER A DELAY.  No new service will be provided to customers until the 
Board of Directors has determined that new supplies are available.  The determination of supplies 
being available shall be made upon staff recommendation at a regular Board of Directors meeting.  The 
determination that water is or is not available shall be within the determination of the Board of 
Directors.  The determination that a supply is available shall be based upon more detailed information 
about existing supplies, the availability of new supplies, new water supply projects, or contracts or 
proposed contracts for additional supplies where, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the supply 
of water is definite enough to provide the assurance to the County of Ventura that there is a forty year 
supply.  When the Board of Directors determine that additional new water supplies are available, either 
from the safe yield of the existing CMWD project supply or additional new supplies, supplies shall be 
allocated in accordance with the following criteria: 
 
AVAILABILITY OF ALLOCATIONS: 
PURPOSE OF USE:  As water becomes available, 50 percent shall be allocated to applicants for 
agricultural uses and 50 percent shall be allocated to applicants for municipal and industrial uses.  In 
the event applicants for one type of use are satisfied without utilizing the entire designated allocation, 
20 percent of the remaining water will be allocated to other uses each year. Agricultural and 
commercial uses are defined in CMWD’s Rates and Regulations.  Municipal and Industrial uses are all 
other water uses. 
 
SIZE OF ALLOCATION:  As water becomes available, no single property owner or applicant for the 
given type of service (municipal, industrial or agricultural) shall receive a new water allocation greater 
than 10 percent of the total new available supply or the minimum standard residential allocation as 
defined in CMWD’ Water Efficiency and Allocation Program (Section 15.3.1), whichever is greater.  
If the applicant’s allocation requirements are not fully met, the applicant may maintain a position of 
priority until more water is available. 
 
All applicants seeking priority listing shall provide CMWD with a detailed description of the project or 
use of water for which the water is sought.  Applicant shall provide information on peak flow and 
annual water requirements.  CMWD shall determine meter size and amount of allocation based upon 
reasonable and necessary needs and CMWD’s Rates and Regulations. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

58 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Additional Changes in the Ordinance shall be as follows: 
EXPANSION OF SERVICE:  Customers requiring additional water for second dwellings, also known 
as “granny flats”, development of additional Agricultural lands, or any other projects requiring an 
increase in water use shall apply for an additional allocation and shall be required to pay all associated 
application and connection fees. An addition of a house to an agricultural property shall not be an 
expansion of service if the customer demonstrates to CMWD any of the following: 

 
1. That the property is fully planted or planted and covered with buildings and roads to the extent 

that agricultural plantings must be removed to accommodate the new house. 
2. The property owner agrees in a recordable writing that he is limiting the use of the property to 

either the number of trees on the property in 1989, 1989 trees plus trees added with additional 
allocation after 1989, or the water provided by contract with CMWD for agricultural; and that 
number will be permanently reduced to offset the water use of the proposed construction of the 
house that is planned. 

 
NEW HOUSES.  Each new dwelling structure added to any land with service from CMWD shall be 
required to pay a Capital Facility Charge (CFC) and New Water Capital Facility Charge (NWCFC) for 
a ¾-inch meter despite any allocations above.  No connection fee shall be charged if an agricultural 
property owner can demonstrate in accordance with section 4.2.12 that water use will be reduced.  
 
Addition of Water Waste Ordinance Program  

List the mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during water shortages.  
Prohibitions often include excessive run-off, cleaning paved surfaces with potable water, failure to 
repair leaks, surface irrigation during restricted hours, etc.  
 
Estimate of Minimum Water Supply for Next Three Years – Water Code Section 10632 (b): 

In order to provide this assessment, a beginning point for water availability needs to be established 
and drought water use trends be applied to determine the resultant water availability at the end of the 
three-year period.  As of April 7, 2011, Lake Casitas is storing approximately 218,630 acre-feet.  The 
local area has received an above average rainfall during the winter of 2011 and the groundwater basins 
of the area are at near full condition.  CMWD is at Stage 1 of the Water Allocation and Efficiency 
Program.  The 2004 Water Supply and Use Status Report, Table 1, for the condition of the Robles BO 
operating criteria with Matilija provided a 21,330 acre-foot annual safe yield of Lake Casitas (without 
the 300 acre-foot Mira Monte Well supply), an average annual evaporation and rainfall loss in Lake 
Casitas of 2,630, and inflow to Lake Casitas from Ventura River diversions and tributaries for the 
drought period of 1944-1965.  Table 25 provides the change in the amount of water stored in Lake 
Casitas, as of April 7, 2011, and the application of average extractions and inflow conditions stated 
above.  

 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

59 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

TABLE 25 – THEORETICAL THREE-YEAR DROUGHT WATER SUPPLY PROJECTIONS 
  
Year 2011 2012 2013 
Start of Year Lake Casitas Storage (AF) 218,630 207,530 196,430
Lake Casitas Safe Yield (AF) -21,330 -21,330 -21,330
Lake Casitas Inflow (AF) 12,860 12,860 12,860
Lake Casitas Rain/Evaporation (AF) -2,630 -2,630 -2,630
End of Year Lake Casitas Storage (AF) 207,530 196,430 185,330

 
The theoretical model for the 1944-1965 drought period included three years during which rainfall 

exceeded average rainfall.  Therefore the change in Lake Casitas storage during the 1944-1965 drought 
period is influenced by the addition of those rainfall years and may not necessarily represent the three 
driest years during a drought period.   

 
A more recent drought period was experienced at CMWD from 1988 thru 1990.  During this 

period, Lake Casitas storage began at 208,687 acre-feet and transitioned downward through 78,546 
acre-feet.  A similar change in storage could be applied to existing conditions at Lake Casitas to 
determine the resultant storage level and the need for implementing Staged water reduction goals 
during the next three years should a similar drought (1988-90) occur during the next three years.  By 
starting at the April 7, 2011, storage level for Lake Casitas at 218,630 acre-feet and applying annual 
storage reductions that occurred during 1988, 1989 and 1990, a resultant Lake Casitas storage at the 
end of three years would be 140,084 acre-feet.  It should be noted that the annual water deliveries to 
the CMWD users did increasingly exceed safe yield during the 1988-1990 period due to the shift from 
diminishing groundwater supplies to available surface water supplies.  Under the Program adopted in 
1992, CMWD would fulfill the responsibility to provide a back-up water supply to the local 
groundwater users and may have a period during which deliveries exceed safe yield.  

 
TABLE 26 – 1988-1990 BASED THREE-YEAR DROUGHT WATER SUPPLY PROJECTIONS  

  
Year 2011 2012 2013 
Start of Year Lake Casitas Storage (AF) 218,630 201,879 169,631
Lake Casitas Reduction in Storage (AF) -16,751 -32,248 -29,547
End of Year Lake Casitas Storage (AF) 201,879 169,631 140,084

 
In either case presented in Tables 25 or 26, the storage in Lake Casitas remains within Stage 1 

through 2013.  A continuation of the drought beyond the third year or failure to recover fully prior to 
the onset of subsequent drought years could reduce the water stored in Lake Casitas to levels that cause 
the implementation of Stages 2 through 5. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

60 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table 27 - Factors resulting in inconsistency of supply 
Water 
Supply 
Sources 

Name Limitation 
Quantification 

Legal Environmental Water 
Quality 

Climatic Additional 
Information

Surface 
Water 

Lake 
Casitas 

 BO 
Diversion 
Requirements

    

Groundwater Mira 
Monte 
Well 

   High 
Nitrates 
require 
blending 

 Maintenance 
required 

 
Water Use Reduction Monitoring– Water Code Section 10632 (i): 

During the implementation of the Program, CMWD will perform water use monitoring procedures.  
CMWD monitors water use throughout the CMWD service area through SCADA at the Casitas Dam 
source, all pump plants and reservoirs.  In addition, all service connection to the CMWD distribution 
system are metered and monitored on a month or bi-monthly basis. CMWD can detect irregularly high 
water use within a pressure zone and inquiry and identify the location of the irregular water use.   

 
Significant customer increases in water use are investigated by CMWD staff. 

In general the monitoring of water use is performed during each stage as follows, but may be 
intensified if conditions warrant: 

Stages 1 through 4: 
Water supply conditions, production data and reservoir elevations are recorded daily.  

Daily and monthly totals are supplied through the Engineering Department and incorporated 
into the Water Supply Report.  Monthly reports include usage and total allocations for each 
customer category.  A list of individual customers whose usage exceeds their allocation is 
submitted to the Water Conservation Supervisor for monitoring and outreach to assist the 
customer in attaining the water use reduction goals. 

Stage 5: 
Water use monitoring will occur as in Stages 1 through 4 and water production data from 

the Casitas Dam will be reported to the General Manager on a daily basis. 
 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

61 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Water Service Reliability – Water Code Section 10635(a) 

A requirement of the Urban Water Management Plan is to provide an assessment of water service 
reliability during each of the next water years based on the driest three-year historic sequence, and 
provide data for an average water year, a single dry water year, multiple dry water years.  
 
AVERAGE YEAR: 
An average year as defined in the Department of Water Resources Urban Water Management Plan 
guide book is a year in the historical sequence that most closely represents median runoff levels and 
patterns. It is defined as the median runoff over the previous 30 years or more. Table 27 lists the 
annual rainfall that has been measured and recorded at Casitas Dam for the period of 1980 to 2010.  
The average rainfall for the thirty year period at Casitas Dam is 24.99 inches. The year in this sequence 
that most closely represents this median was the 2002-03 Water Year, when there was 24.83 inches of 
rain. The 2003 calendar year water delivery from Lake Casitas was 16,571 acre-feet. The 
minimum storage level of Lake Casitas in WY 2002-03 was 183,447 acre-feet.  

       Table 28 - 30 Year Historic Rainfall at Casitas Dam  
Water 
Year 

Rainfall 
(Inches) 

 Water 
Year 

Rainfall  
(Inches) 

 Water 
Year 

Rainfall 
(Inches) 

80-81 16.24  90-91 24.42  2000-01 29.36 
81-82 19.35  91-92 29.75  01-02 9.28 
82-83 51.14  92-93 41.20  02-03 24.83* 
83-84 17.91  93-94 16.08  03-04 17.03 
84-85 17.30  94-95 49.84  04-05 54.66 
85-86 33.49  95-96 18.8  05-06 26.52 
86-87 10.86  96-97 24.37  06-07 8.60 
87-88 18.62  97-98 59.54  07-08 26.19 
88-89 11.73  98-99 12.68  08-09 14.82 
89-90 9.46  99-00 24.35  09-10 31.13 

         *Average Year 

SINGLE DRY YEAR:  
Lake Casitas has been sized, constructed, and operated as both a primary water source and a 

backup water supply for the groundwater basins of western Ventura County. It is a long-term storage 
facility so any single rainfall year does not change the projected safe yield of a long term period. The 
driest rainfall year in the watershed in the last 30 years occurred in 2007 when only 8.6 inches of rain 
fell at Casitas Dam.  Water demands from Lake Casitas spiked upward from the 2006 demand by 4073 
acre-feet to a total annual demand of 21,326 acre-feet in 2007.  Lake Casitas storage was above 
200,000 acre-feet during 2007. 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

62 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

MULTIPLE DRY YEAR: 
The historical record provides information regarding ‘a multiple dry year’ occurrence in a drought 

period, which results in an escalation of water demands. During multiple dry years, surface flow in the 
Ventura River becomes non-existent and the groundwater in the Ventura River and Ojai Basins are 
diminished due well extractions, natural drainage, and a lack of replenishment from rainfall. Water 
demands on Lake Casitas have been observed to escalate significantly due to multiple years of 
insufficient rainfall and the transition from groundwater sources to the Lake casitas supply.  Further 
escalation in Lake Casitas demands resulted from the water demands by 5,600 acres of agriculture that 
needed to supplement the lack of rainfall with an alternate water supply in order to continue to produce 
crops.  The representative multiple dry years for which water use data is available for comparative 
analysis is the period of 1987 through 1990 (Table 29).  The water use for single dry year of 2007 is 
provided as a guide for the first dry year, followed by the historic 1987 through 1990 actual water use 
for the 5-Year Multiple Dry Year projections.  
 
TABLE 29 - WATER USE FOR MULTIPLE DRY YEAR 
 Avg. Yr Single Dry 

Year 
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 

Water Year 2003 2007 1987 1988 1989 1990 
Local Yearly Rainfall (in.) 24.99 8.6 9.83 18.40 11.85 8.86 
Actual Water Use (AF/Y) 16,571 21,326 22,339 21,032 24,416 22,454 
 
The summary of water use demand data is provided in Table 29, for application to the projections required for 
the Plan. 
  
Table 30 - Basis of Water Year Data 
Water Year Type Base Year(s) 
       Average Water Year 2003 – Actual Water Use = 16,571 AF 
       Single-Dry Water Year 2007 – Actual Water Use = 21,326 AF 
       Multiple-Dry Water Years 2007 and the period of 1987 thru 1990 Actual Water Use = 

21,326 AF, 22,339AF, 21,032AF, 24,416AF, and 22,454AF 
 

The significant change in water demand occurred during the fourth consecutive dry year. It is 
recognized, actual water use in 1990 was skewed downward due to water use decisions made by the 
City of Ventura to move to an alternate water source during this year and the following five years. The 
City of Ventura was concerned that there was no filtration treatment of Lake Casitas water during these 
years.  Thus the demand on the Lake Casitas water supply was diminished significantly from 1990 
through 1996 due to the temporary shift to alternate water sources by the City of Ventura.  The water 
use model developed in the 2004 “Supply and Use Status Report” provides a prediction of water use 
escalation as a factor of yearly rainfall and considers the use based on the City of Ventura not making 
the shift to alternate water supplies.  Based on the Report, Lake Casitas water demands would have 
escalated to above 26,000 acre-feet during the fourth year of the 1987 to 1990 drought. 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

63 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Water Service Reliability – Projected Normal Water Year Supply And Demand 

The annual normal Water Year Supply is from CMWD’s “Supply and Use Status Report.’ It is 
reported as the safe annual yield,  which is 20,840 acre-feet annually.  
  

TABLE 31 - PROJECTED AVERAGE WATER YEAR SUPPLY – AF/Y  
  2010  2015  2020  2025  2030  2035/opt 
Supply  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
% of Normal Year   100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
From Table 29, the Average Year occurred in 2003 and the actual water use in that year was 

16,571 acre-feet.  This value is to be the projected normal water year demand from the District 
supply.   

 
TABLE 32 - PROJECTED AVERAGE WATER YEAR DEMAND – AF/Y  
  2010  2015  2020  2025  2030  2035/opt 
Demand  16,571  16,571 16,571 16,571 16,571 16,571  
% of Normal Year  100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

    
 
TABLE 33 - PROJECTED AVERAGE YEAR SUPPLY & DEMAND COMPARISON – AF/Y 

  2010  2015  2020  2025  2030  2035/opt
Supply  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Demand   16,571 16,571 16,571 16,571  16,571  16,571  
Difference (supply minus demand)  4,269 4,269 4,269 4,269 4,269 4,269 
Difference as % of Supply  20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 
Difference as % of Demand  26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 

 

Water Service Reliability – Projected Single-Dry-Year Supply And Demand Comparison 

Projected single Dry Year water year is from 2007 as mentioned in Table 29. The supply is 
estimated to be the safe annual yield as reported in CMWD’s “Supply and Use Status Report. 
 

      TABLE 34 - PROJECTED SINGLE DRY YEAR SUPPLY & DEMAND COMPARISON – 
AF/Y  
  2010 2015  2020  2025  2030  2035/opt 
Supply  20,840 20,840  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Single Dry Year Demand   21,326 21,326 21,326 21,326 21,326 21,326 
Difference (supply minus demand)  (486) (486) (486) (486) (486) (486) 
Difference as % of Supply  2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 
Difference as % of Demand  2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

64 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Water Service Reliability  – Projected Multiple-Dry-Year Supply And Demand 
Comparisons 

The following tables project and compare supply and demand for multiple dry year periods.  
Because supply and demand will vary during the 20-year projection, the law requires UWMPs to 
project the impact of multiple-dry year periods for each 5-year period during the 20-year projection.  
 

TABLE 35- PROJECTED SUPPLY DURING A MULTIPLE DRY YEAR PERIOD  
  1 2 3  4 5 
Supply  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Projected normal Supply 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
% of Projected Average 100%  100%  100%  100%  100%  

 
TABLE 36 - PROJECTED DEMAND MULTIPLE DRY YEAR PERIOD COMPARED WITH 
AVERAGE DEMAND PROJECTION 

  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020  
Demand – 2007, 1987 to 1990 21,326 22,339 21,032 24,416 22,454 
Projected Average Demand 16,571 16,571 16,571 16,571 16,571 
% of Projected Average 129% 135% 127% 147% 136% 

  
  

  TABLE 37- PROJECTED SUPPLY & DEMAND COMPARISON DURING MULTIPLE DRY 
YEAR PERIOD OF 2011 THRU 2015 –AF/Y  

  2011  2012  2013  2014  2015  
Supply  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Demand 21,326 22,339 21,032 24,416 22,454 
Difference (supply minus demand)  (486) (1,499) (192) (3,576) (1,614) 
Difference as % of Supply  (2.3%) (7.2%) (1.0%) (17.2%) (7.7%) 
Difference as % of Demand  (2.3%) (6.70%) (1.0%) (14.6%) (7.2%) 

The following tables project a multiple dry year period occurring between 2016-2020 and compares 
the projected supply and demand during those years. 

 
 

      TABLE 38 - PROJECTED SUPPLY & DEMAND COMPARISON DURING MULTIPLE DRY 
YEAR PERIOD OF 2016 THRU 2020 –AF/Y  

  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020  
Supply totals  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Demand totals  21,326 22,339 21,032 24,416 22,454 
Difference (supply minus demand)  (486) (1,499) (192) (3,576) (1,614) 
Difference as % of Supply  (2.3%) (7.2%) (1.0%) (17.2%) (7.7%) 
Difference as % of Demand  (2.3%) (6.70%) (1.0%) (14.6%) (7.2%) 

 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

65 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

     TABLE 39 - PROJECTED SUPPLY & DEMAND COMPARISON DURING MULTIPLE DRY 
YEAR PERIOD 0F 2021 THRU 2025- AF/Y 

  2021  2022  2023 2024  2025  
Supply totals  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Demand totals  21,326 22,339 21,032 24,416 22,454 
Difference (supply minus demand)  (486) (1,499) (192) (3,576) (1,614) 
Difference as % of Supply  (2.3%) (7.2%) (1.0%) (17.2%) (7.7%) 
Difference as % of Demand  (2.3%) (6.70%) (1.0%) (14.6%) (7.2%) 

      
TABLE 40 - PROJECTED SUPPLY & DEMAND COMPARISON DURING MULTIPLE DRY 
YEAR PERIOD OF 2026 THRU 2030- AF/Y 

  2026  2027  2028  2029  2030  
Supply totals  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Demand totals  21,326 22,339 21,032 24,416 22,454 
Difference (supply minus demand)  (486) (1,499) (192) (3,576) (1,614) 
Difference as % of Supply  (2.3%) (7.2%) (1.0%) (17.2%) (7.7%) 
Difference as % of Demand  (2.3%) (6.70%) (1.0%) (14.6%) (7.2%) 

 
     TABLE 41 - PROJECTED SUPPLY & DEMAND COMPARISON DURING MULTIPLE DRY 

YEAR PERIOD OF 2031 THRU 2035- AF/Y 
  2031  2032  2033  2034 2035  
Supply totals  20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 
Demand totals  21,326 22,339 21,032 24,416 22,454 
Difference (supply minus demand)  (486) (1,499) (192) (3,576) (1,614) 
Difference as % of Supply  (2.3%) (7.2%) (1.0%) (17.2%) (7.7%) 
Difference as % of Demand  (2.3%) (6.70%) (1.0%) (14.6%) (7.2%) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

66 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 6: DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

CMWD has a strong commitment to water use efficiency. CMWD is a signatory to the 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the California Urban Water Conservation Council 
(CUWCC). This essentially declares CMWD’s intent to implement all cost effective water 
conservation Best Management Practices (BMPs) as noted by the CUWCC. CMWD is a retail water 
agency, wholesale water agency and an agricultural water agency. CMWD actively implements BMPs 
for all of its customer groups and continues to increase its efforts each year.  

DMM A: Water Survey Programs 

CMWD began its water survey programs for single-family and multi-family residential customers 
for direct retail customers and for whole agency customers beginning in February of 2010 with the 
addition of a Water Conservation Coordinator position at the district. CMWD has contracted with 
Resource Action Programs for services to provide residential survey programs starting in 2006 and 
continuing to present that utilize students to conduct residential water surveys with state approved 
water education curriculum provided by the Waterwise and Livingwise programs. These programs 
include low flow showerheads, toilet leak detection tablets, kitchen and faucet aerators, rulers to 
measure toilet tank size and a measuring device to detect the number of inches of water applied in a 
given location of a landscape over a specified period of time. The CMWD’s direct survey program also 
includes evaluating all indoor and outdoor water use. A meter test is provided to check for leaks, 
landscape is thoroughly inspected for irrigation efficiency and plant type. Low flow showerheads, 
kitchen aerators, bathroom aerators are provided if needed. All water appliances are inspected. All 
toilets and faucets are inspected for leaks. The customer is provided with a report on what 
improvements that can do both inside and outside the home to improve water use efficiency and they 
are shown how much their water and dollar savings would be if they implemented all 
recommendations. The report also indicates all of the rebate opportunities provided by Casitas for 
appliances and smart irrigation controllers. 

Table 42: Water Surveys Completed 

Actual 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Number of Single Family   519 539* 502* 

5 

Number of Multi-Family (only 18 accounts in district)     1 

Wholesale Agencies     7 

Actual Water Savings – AFY   10.97* 20.94* 14.12* 

*School program, unknown how many are multi-family or from resale agencies. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

67 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 Table 43: Water Surveys Planned 

Planned 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Number of Single-Family 500* 

30 

500* 

30 

500* 

30 

500* 

30 

500* 

30 

Number of Multi-Family (only 18 accounts in 
district) 

1 1 1 1 1 

Wholesale Agencies 10 10 10 10 10 

Actual Water Savings – AFY 20 20 20 20 20 

*School program, unknown how many are multi-family or from resale agencies. 

CMWD will be hiring a full-time Water Conservation Specialist starting in July of 2011. This 
position will work to increase the number of surveys being completed each year. 

DMM B – Residential Plumbing and Retrofit 

Table 44: Plumbing Fixtures 

Actual 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Number of Single-Family   637* 

 

692* 

79 

540* 

318 

Number of Multi-Family (only 18 accounts in 
district) 

     

Wholesale Agencies      

Actual Water Savings – AFY   15.77 18.75 18.64 

*Provided in education program. Unknown how many went to multi-family. 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

68 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table 45: Plumbing Fixtures 

Planned 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Number of Single-Family 550* 

100 

550* 

100 

550* 

100 

550* 

100 

550* 

100 

Number of Multi-Family (Only 18 accounts in 
district) 

10 10 10 10 10 

Wholesale Agencies 100 100 100 100 100 

Actual Water Savings – AFY 20 20 20 20 20 

*Provided in education program. Unknown how many went to multi-family. 

CMWD provides free low flow showerheads, faucet aerators, toilet flappers, leak detection kits, and 
shower timers to all residents with the district. CMWD advertises these fixtures in the newsletter and 
on the website. CMWD requires applicants to sign a sheet and to indicate how many and what type of 
devices they are taking so that water conservation estimates can be determined. When CMWD 
provides its residential surveys the number and types of devices are recorded. The school program also 
records the number and type of devices that were reported to have been installed.  
 
DMM C – System Water Audits, Leak Detection and Repair 
 
CMWD’s system water audit and leak detection and repair program is a multifaceted effort that has 
been in place for over ten years. It includes the utilization of sound testing to check for mainline leaks 
on an annual basis; annual testing of customer meters and master meter testing to include repairs and 
replacements as needed; Recording of flushing and leak repair losses; metering of all water uses; and 
measurement of master meters at each pump zone to determine if leaks occur in any geographic area. 
Pressure management for water loss minimization is limited to do service needs in hilly areas. Total 
unaccounted for system losses in 2009 were 135.56 acre-feet or .77%. Total unaccounted for system 
losses in 2010 were 396.60 acre-feet or 2.42%. Without CMWD’s leak detection and repair program it 
is likely losses would be much greater. 
 
DMM D - Metering with Commodity Rates 
 
CMWD meters all of its 3,179 accounts. All new accounts are metered. All customers are charged on a 
volumetric basis with over 70% of all charges based on a commodity charge. Casitas has been 
metering all customers for decades. 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

69 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

DMM E – Large Landscape Conservation Programs and Incentives 
 
CMWD has 6 dedicated irrigation meters. CMWD only has a few dozen large landscaped customers. 
CMWD started its Large Landscape program in 2005, when 5 landscape audits were completed. 
CMWD has joined several other agencies in Ventura County in an implementation grant through the 
Proposition 84 bond that will provide for county-wide landscape program. We have been notified that 
this program has been funded and anticipate that it will begin over the next couple of years. CMWD 
will also utilize its new water Conservation Specialist position which will be hired in July 2011 to 
conduct landscape audits. Previous landscape survey audits have been completed by outside 
consultants. Each survey included an evaluation of the irrigation efficiency, area of landscape, area of 
turf, and distribution uniformity, observed leaks, timer settings, irrigation time settings, and the 
development of a water budget. A copy of the landscape reports were provided to the each of the 
customers. 
 
CMWD contacted by phone large landscape customers with the highest usage to offer free landscape 
surveys. Electronic copies in a PDF format are saved on file for each survey performed. 
  
Table 46: Large Landscapes 

Actual 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Number of surveys completed 3 0 0 5 1 

Number of budgets developed 3 0 0 5 1 

Number of follow-up visits 0 0 0 0 0 

Actual Water Savings – AFY      

 
 
Table 47: Large Landscapes 

Planned 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Number of surveys completed 4 4 4 4 4 

Number of budgets developed 4 4 4 4 4 

Number of follow-up visits 4 4 4 4 4 

Actual Water Savings – AFY      

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

70 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

DMM F – High-Efficiency Washing Machine Rebate Program 
 
CMWD began its washing machine rebate program in 2007. CMWD joined the Smart Rebate program 
that is run by the California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC). CMWD provides 
advertising but leaves the processing of rebates to the CUWCC. The estimated water savings per year 
is based on the average washing machine usage of 40 gallons per load, with 8 wash loads a week and 
40% reduction in water usage per load for a High Efficiency Washing Machine. So, the annual 
calculated savings per residential washing machine rebate would be 6,656 gallons or .02 acre-feet. 
 
Table 48: Washing Machine Rebates 

Actual 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

$ per rebate  $150 per Residential and $400 per commercial  

Number of rebates paid  26 Residential  

2 Commercial 

25 Res. 

0   
Comm. 

28 Res. 

0 Comm. 

28 Res. 

0 Comm. 

Actual Water Savings – AFY  .53 .51 .57 .57 

 
Table 49: Washing Machine Rebates 

Planned 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

$ per rebate $150 per Residential and $400 per commercial 

Number of rebates paid 36 Res. 

2 Comm. 

36 Res. 

2 Comm. 

36 Res. 

2 Comm. 

36 Res. 

2 Comm. 

36 Res. 

2 Comm. 

Actual Water Savings – AFY .73 .73 .73 .73 .73 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

71 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

DMM G – Public Information Programs 
 
CMWD’s public information program started in 2003. It currently includes sending out 2 annual 
newsletters that include information on water conservation to all 30,000 residents in the district. 2 
additional bill stuffers are sent out each year as well to ensure that there is a quarterly contact with 
customers. Every bill statement has a water conservation message on it. The website and Facebook 
sites are updated several times a quarter with water conservation videos, articles, or with program 
updates. Press releases or media contacts are made each quarter. Water bills include information on 
previous usage. CMWD recently removed all of its turf from the main office and replaced it with 
drought tolerant plants. The office is located on a main thorough fare within the district. The high 
visibility for the drought tolerant plantings sets a significant example for customers.  
 
CMWD has a speaker’s bureau program that is advertised in the newsletters. District staff members 
attend multiple community meetings throughout the year and discuss water conservation issues as part 
of their presentations. CMWD staffs tables at community events and offers give-a-ways such as free 
toilet flappers, low flow showerheads, and faucet aerators. 
 
   
Table 50: Public Information 

Actual 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

a. Paid Advertising No No Yes No No 

b. Public Service Announcement No No No No No 

c. Bill inserts, Newsletters, brochures Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

d. Bill comparing previous water usage No No No Yes Yes 

e. Demonstration Garden No No No No Yes 

f. Special Events, media events. Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

g. Speakers Bureau Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

h. Coordination with other government 
entities. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

72 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table 51: Public Information 

Planned 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

a. Paid Advertising Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

b. Public Service Announcement Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

c. Bill inserts, Newsletters, brochures Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

d. Bill comparing previous water usage Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

e. Demonstration Garden Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

f. Special Events, media events. Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

g. Speakers Bureau Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

h. Coordination with other government 
entities. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes 

 
 
CMWD – School Education Programs 
 
CMWD started its school education program in 2005. CMWD currently contracts with Resource 
Action programs to provide state approved curriculum on water conservation to both 5th and 6th grade 
classrooms. CMWD also provides educational materials to K-12 teachers upon request. CMWD in 
2010 started working with the Ojai Rotary Club to provide water conservation classrooms on a boat in 
Lake Casitas. CMWD plans to expand its education program with the hiring of a new water 
conservation coordinator in July of 2011. 
 
CMWD reached 706 K-6 students with state education framework materials on water conservation in 
2010. CMWD reached 55 students in grades 7-12 in 2010. CMWD anticipates expanding the number 
of students reached over the next five years. 
 
DMM I – Conservation Programs for Commercial, Industrial and Institutional (CII) 
 
CMWD has been implementing its CII program since 2004. CMWD has contacted all of the highest 
usage customers and has offered and provided surveys to those customers. The CII surveys included an 
inspection and an in-depth analysis of water usage at each facility evaluating all water use devices and 
processes. Final reports with recommendations and calculated benefits were provided to each 
customer. A lack of staff resources in the past has prevented a thorough evaluation of the effectiveness 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

73 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

of this demand management measure. All CII customers are offered High Efficiency Washing Machine 
Rebates of $400 and High Efficiency Toilet Rebates for $200. Smart Irrigation Controller rebates for 
$350 are also provided to CII customers. Free showerheads, faucet aerators and toilet flappers are also 
provided. Starting in July of 2011 a new full-time water conservation coordinator position will assist 
with this process.  
 
 
Table 52: CII Conservation Program 

Actual 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Number of surveys completed 10 0 0 2 6 

Were incentives provided? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Number of follow-up visits      

Actual Water Savings – AFY      

 
Table 53: CII Conservation Program 

Planned 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Number of surveys completed 4 4 4 4 4 

Were incentives provided Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Number of follow-up visits 4 4 4 4 4 

Actual Water Savings – AFY      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

74 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

DMM J – Wholesale Agency Programs 
 
CMWD started providing its retail water agencies with water conservation assistance since 2004. 
CMWD participates with the SMART rebates program through the CUWCC, which makes it very 
difficult to identify which rebates are provided to which retail agencies for High Efficiency Washing 
machines (HEW) and for High Efficiency Toilets (HET) but CMWD does market those rebates to all 
customers in the nine retail agencies through newsletter mailings, which go to every household in the 
district that includes all nine retail agencies. CMWD also offers its Smart irrigation controller rebates 
to the nine retail agencies and is able to track which agency receives a rebate. CMWD’s Water 
Conservation Manager has contacted retail agencies about water conservation programs available and 
has coordinated a group table at the Ojai Day Festival for several years. It is not possible to determine 
which students participating in CMWD’s education programs belong to which retail agency since most 
of the agencies share the same school district. CMWD is able to track the residential surveys it 
provides by retail agency. There are only a few retail agencies of the nine that have CII customers but 
CMWD has offered surveys to some of the larger CII customers in those agencies.  
 
Table 54: Wholesale Agency Programs Number of Agencies Assisted 

Program Activities 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

DMM A (1) : Water Surveys 9 0 0 9 9 

DMM B (2) : Residential Retrofits 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM C (3) : System Audits 0 0 0 0 0 

DMM D (4) : Meter/Commodity Rates 0 0 0 0 0 

DMM E (5) :  Landscape Programs 9 0 0 9 9 

DMM F (6) :  Washing Machines 0 9 9 9 9 

DMM G (7) :  Public Information   9 9 9 9 9 

DMM H (8) :  School Education 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM  I  (9) :  CII Conservation Programs 9 0 0 9 9 

DMM  L (12) : WC Coordinator 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM M (14) : ULFT Replacement (HET for 
2008-2009) 

9 9 9 9 9 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

75 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Table 55: Wholesale Agency Programs Number of Agencies to be Assisted 

Program Activities 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

DMM A (1) : Water Surveys 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM B (2) : Residential Retrofits 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM C (3) : System Audits 0 0 0 0 0 

DMM D (4) : Meter/Commodity Rates 0 0 0 0 0 

DMM E (5) :  Landscape Programs 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM F (6) :  Washing Machines 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM G (7) :  Public Information   9 9 9 9 9 

DMM H (8) :  School Education 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM  I  (9) :  CII Conservation Programs 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM  L (12) : WC Coordinator 9 9 9 9 9 

DMM M (14) : ULFT Replacement (HET 
only) 

9 9 9 9 9 

 
DMM K – Conservation Pricing 
 
CMWD has implemented conservation pricings for decades. CMWD in 2008 increased its three tier 
residential rate structure to a four tier rate structure as an additional water conservation incentive. 
 
Table 56 Retailers Water Rate Structure 
Residential Inclined block 
Commercial Uniform 
Industrial Uniform 
Institutional/Government Uniform 
Agricultural Uniform 
Other Uniform 
 
Table 57 Wholesalers Water Rate Structure 
Retail Uniform 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

76 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

DMM L – Water Conservation Coordinator 
 
CMWD has a full-time Water Conservation Manager and a part-time Water Conservation Coordinator. 
CMWD is in the process of hiring another full-time position as a Water Conservation Specialist.  
CMWD also utilizes several consulting firms to assist with the implementation of all of the Water 
Conservation Best Management Practices. These positions perform landscape, residential, and 
commercial surveys. They administer rebate programs, public information programs, wholesale 
programs, special events and education programs. 
 
DMM M – Water Waste Prohibition 
 
CMWD has an adopted Water Waste Prohibition, see Appendix F. 
 
DMM N – Residential Ultra-Low Flush Toilet Replacement Programs 
 
CMWD has been implementing a regional ULFT rebate and/or distribution program since 2004 
targeting residential and CII customers. Since 2007, CMWD’s program has focused solely on 
providing rebate incentives for retrofitting non-efficient devices with either ULFT’s or High Efficiency 
Toilets (HETS) – toilets using 1.28 gallons per flush or less. CMWD currently only provides rebates 
for the HETs through the SMART rebate program administered by the California Urban Water 
Conservation Council. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

77 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

PART II UWMP SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

APPENDIX A: – ADOPTION RESOLUTION 

 
CMWD MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO ADOPT THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT 
PLAN FOR CMWD MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, the California Legislature in its 1983-84 Regular Session, adopted the Urban Water Management 
Planning Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Act requires all urban water purveyors with greater than 3,000 service connections or water 
use more than 3,000 acre-feet per year served directly to urban consumers to prepare and submit an urban water 
management plan to the California Department of Water Resources every five years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the plan shall be reviewed periodically, at least every five years, and CMWD shall make any 
amendments or changes to its plan which are indicated by the reviews; and 
 
WHEREAS, the original plan was adopted and sent to the California Department of Water Resources in March, 
1996. 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to set a public hearing for review of the plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the reviewed plan must be filed with the California Department of Water Resources within thirty 
days of adoption; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the CMWD Municipal Water District as 
follows: 

1. The plan entitled "Urban Water Management Plan for CMWD Municipal Water District" dated 2011 
has been reviewed, modified and is on file in CMWD' office and a public hearing is hereby set for -------
------ for public review of the plan and adoption. 

 
2.   Upon adoption, a copy of the Urban Water Management Plan is to be forwarded to the California 

Department of Water Resources. 
 
ADOPTED this    th day of   , 2011 

____________________________________ 
----------, President,  
CMWD Municipal Water District 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Secretary, CMWD  
Municipal Water District  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

78 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

CMWD MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR CMWD 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
WHEREAS, the California Legislature in its 1983-84 Regular Session, adopted the Urban Water Management 
Planning Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Act requires all urban water purveyors with greater than 3,000 service connections or water 
use of more than 3,000 acre feet per year served directly to urban consumers to prepare and submit an urban 
water management plan to the California Department of Water Resources every five years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the plan shall be reviewed periodically, at least every five years, and CMWD shall make any 
amendments or changes to its plan which are indicated by the reviews; and 
 
WHEREAS, the original plan was adopted and sent to the California Department of Water Resources in March, 
1996. 
 
WHEREAS, the reviewed plan must be filed with the California Department of Water Resources within thirty 
days of adoption; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the CMWD Municipal Water District as 
follows: 
 
1. The plan entitled "Urban Water Management Plan for CMWD Municipal Water District" dated --------------- 
has been reviewed, modified and is on file in CMWD' office and is hereby adopted. 
 
2. A copy of the Urban Water Management Plan is to be forwarded to the California Department of Water 
Resources. 
 
APPROVED this      day of     2011. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
------------, President,  
CMWD Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary,  
CMWD Municipal Water District 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

79 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

APPENDIX B: URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT 

  
Established: AB 797, Klehs, 1983  
Amended: AB 2661, Klehs, 1990  
AB 11X, Filante, 1991  
AB 1869, Speier, 1991  
AB 892, Frazee, 1993  
SB 1017, McCorquodale, 1994  
AB 2853, Cortese, 1994  
AB 1845, Cortese, 1995  
SB 1011, Polanco, 1995  
AB 2552, Bates, 2000  
SB 553, Kelley, 2000  
SB 610, Costa, 2001  
AB 901, Daucher, 2001  
SB 672, Machado, 2001  
SB 1348, Brulte, 2002  
SB 1384 Costa, 2002  
SB 1518 Torlakson, 2002  
AB 105, Wiggins, 2003  
SB 318, Alpert, 2004 
SB x 7_7, Steinberg 2009 
  
CALIFORNIA WATER CODE DIVISION 6  
PART 2.6. URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING  
CHAPTER 1. GENERAL DECLARATION AND POLICY  
  
10610. This part shall be known and may be cited as the "Urban Water Management Planning Act."  
  
10610.2. (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:  
(1) The waters of the state are a limited and renewable resource subject to ever-increasing demands.  
(2) The conservation and efficient use of urban water supplies are of statewide concern; however, the planning 

for that use and the implementation of those plans can best be accomplished at the local level.  
(3) A long-term, reliable supply of water is essential to protect the productivity of California's businesses and 

economic climate.  
(4) As part of its long-range planning activities, every urban water supplier should make every effort to ensure 

the appropriate level of reliability in its water service sufficient to meet the needs of its various categories of 
customers during normal, dry, and multiple dry water years.  

(5) Public health issues have been raised over a number of contaminants that have been identified in certain 
local and imported water supplies.  

(6) Implementing effective water management strategies, including groundwater storage projects and recycled 
water projects, may require specific water quality and salinity targets for meeting groundwater basins water 
quality objectives and promoting beneficial use of recycled water.  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

80 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

(7) Water quality regulations are becoming an increasingly important factor in water agencies' selection of raw 
water sources, treatment alternatives, and modifications to existing treatment facilities.  

(8) Changes in drinking water quality standards may also impact the usefulness of water supplies and may 
ultimately impact supply reliability.  

(9) The quality of source supplies can have a significant impact on water management strategies and supply 
reliability.  

(b) This part is intended to provide assistance to water agencies in carrying out their long-term resource 
planning responsibilities to ensure adequate water supplies to meet existing and future demands for water.  
10610.4. The Legislature finds and declares that it is the policy of the state as follows:  
 (a) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of water shall be actively pursued to protect both 
the people of the state and their water resources.  
 (b) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of urban water supplies shall be a guiding 
criterion in public decisions.  
 (c) Urban water suppliers shall be required to develop water management plans to actively pursue the efficient 
use of available supplies.  
  
CHAPTER 2. DEFINITIONS  
10611. Unless the context otherwise requires, the definitions of this chapter govern the construction of this part.  
10611.5. "Demand management" means those water conservation measures, programs, and incentives that 
prevent the waste of water and promote the reasonable and efficient use and reuse of available supplies.  
10612. "Customer" means a purchaser of water from a water supplier who uses the water for municipal 
purposes, including residential, commercial, governmental, and industrial uses.  
10613. "Efficient use" means those management measures that result in the most effective use of water so as to 
prevent its waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use.  
10614. "Person" means any individual, firm, association, organization, partnership, business, trust, corporation, 
company, public agency, or any agency of such an entity.  
10615. "Plan" means an urban water management plans prepared pursuant to this part. A plan shall describe and 
evaluate sources of supply, reasonable and practical efficient uses, and reclamation and demand management 
activities. The components of the plan may vary according to an individual community or area's characteristics 
and its capabilities to efficiently use and conserve water. The plan shall address measures for residential, 
commercial, governmental, and industrial water demand management as set forth in Article 2 (commencing with 
Section 10630) of Chapter 3. In addition, a strategy and time schedule for implementation shall be included in 
the plan.  
10616. "Public agency" means any board, commission, county, city and county, city, regional agency, district, 
or other public entity.  
10616.5. "Recycled water" means the reclamation and reuse of wastewater for beneficial use.  
10617. "Urban water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing water for 
municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 
acre-feet of water annually. An urban water supplier includes a supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the 
basis of right, which distributes or sells for ultimate resale to customers. This part applies only to water supplied 
from public water systems subject to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 116275) of Part 12 of Division 104 
of the Health and Safety Code.  
  
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

81 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

CHAPTER 3. URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANS  
Article 1. General Provisions  
10620.  
 (a) Every urban water supplier shall prepare and adopt an urban water management plan in the manner set forth 
in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640).  
 (b) Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water management plan within one 
year after it has become an urban water supplier.  
 (c) An urban water supplier indirectly providing water shall not include planning elements in its water 
management plan as provided in Article 2 (commencing with Section 10630) that would be applicable to urban 
water suppliers or public agencies directly providing water, or to their customers, without the consent of those 
suppliers or public agencies.  
 (d)(1) An urban water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by participation in area wide, regional, 
watershed, or basin wide urban water management planning where those plans will reduce preparation costs and 
contribute to the achievement of conservation and efficient water use.  
(2) Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of its plan with other appropriate agencies in the 

area, including other water suppliers that share a common source, water management agencies, and relevant 
public agencies, to the extent practicable.  

 (e) The urban water supplier may prepare the plan with its own staff, by contract, or in cooperation with other 
governmental agencies.  
 (f) An urban water supplier shall describe in the plan water management tools and options used by that entity 
that will maximize resources and minimize the need to import water from other regions.  
10621.  
 (a) Each urban water supplier shall update its plan at least once every five years on or before December 31, in 
years ending in five and zero.  
 (b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall notify any city or county 
within which the supplier provides water supplies that the urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and 
considering amendments or changes to the plan. The urban water supplier may consult with, and obtain 
comments from, any city or county that receives notice pursuant to this subdivision.  
 (c) The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted and filed in the manner set forth in Article 3 
(commencing with Section 10640).  
 
Article 2. Contents of Plans  
10630. It is the intention of the Legislature, in enacting this part, to permit levels of water management planning 
commensurate with the numbers of customers served and the volume of water supplied.  
10631. A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter and shall do all of the following:  
 (a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected population, climate, and other 
demographic factors affecting the supplier's water management planning. The projected population estimates 
shall be based upon data from the state, regional, or local service agency population projections within the 
service area of the urban water supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is 
available.  
 (b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of water available to the 
supplier over the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a). If groundwater is identified as an 
existing or planned source of water available to the supplier, all of the following information shall be included in 
the plan:  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

82 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

(1) A copy of any groundwater management plan adopted by the urban water supplier, including plans adopted 
pursuant to Part 2.75 (commencing with Section 10750), or any other specific authorization for groundwater 
management.  

(2) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which the urban water supplier pumps groundwater. 
For those basins for which a court or the board has adjudicated the rights to pump groundwater, a copy of 
the order or decree adopted by the court or the board and a description of the amount of groundwater the 
urban water supplier has the legal right to pump under the order or decree. For basins that have not been 
adjudicated, information as to whether the department has identified the basin or basins as over drafted or 
has projected that the basin will become over drafted if present management conditions continue, in the 
most current official departmental bulletin that characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, and a 
detailed description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to eliminate the long-term 
overdraft condition.  

(1) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of groundwater pumped by the 
urban water supplier for the past five years. The description and analysis shall be based on information that 
is reasonably available, including, but not limited to, historic use records. 

 
(4) A detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater that is projected to be pumped 

by the urban water supplier. The description and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably 
available, including, but not limited to, historic use records.  

 (c) Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic shortage, to the extent 
practicable, and provide data for each of the following:  
(1) An average water year.  
(2) A single dry water year.  
(3) Multiple dry water years.  
For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, given specific legal, environmental, 
water quality, or climatic factors, describe plans to supplement or replace that source with alternative sources or 
water demand management measures, to the extent practicable.  
 (d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or long-term basis.  
 (e)(1) Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and current water use, over the same five-year 
increments described in subdivision (a), and projected water use, identifying the uses among water use sectors 
including, but not necessarily limited to, all of the following uses:  
 (A) Single-family residential.  
 (B) Multifamily.  
 (C) Commercial.  
 (D) Industrial.  
 (E) Institutional and governmental.  
 (F) Landscape.  
 (G) Sales to other agencies.  
 (H) Saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or conjunctive use, or any combination thereof.  

(I) Agricultural.  
(2) The water use projections shall be in the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a).  
 (f) Provide a description of the supplier's water demand management measures. This description shall include 
all of the following:  
(1) A description of each water demand management measure that is currently being implemented, or scheduled 

for implementation, including the steps necessary to implement any proposed measures, including, but not 
limited to, all of the following:  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

83 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 (A) Water survey programs for single-family residential and multifamily residential customers.  
 (B) Residential plumbing retrofit.  
 (C) System water audits, leak detection, and repair.  
 (D) Metering with commodity rates for all new connections and retrofit of existing connections.  
 (E) Large landscape conservation programs and incentives.  
 (F) High-efficiency washing machine rebate programs.  
 (G) Public information programs.  
 (H) School education programs.  
 (I) Conservation programs for commercial, industrial, and institutional accounts.  
 (J) Wholesale agency programs.  
 (K) Conservation pricing.  
 (L) Water conservation coordinator.  
 (M) Water waste prohibition.  
 (N) Residential ultra-low-flush toilet replacement programs.  
(2) A schedule of implementation for all water demand management measures proposed or described in the 

plan.  
(3) A description of the methods, if any, that the supplier will use to evaluate the effectiveness of water demand 

management measures implemented or described under the plan.  
(4) An estimate, if available, of existing conservation savings on water use within the supplier's service area, and 

the effect of the savings on the supplier's ability to further reduce demand.  
 (g) An evaluation of each water demand management measure listed in paragraph (1) of subdivision (f) that is 
not currently being implemented or scheduled for implementation. In the course of the evaluation, first 
consideration shall be given to water demand management measures, or combination of measures, that offer 
lower incremental costs than expanded or additional water supplies. This evaluation shall do all of the 
following:  
(1) Take into account economic and non-economic factors, including environmental, social, health, customer 

impact, and technological factors.  
(2) Include a cost-benefit analysis, identifying total benefits and total costs.  
(3) Include a description of funding available to implement any planned water supply project that would provide 

water at a higher unit cost.  
(4) Include a description of the water supplier's legal authority to implement the measure and efforts to work 

with other relevant agencies to ensure the implementation of the measure and to share the cost of 
implementation.  

 (h) Include a description of all water supply projects and water supply programs that may be undertaken by the 
urban water supplier to meet the total projected water use as established pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 
10635. The urban water supplier shall include a detailed description of expected future projects and programs, 
other than the demand management programs identified pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (f), that the 
urban water supplier may implement to increase the amount of the water supply available to the urban water 
supplier in average, single-dry, and multiple-dry water years. The description shall identify specific projects and 
include a description of the increase in water supply that is expected to be available from each project. The 
description shall include an estimate with regard to the implementation timeline for each project or program.  
 (i) Describe the opportunities for development of desalinated water, including, but not limited to, ocean water, 
brackish water, and groundwater, as a long-term supply.   
 (j) Urban water suppliers that are members of the California Urban Water Conservation Council and submit 
annual reports to that council in accordance with the "Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water 
Conservation in California," dated September 1991, may submit the annual reports identifying water demand 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

84 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

management measures currently being implemented, or scheduled for implementation, to satisfy the 
requirements of subdivisions (f) and (g).  
 (k) Urban water suppliers that rely upon a wholesale agency for a source of water , shall provide the wholesale 
agency with water use projections from that agency for that source of water in five-year increments to 20 years 
or as far as data is available.  The wholesale agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for 
inclusion in the urban water supplier's plan that identifies and quantifies, to the extent practicable, the existing 
and planned sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the wholesale agency to the urban 
water supplier over the same five-year increments, and during various water -year types in accordance with 
subdivision (c).  An urban water supplier may rely upon water supply information provided by the wholesale 
agency in fulfilling the plan informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (c).  
10631.5. The department shall take into consideration whether the urban water supplier is implementing or 
scheduled for implementation, the water demand management activities that the urban water supplier identified 
in its urban water management plan, pursuant to Section 10631, in evaluating applications for grants and loans 
made available pursuant to Section 79163. The urban water supplier may submit to the department copies of its 
annual reports and other relevant documents to assist the department in determining whether the urban water 
supplier is implementing or scheduling the implementation of water demand management activities.  
10632. The plan shall provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that includes each of the following 
elements that are within the authority of the urban water supplier:  
 (a) Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water supplier in response to water supply shortages, 
including up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply, and an outline of specific water supply conditions which 
are applicable to each stage.  
 (b) An estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of the next three water years based on the 
driest three-year historic sequence for the agency's water supply.  
 (c) Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to prepare for, and implement during, a catastrophic 
interruption of water supplies including, but not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake, or other 
disaster.  
 (d) Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during water shortages, including, 
but not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable water for street cleaning.  
 (e) Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. Each urban water supplier may use any type 
of consumption reduction methods in its water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce water use, are 
appropriate for its area, and have the ability to achieve a water use reduction consistent with up to a 50 percent 
reduction in water supply.  
 (f) Penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable.  
 (g) An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions described in subdivisions (a) to (f), 
inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures of the urban water supplier, and proposed measures to overcome 
those impacts, such as the development of reserves and rate adjustments.  
 (h) A draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance.  
 (i) A mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use pursuant to the urban water shortage 
contingency analysis.  
10633. The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its potential for use as 
a water source in the service area of the urban water supplier. The preparation of the plan shall be coordinated 
with local water, wastewater, groundwater, and planning agencies that operate within the supplier's service area, 
and shall include all of the following:  
 (a) A description of the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier's service area, including a 
quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and treated and the methods of wastewater disposal.  



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

85 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 (b) A description of the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service area, including, but not 
limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use.  
 (c) A description and quantification of the potential uses of recycled water, including, but not limited to, 
agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat enhancement, wetlands, industrial reuse, 
groundwater recharge, and other appropriate uses, and a determination with regard to the technical and 
economic feasibility of serving those uses.  
 (d) The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at the end of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, 
and a description of the actual use of recycled water in comparison to uses previously projected pursuant to this 
subdivision.  
 (e) A description of actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to encourage the use of 
recycled water, and the projected results of these actions in terms of acre-feet of recycled water used per year.  
 (f) A plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's service area, including actions to facilitate 
the installation of dual distribution systems, to promote recirculating uses, to facilitate the increased use of 
treated wastewater that meets recycled water standards, and to overcome any obstacles to achieving that 
increased use.  
10634. The plan shall include information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of existing sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments as described in subdivision (a) of Section 
10631, and the manner in which water quality affects water management strategies and supply reliability.  
Article 2.5 Water Service Reliability  
10635. (a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, an assessment 
of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, dry, and multiple dry water years. This 
water supply and demand assessment shall compare the total water supply sources available to the water 
supplier with the total projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal water 
year, a single dry water year, and multiple dry water years. The water service reliability assessment shall be 
based upon the information compiled pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from state, regional, or 
local agency population projections within the service area of the urban water supplier.  
 (b) The urban water supplier shall provide that portion of its urban water management plan prepared pursuant to 
this article to any city or county within which it provides water supplies no later than 60 days after the 
submission of its urban water management plan.  
 (c) Nothing in this article is intended to create a right or entitlement to water service or any specific level of 
water service.  
 (d) Nothing in this article is intended to change existing law concerning an urban water supplier's obligation to 
provide water service to its existing customers or to any potential future customers.  
Article 3. Adoption and Implementation of Plans  
10640. Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall prepare its plan pursuant 
to Article 2 (commencing with Section 10630). The supplier shall likewise periodically review the plan as 
required by Section 10621, and any amendments or changes required as a result of that review shall be adopted 
pursuant to this article.  
10641. An urban water supplier required to prepare a plan may consult with, and obtain comments from, any 
public agency or state agency or any person who has special expertise with respect to water demand 
management methods and techniques.  
10642. Each urban water supplier shall encourage the active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and 
economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and during the preparation of the plan. Prior 
to adopting a plan, the urban water supplier shall make the plan available for public inspection and shall hold a 
public hearing thereon. Prior to the hearing, notice of the time and place of hearing shall be published within the 
jurisdiction of the publicly owned water supplier pursuant to Section 6066 of the Government Code. The urban 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

86 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

water supplier shall provide notice of the time and place of hearing to any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water supplies. A privately owned water supplier shall provide an equivalent notice within its 
service area. After the hearing, the plan shall be adopted as prepared or as modified after the hearing.  
10643. An urban water supplier shall implement its plan adopted pursuant to this chapter in accordance with the 
schedule set forth in its plan.  
10644. (a) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, the California State Library, and any city or 
county within which the supplier provides water supplies a copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. 
Copies of amendments or changes to the plans shall be submitted to the department, the California State Library, 
and any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies within 30 days after adoption.  
 (b) The department shall prepare and submit to the Legislature, on or before December 31, in the years ending 
in six and one, a report summarizing the status of the plans adopted pursuant to this part. The report prepared by 
the department shall identify the outstanding elements of the individual plans. The department shall provide a 
copy of the report to each urban water supplier that has filed its plan with the department. The department   
shall also prepare reports and provide data for any legislative hearings designed to consider the effectiveness of 
plans submitted pursuant to this part.  
10645. Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with the department, the urban water supplier and the 
department shall make the plan available for public review during normal business hours.  
 
CHAPTER 4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  
10650. Any actions or proceedings to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul the acts or decisions of an urban 
water supplier on the grounds of noncompliance with this part shall be commenced as follows:  
 (a) An action or proceeding alleging failure to adopt a plan shall be commenced within 18 months after that 
adoption is required by this part.  
 (b) Any action or proceeding alleging that a plan, or action taken pursuant to the plan, does not comply with 
this part shall be commenced within 90 days after filing of the plan or amendment thereto pursuant to Section 
10644 or the taking of that action.  
10651. In any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul a plan, or an action taken pursuant 
to the plan by an urban water supplier on the grounds of noncompliance with this part, the inquiry shall extend 
only to whether there was a prejudicial abuse of discretion. Abuse of discretion is established if the supplier has 
not proceeded in a manner required by law or if the action by the water supplier is not supported by substantial 
evidence.  
 
10652. The California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) of the Public 
Resources Code) does not apply to the preparation and adoption of plans pursuant to this part or to the 
implementation of actions taken pursuant to Section 10632. Nothing in this part shall be interpreted as 
exempting from the California Environmental Quality Act any project that would significantly affect water 
supplies for fish and wildlife, or any project for implementation of the plan, other than projects implementing 
Section 10632, or any project for expanded or additional water supplies.  
10653. The adoption of a plan shall satisfy any requirements of state law, regulation, or order, including those of 
the State Water Resources Control Board and the Public Utilities Commission, for the preparation of water 
management plans or conservation plans; provided, that if the State Water Resources Control Board or the 
Public Utilities Commission requires additional information concerning water conservation to implement its 
existing authority, nothing in this part shall be deemed to limit the board or the commission in obtaining that 
information. The requirements of this part shall be satisfied by any urban water demand management plan 
prepared to meet federal laws or regulations after the effective date of this part, and which substantially meets 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

87 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

the requirements of this part, or by any existing urban water management plan which includes the contents of a 
plan required under this part.  
10654. An urban water supplier may recover in its rates the costs incurred in preparing its plan and 
implementing the reasonable water conservation measures included in the plan. Any best water management 
practice that is included in the plan that is identified in the "Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban 
Water Conservation in California" is deemed to be reasonable for the purposes of this section.  
10655. If any provision of this part or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, that 
invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this part which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application thereof, and to this end the provisions of this part are severable.  
10656. An urban water supplier that does not prepare, adopt, and submit its urban water management plan to the 
department in accordance with this part, is ineligible to receive funding pursuant to Division 24 (commencing 
with Section 78500) or Division 26 (commencing with Section 79000), or receive drought assistance from the 
state until the urban water management plan is submitted pursuant to this article.   
10657. (a) The department shall take into consideration whether the urban water supplier has submitted an 
updated urban water management plan that is consistent with Section 10631, as amended by the act that adds 
this section, in determining whether the urban water supplier is eligible for funds made available pursuant to any 
program administered by the department.  
 (b) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2006, and as of that date is repealed, unless a later 
enacted statute, that is enacted before January 1, 2006, deletes or extends that date.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

88 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

APPENDIX C: OTHER SOURCES 

  
• California Environmental Quality Act -  http://ceres.ca.gov/ceqa/   
• California Land Use Planning Information Network -  http://ceres.ca.gov/planning/   
• The Governor’s Office of Planning and Research -  http://www.opr.ca.gov/   
• US Bureau of Reclamation Lower Colorado Regional Office -  http://www.usbr.gov/lc/region/   
• US Bureau of Reclamation Mid-Pacific Region -  http://www.usbr.gov/mp/   
• California Department of Water Resources Bay Delta Office State Water Project Delivery Reliability 

Report -  http://swpdelivery.water.ca.gov/   
• California Department of Water Resources Division of Planning and Local Assistance Groundwater 

Management in California -  http://wwwdpla.water.ca.gov/cgi-bin/supply/gw/management/hq/main.pl   
  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

89 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

APPENDIX D: CMWD WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND STUDY 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

90 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

91 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

92 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

93 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

94 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

95 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

96 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

97 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

98 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

99 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

100 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

101 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

102 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

103 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

104 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

105 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

106 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

107 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

108 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

109 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

110 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

111 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

112 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

113 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

114 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

115 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

116 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

117 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

118 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

119 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

120 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

121 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

122 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

123 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

124 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

125 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

126 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

127 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

128 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

129 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

130 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

131 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

132 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

133 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

134 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

135 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

136 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

137 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

138 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

139 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

140 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

141 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

142 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

143 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

144 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

145 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

146 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

147 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

148 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

149 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

150 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

151 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

152 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

153 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

154 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

155 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

156 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

157 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

158 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

159 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

160 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

161 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

162 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

163 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

164 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

165 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

166 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

167 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

168 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

169 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

170 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

171 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

172 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

173 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

174 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

175 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

APPENDIX E: RULE CHANGE FOR AGRICULTURE HOME 
ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY 

DRAFT 
 
Section 15.10 Residences on Agricultural Properties 
 
Section 15.10.1 Allocation to all Agricultural Properties: 
 
In 1992, CMWD allocated 8,880 acre feet to all agricultural properties in the district.  This was 80% of the 
amount of water used for agriculture during the 1989 calendar year drought.  At the time, CMWD was unable to 
set individual agricultural allocations because the agricultural customers said that they had a system of rotating 
crops and that tended to keep the amount of water demand from agricultural customers the same, even though 
they added and removed crops.  The intent here was to allow agricultural properties to change their demands as 
long as the total for all properties did not change.  The issue here was that neither the total agricultural water 
acreage would expand, nor would there be conversion from agriculture to residential or some other property 
type.  
 
Section 15.10.2 Agricultural Property with Residences: 
 
It has been the case in 1992, that agricultural properties came with houses.  CMWD had established a 
combination water rate to charge residential use on an agricultural property the same as a house would spend up 
to 17 units of usage.  It has been the position of the Board that every owner of an agricultural property would 
want to live on the property and CMWD should make provision for such houses to come out of the water that is 
allocated to the agricultural properties in general.  This program was not to allow agriculture to convert into 
houses. 
 
Section 15.10.3 Providing Agricultural Property with a Residence: 
 
An agricultural property owner can use allocation from the agricultural property to build a house as long as the 
property owner follows all of the rules in section 15.10 of this ordinance. 
 
Section 15.10.31 Agricultural Property Allocation: 
 
Nothing in this section should be interpreted to prohibit an agricultural property owner from obtaining an 
allocation for a house on his property off the priority list for allocations. 
 
Section 15.10.32 No Expansions of Other Kinds since 1992: 
 
No allowance for allocation shall come out of the agricultural allocation if there has been any expansion on the 
property since 1992 except for the construction of up to, but not more than, two buildings of any kind.  
Additionally, expansion shall not be considered if additional allocation was purchased for that expansion prior to 
the expansion or after the expansion. 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

176 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Section 15.10.33 Expansion if House built then sold to others or Agricultural Land sold and then a house is 
built: 
 
It shall be deemed an expansion if agricultural allocation was used to build a house and that house and or 
property were sold off since 1992.  The limits on building houses shall include houses built and sold off.  If 
agricultural land only is sold and the new owner requests to add a house, the property will relate back to the 
property sold.  If that property already cumulatively has two houses, all new buildings shall be charged 
allocation charges and meter charges as though they were houses only. 
 
Section 15.10.34 Size of Meter and Allocation: 
 
To build houses on an agricultural property using agricultural water allocation, each property shall have a meter 
properly sized for the historical water usage on the property.  If it is not sized properly for the allocation, the 
house shall be go to the priority list for allocation for building houses, and no use of the agricultural water 
allocation will be allowed. 
 
Section 15.10.35 Usage History on the Property: 
 
To build a house, the usage on the property shall show that the water usage for the property does not exceed 2.5 
acre feet of water per acre at any time during the last 10 years. 
 
Section 15.10.36 Out of District Usage: 
 
No agricultural property with Out of District Usage will be provided a will serve for a house if they have out of 
District Usage. 
 
Section 15.10.37 Agricultural Properties where the full acreage is not under agriculture: 
 
If the agricultural property is one where the full acreage is not under full agriculture except for roads and 
buildings, then the property owner and CMWD will agree on an allocation for the property based upon the 
historical usage over the last ten years.  Any water use over that agreed allocation will be charged at $1.50 per 
unit or as the Board may set a higher rate in this code in the future. 
 
Section 15.10.4. Allocation from reduction of agriculture on property: 
 
If, and only if, all the conditions of section 15.10 are complied with, then an agricultural property owner may 
use allocation from removal of agricultural from his property for the house, and no additional capital facilities 
charges will be due to obtain a will serve letter for the house 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

177 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

APPENDIX F: WATER WASTE ORDINANCE 

 
REGULATION FOR PROHIBITING OF WATER WASTE 

 
Section 22 WASTEFUL WATER USE All water provided to customers of CMWD Municipal Water District 
shall be put to reasonable beneficial use.  No water provided by CMWD Municipal Water District shall be wasted. 
 
Prohibitions and charges for improper use of water shall be based on the current stage of the Water Efficiency and 
Allocation Program. 
 
Section 22.1DEFINITION Waste of water includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
 

All stages:           
 

1.  Permitting water to leak from any device or facility on his/her property and the failure 
to repair any water leak in a timely manner. 

 
2. Use of non-recirculating systems in all new and renovations of existing conveyer car 

washes.  
 

3. Use of non-recirculating systems in all new and renovations of existing commercial 
laundry facilities. 

 
4. Use of non-recirculating decorative water fountains. 

 
5. Use of water in single pass cooling systems.  
 

Stage 3                1.Use of water for cleaning of sidewalks, driveways or other paved or hard surface. 

 

1. The observable use of water for any purpose without reasonable control over the 
application of using the water for a beneficial use that results in water flowing 
down sidewalks, driveways, streets, gutter, ditch or other surface..For example, the 
washing of cars, boats, trailers, aircraft, or other vehicles by hose without a shutoff 
nozzle and bucket except to wash such vehicles at commercial or fleet vehicle 
washing facilities using water recycling equipment. 

 
2. Use of water for decorative fountains and ponds. 

 
3. Outside landscape or garden watering after 9:00 a.m. and before 6:00 p.m. 

 
5.  Washing Streets with District water except in cases of emergency or essential 

operations. 
6. Failure of any customer to use a viable alternative water source that is available 

without a contract for a specified amount of water service from the district. 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

178 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 
Section 22.2 ENFORCEMENT as of June 30, 2008, a District customer allegedly engaged in the wasting of 

the District’s water as defined in Section 22.1 during Stage 5 shall be responded to as set forth 
below. 

 
1. The Water Conservation Manager will mail a written letter of notification to the customer.  

It will inform the customer of alleged water waste, the importance of water conservation 
and that their water rate shall increase by $1 per unit over their current water rate for each 
unit of usage that exceeds their water allocation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

179 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

APPENDIX H: Draft Water Shortage Contingency Resolution 

 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

Resolution___________________ 
 

A DRAFT RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING SPECIFIED MEAUSURES TO ADDRESS CRITACAL WATER 

SHORTAGE CONDITIONS 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas), at its regular 
meeting held on _______________________, received a staff report that indicated water supply conditions 
warranted ________________________________; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is prudent and responsible to take appropriate action to reduce water demand; and 
  
WHEREAS, the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan’s Water Shortage Contingency and Drought 

analysis section authorizes the Board of Directors, by Resolution, to curtail water use in times of drought, 
shortages or emergencies; and  
 

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2011 the Board of Directors approved Resolution ---- adopting the Final Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP), 2010 for Casitas; and    
 

WHEREAS, the 2010 UWMP included a Water Shortage and Drought analysis, that contemplates 5 
stages of water shortage with increasing severity, with Stage 1 calling for voluntary actions, and stages 2-5 
requiring progressive levels of mandatory conservation measures.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Casitas Municipal Water District’s Board of Directors 
finds that current conditions require immediate action and calls on all customers to reduce consumption by ------
---, and for more particular measures as described in Exhibit A. 

 
ADOPTED this ---th day of _____________. 

______________________________ 
President, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 
 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

180 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

APPENDIX G: COMMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

181 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

182 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

183 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

184 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

185 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

186 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

187 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Resolution Setting a Public Hearing 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

188 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Letters to County and Cities providing 60 Day Notice 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

189 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

190 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

191 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Letters Notifying Resale Agencies of Public Hearing and Providing a Copy of Draft UWMP 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

192 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

193 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

194 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

195 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

196 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

197 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

198 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

199 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

200 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

201 

DRAFT DOCUMENT



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

202 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

203 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Sample Letter sent to stakeholders regarding planning process for developing 2010 UWMP  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

204 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Adoption Resolution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  C M W D  M W D  2 0 1 0  U R B A N  W A T E R  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  

 

205 

DRAFT DOCUMENT

CUWCC BMP REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Legislature in its 1983-84 Regular Session, adopted the 
Urban Water Management Planning Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Act requires all urban water purveyors with greater than 3,000 service 
connections or water use of more than 3,000 acre feet per year served directly to consumers to 
prepare and submit an urban water management plan to the California Department of Water 
Resources every five years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the plan shall be reviewed periodically, at least every five years, and Casitas 
shall make any amendments or changes to its plan which are indicated by the reviews; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the original plan was adopted and sent to the California Department of 
Water Resources in March, 1996. 
 
 WHEREAS, the reviewed plan must be filed with the California Department of Water 
Resources within thirty days of adoption; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 
 
 1. The plan entitled "Urban Water Management Plan for Casitas Municipal Water 
District" dated June 22, 2011 has been reviewed, modified and is on file in Casitas' office and is 
hereby adopted. 
 
 2. A copy of the Urban Water Management Plan is to be forwarded to the California 
Department of Water Resources. 
 
 APPROVED this 22nd day of June, 2011. 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       President,  
       Casitas Municipal Water District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary,  
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  June 16, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  FY 2011-12 Budget    
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider public comment and move to adopt the 
budget for FY 2011-12 during the regular meeting of the Board of Directors on June 22, 2011. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The staff of Casitas Municipal Water District has prepared the draft FY 2011-12 Budget.  The 
draft budget has gone through a vigorous review by the General Manager and Finance 
Committee, followed by a Board workshop.  The draft FY 2011-12 budget funds the highest 
priority projects and tasks necessary to achieve our goals while keeping our costs and water 
rates as low as possible.  The budget is a financial management tool which presents the 
District’s projected revenues and expenses, and follows the district’s capital plan.  
 
During the annual budget workshop, the Board of Directors will provide additional insight to the 
budget and work toward the development of a final budget document.  It is anticipated that the 
final budget will undergo a public hearing and subsequently be adopted by the Board of 
Directors on June 22, 2011. 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY:  
 
The FY 2011-12 Budget contains expenses that total $15,454,885.99 and revenues that are 
anticipated to be $14,011,562.72.  The expenses exceed the revenue by $1,443,323.27, which 
will become balanced by applying $1,100,000 from available capital improvement reserves and 
$343,323.27 from available un-restricted reserves.  The following is a brief summary of each 
area of the budget.  Rather than repeating all the numbers contained in the budget document, I 
will provide insight to the development of many of the numbers. 
 
Revenue.  The three primary sources of revenue are water rates, recreation fees, and property 
taxes.  The revenues from each of these areas (water and recreation) can be highly variable 
and influenced by many factors such as weather conditions, economic climate, and changes in 
customer demands.  The following are the key revenue highlights that were considered in the 
development of the proposed FY 2011-12 Budget. 
 

Water Rates:    Water revenues contained in the budget are based on the conservative 
estimation of water sales volume of 14,895 acre-feet. The average volume of water sales 
over the past five years, excluding current year, is 16,138 acre-feet, but the standard 
deviation to that average is 2,650 acre-feet for the five-year period. The revenues are in 
proportion to revenues the sales volume that was delivered to each classification of service 
during the previous two years.  On this basis, it is estimated that water sales will generate 
$5,986,090 and water service charges will generate $1,909,218. 



 
Table 1 – Rainfall and Water Sales to Specific Water Customer Classifications 

 FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10 Est. FY 2010-11 
Rainfall ( inches) 12.91 28.48 34.00 

Resale (AF) 5,686 6,482 5,114
Agriculture (AF) 7,457 6,398 4,600
Residential (AF) 1,595 1,458 1,300
Total Water Sales (AF) 15,892 15,307 12,500

 
It should be noted that there are several factors that have contributed to the recent reduction 
in water sales. Water sales to key classifications are provided in Table 1, with a comparative 
to annual rainfall totals.  During FY 2010-11, water sales in the Agricultural classification 
declined primarily due to the frequent rainfall events and the filling of the local aquifers.  
Water sales to the Resale classification decreased due to the City of Ventura’s cooperation 
to keep water sales within district boundaries, combined with the loss of two large City 
customers.  It is anticipated that annual water sales to the City of Ventura will likely be 
around 5,000 acre-feet for the next few years.  Water sales to the Ojai resale customers, 
Golden State and Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company, have been reduced this year due 
to each agency’s rising water rates and the increased use of local groundwater resources.   

 
There are two specific items that the Finance Committee is watching that will cause 
reconsideration of water rates.  The first item is the potential manipulation of Prop 1A tax 
funding by the State.  The Prop 1A tax funding received by Casitas is approximately $1.8 
million.  If Casitas does not continue to receive this funding, it could mean a 30% increase in 
water rates and service charges, and an increase in recreation rates.  The second item is 
the Safety of Dams debt to the Bureau of Reclamation.  The District is currently in 
negotiations for a payment contract and waiting for the BOR to determine the amount of the 
debt.  The preliminary estimate of the debt is $3.3 million which, depending on the term of 
the payment contract, could cause a 2-3% rate increase. 
 
The Finance Committee has reviewed the proposed FY 2011-12 Budget revenues, reserve 
balances, expenses, delinquency rates, and determined that a water rate increase is not 
recommended at this time for FY 2011-12 Budget.  Should any of the items mentioned 
above become current, the Finance Committee may bring a recommendation for rate 
adjustments to the Board. 

 
Recreation Fees:  The estimate of recreation fee revenues is based on historical patterns 
and the assumption that the issue of concessionaire revenues will be resolved during this 
next year.  In preparation of the Budget, the Park Services Manager applied a 5% reduction 
to revenues of the previous year, providing a conservative estimate of revenues.  The 
Recreation Committee was asked to consider increasing recreation fees in order to lessen 
the financial gap between revenues and expenses, but no increase in fee was the 
recommendation.  The Recreation Committee will continue to assess revenue performance 
during the summer of 2011 and may propose a new fees structure in the fall of 2011.  The 
Recreation revenues are estimated to be $3,442,565. 
 
Property Taxes:  The FY 2011-12 Budget assumes that the Prop 1A tax funding will 
continue to be received by the District.  The tax fund revenue that is stated in the budget is 
$1,858,318. 
 
Interest on Investments:  The interest on time deposits and investments has been 



redirected to investment strategies that may improve the return on investments over time.  
The estimated interest on investments in the FY2011-12 budget is $288,767.  This is an 
area of improvement over the FY 2009-10 investment returns. 
 

Reserves.  In 2009, the District achieved its goal in attaining adequate levels of unrestricted 
reserves (Resolution No. 06-32), increasing the cash flow reserve to $3,000,000 and 
establishing a capital improvements reserve at an additional $3,000,000.  As of October 5, 
2010, the total un-restricted reserve funds were $9,693,207.25.  This total will change as FY 
2010-11 year end financial closing is finalized, but can be considered as a good basis for the FY 
2011-12 Budget.  As stated by the Board, reserves are to be used under special circumstances 
and not relied upon to balance annual budgets. 
 
The FY 2011-12 Budget proposes to move $1,100,000 from Capital Improvement reserves for 
the construction stages of the Rincon 2(M) Main replacement and $343,323.27 from available 
un-restricted reserves in order to balance the proposed budget.  During FY 2010-11, only a 
portion of the Rincon 2(M) Main replacement funds were expended on design and final plan 
preparation, no construction occurred on this project. The project will start in September 2012 
and is an expense in the FY 2011-12 Budget.  Any additions to the Budget would be similarly be 
funded by available un-restricted reserves.  
 
Expenses.  Section managers and supervisors have prepared individual expense budgets for 
each task area, presented in the budget as Department Requested.  The General Manager 
reviewed and discussed each expense with the Departments and appropriate changes were 
made as necessary.  The FY 2011-12 expenses are very comparable to the FY 2010-11 
expenses, with a few minor exceptions.   
 

Staffing:  There are no requests for additional full-time personnel.  The Water Treatment-
Operations section is requesting 960 hours for a part-time employee to assist with the 
preparation of meter settings in the coastal communities for conversion to automatic reads.  
 
Power Purchased for Pumping:  It is anticipated that electrical power costs will rise 5%, 
increasing the District’s electrical cost to $1,293,600.  This estimate is conservatively based 
on historical electrical costs for 16,000 acre-feet of annual water sales.  With changes in 
lake elevation and variability of pumped water demands, costs can vary from the budget 
estimate. This cost is included in the Electrical/Mechanical expense budget. 
 
Reimbursable Projects:  The budget for Water Conservation has $470,523 in outside 
contracts for the Senior Canyon Improvement grant project.  

 
Capital Projects Budget. 
 
The 10-Year Capital Projects have been updated by staff and presented in the budget binder. 
The proposed FY 2011-12 Capital budget is $3,118,500.  The attached list of capital projects is 
provided for further assessment of the work staff will be pursuing during FY 2011-12. There are 
three significant projects that are proposed to be undertaken in FY 2011-12.  The first is the 
construction project to replace a storm-damaged section of the Rincon 2(M) Main, which 
crosses the canyon northwest of La Conchita.  This project is estimated to cost $1,100,000 and 
be completed before 2012.  The second project is a multi-year project to replace outdated 
electrical systems at pump plant facilities.  The third significant project is the first phase 
conversion of meter reading equipment to an automated format.  It should be noted that the 
District is planning to replace the interior coating on the last of eight pressure filters.   
 



Staff is dedicated to aggressively accomplishing the capital projects that have been proposed 
for FY 2011-12. 
 
Lake Casitas Recreation Area Budget. 
The goal of the LCRA budget is to provide a balance between projected revenue and expenses. 
This goal appears to be a difficult one to attain in light of recent boating restrictions and based 
on the level of current user fees.  The proposed FY 2011-12 Budget reflects a net loss of 
$339,316.  The revenue was reduced by 5% from estimates of the prior year.  The summary of 
totals for the Recreation section is as follows: 
   

 FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12
Total Revenue $3,636,480  $3,442,565
Total Expenses ($2,666,315) ($2,397,867)
Total Capital ($331,500) ($209,000)
Admin Overhead ($940,025) ($882,279)
Depreciation Expense ($311,000) ($292,735)
Net Profit/(Loss) ($612,360) ($339,316)

 
At this time, the budget for recreation has decreased in all categories of expense and revenue, 
bringing the estimated deficit down from the estimated deficit of the FY 2010-11 Budget.  Similar 
deficits have been predicted in 2009 an 2010, with the year-end audits showing deficits that 
were appreciably less than estimated by the budgets.  The 2010 audit showed a $186,277 
deficit, as compared to the $604,457 deficit estimated by the approved budget.  LCRA staff are 
committed to control costs and seek projects that will generate revenues for the LCRA. 
 
Conclusion. 
The FY 2011-12 Budget provides an annual financial plan for the District that is justified and 
necessary for the District to continue its valuable service for western Ventura County.  The 
Budget has been compiled and reviewed vigorously by staff, management, Finance Committee 
and the Board of Directors.  At this time, the budget does not call for an increase in water rates, 
but there are several looming debts that are likely to cause a reconsideration of the various 
rates and charges of the District.  The capital projects are maintenance and replacement 
projects that are necessary to continue reliable water service, reduce future costs, and maintain 
the integrity of existing infrastructure. 
 
If there are any questions in regard to this matter, please do not hesitate to discuss any and all 
questions with me. 
 



Capital Projects Listing by Section: 
 
Engineering: 
Protect Casitas Gravity Main $37,500
Rincon 2(M) Main Replacement – La Conchita $1,100,000
Reservoir Maintenance – 5-year Inspection $35,000
Replace Main Office lighting – Investigate HVAC Replacement (VCERA) $100,000
Maintain Reservoir Roads and Rings $20,000
Reservoir Safety & Security Improvements $15,000
Robles Diffuser Panels $70,000

Subtotal $1,377,500
 
Water Quality: 
Aeration System Study $100,000

Subtotal $100,000
 
Electrical Mechanical: 
Fairview Pump Plant Switch Gear/Electrical Refurbishment $410,000
Ventura Avenue No. 1 Pump Plant Unit 4 Globe Valve $18,000
SCADA CP-1 Split and Upgrade $81,500
Pump Plant Electrical Rehabilitation $170,000
Ventura Avenue #2 Pump Plant Transformer Replacement $100,000

Subtotal $779,500
 
Pipeline/Garage: 
Valve Replacement – Matilija Conduit $32,000
Valve Replacement – Gravity $28,000
Valve Replacement – Oak View $94,500
Vehicle $25,000

Subtotal $179,500
 
Water Treatment & Operations: 
Filter # 1 Internal Coating Repair (Last One!) $250,000
Repair Coating on Dam Screen Hoist Structure $80,000
Metering System Upgrade to AMR system – Coastal Communities $140,000

Subtotal $470,000
 
District Maintenance: 
Casitas No. 2 Chlorination Station Roof Replacement and paint $28,000

Subtotal $28,000
 
Recreation Maintenance: 
Road Maintenance $75,000
Play structure Repair and Maintenance  $20,000
Front Entrance Improvements $39,000

Subtotal $134,000
 
Recreation – Water Playground: 
Resurface River and repair Splash Pads $75,000

Subtotal $75,000
 

Total Capital Projects $3,118,500
 



Casitas Municipal Water District
Revenue 2011-2012
Board Approved

Revenue
Water Sales - Residential

11-4-00 4000-00 Water Sales - Residential Gravity 17,944
11-4-00 4001-00 Water Sales - Residential Pumped 864,256

Water Sales - Business
11-4-00 4010-00 Water Sales - Business Gravity 869
11-4-00 4011-00 Water Sales - Business Pumped 400,020

Water Sales Industrial
11-4-00 4020-00 Water Sales - Industrial Gravity 0
11-4-00 4021-00 Water Sales - Industrial Pumped 24,948

Water Sales - Resale
11-4-00 4030-00 Water Sales - Resale Gravity 1,951,592
11-4-00 4031-00 Water Sales - Resale Pumped 330,124

Water Sales - Other
11-4-00 4040-00 Water Sales - Temporary Meter - Pumped 4,932
11-4-00 4041-00 Water Sales - Other Water Sales - Gravity 12,355
11-4-00 4042-00 Water Sales - Other Water Sales - Pumped 116,709

Water Sales - Fire Prevention
11-4-00 4050-00 Fire Prevention - General 7,095
11-4-00 4051-00 Fire Prevention - Hydrants 0

Water Sales - Agriculture Domestic
11-4-00 4060-00 Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Gravity 49,742
11-4-00 4061-00 Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Pumped 1,328,059

Water Sales - Agriculture
11-4-00 4070-00 Water Sales - Agricultural - Gravity 36,981
11-4-00 4071-00 Water Sales - Agricultural - Pumped 792,840

Water Sales - Interdepartmental
11-4-00 4080-00 Water Sales - Recreation - Gravity 0
11-4-00 4081-00 Water Sales - Recreation - Pumped 47,627 5,986,090.82

14895 AF
Water Services - Other

11-4-00 4090-00 Capital Facilities Charge 500
11-4-00 4091-00 Energy Surcharge 0
11-4-00 4092-00 Forfeited Deposits / Penalties 0
11-4-00 4093-00 Meter Tests and Installations 5,000
11-4-00 4094-00 Sale of Plans or Bid Packets 45
11-4-00 4095-00 Temporary Installation 0
11-4-00 4096-00 Water Storage Valuation 0
11-4-00 4097-00 Work Order Close Revenue 0
11-4-00 4098-00 Meter Standby Fees 1,903,673
11-4-00 4099-00 Pump Charges 0 1,909,218.00

Revenue - Interest
11-4-00 4100-00 1% Tax Allocation 0
11-4-00 4105-00 Assessments - Oak View 0
11-4-00 4110-00 Interest on BPC and Taormina 0
11-4-00 4115-00 Interest on Time Deposits and Investments 288,767
11-4-00 4120-00 Protested Tax Apportionment 0 288,767.00

Revenue - Taxes and Assessments

Page 1 of 3



11-4-00 4200-00 1 %  - Secured Current General Fund 1,858,318
11-4-00 4205-00 1 % - Redemption & In Lieu 0
11-4-00 4210-00 1 % - Secured Prior Year General Fund 0
11-4-00 4215-00 1 % - Unsecured Current General Fund 0
11-4-00 4220-00 1 % - Unsecured Prior Year General Fund 0
11-4-00 4225-00 Availability Charge Current - Oak View 7,500
11-4-00 4230-00 Availability Charge Prior Year - Oak View 0
11-4-00 4105-00 MMWS - Tax Secured 19,500
11-4-00 4235-00 Miscellaneous Revenue - Taxes and Assessments 0 1,885,318.20

Revenue - Other Governmental Agencies
11-4-00 4300-00 Federal Disaster Assistance 0
11-4-00 4305-00 Grant Revenue - Federal 0
11-4-00 4310-00 Local - City of Ventura USGS 0
11-4-00 4315-00 State - Homeowners Property Tax 0
11-4-00 4320-00 State - Other 0 0.00

Revenue - Delinquency On-Off Fees / Water
11-4-00 4350-00 Hang Tag Fee 20,069
11-4-00 4351-00 Turn Off Fee 3,120
11-4-00 4352-00 Turn On Fee 3,120
11-4-00 4353-00 Late Fee - Residential 22,704
11-4-00 4357-00 Late Fee - Business 6,345
11-4-00 4361-00 Late Fee - Industrial 164
11-4-00 4365-00 Late Fee - Resale 23,884
11-4-00 4369-00 Late Fee - Other 757
11-4-00 4373-00 Late Fee - Fire Prevention 6,007
11-4-00 4377-00 Late Fee - Agriculture Domestic 4,047
11-4-00 4381-00 Late Fee - Agriculture 420
11-4-00 4385-00 Late Fee - Interdepartmental 0
11-4-00 4395-00 N.S.F. - Returned Check Fee 500 91,137.70

Revenue - Other 
11-4-00 4400-00 Flexible Storage 3,784
11-4-00 4405-00 Gain / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0
11-4-00 4410-00 Grant Revenue - Other 379,682 Prop 50 Grant / St
11-4-00 4415-00 Habitat Conservation Plan 0
11-4-00 4420-00 Miscellaneous Revenue - Other 25,000
11-4-00 4425-00 Sale of Fixed Assets 0
11-4-00 4430-00 Variation in Water Sales 0 408,466.00

Revenue - Park Entrance Fees and Permits / Recreation
11-4-62 4500-00 Animal Permit 26,125
11-4-62 4505-00 Area Use Permits - Recreation 0
11-4-62 4510-00 Boat Fees - Annual 57,000
11-4-62 4515-00 Boat Fees - Daily 14,250
11-4-62 4520-00 Boat Fees Annual - Refund Quagga 0
11-4-62 4525-00 Boat Inspection Fees - Quagga 6,000
11-4-62 4530-00 Boat Fees - Overnight 1,900
11-4-62 4535-00 Boat Lock Revenue - Quagga 9,310
11-4-62 4540-00 Boating Grant - Lauching Facility - Archived 0
11-4-62 4542-00 Café Pass Fee 22,000
11-4-63 4543-00 Café Pass Reimbursement -22,000
11-4-62 4545-00 Camping Fees 1,516,220
11-4-62 4550-00 Camping Promotion 0
11-4-62 4555-00 Commercials - Recreation 3,000
11-4-62 4560-00 Deposit Forfeit 0
11-4-62 4565-00 Donation vouchers 0
11-4-62 4570-00 Events - Recreation 42,000
11-4-62 4575-00 Event Reimbursement - Recreation 400
11-4-62 4580-00 Federal Disaster Assistance - Recreation 0

Page 2 of 3



11-4-62 4585-00 Gift Cards and Certificates 500
11-4-62 4590-00 Grants - Recreation 0
11-4-62 4595-00 Guest Pass - Recreation 0
11-4-62 4600-00 Kayak & Canoes Annual - Recreation 3,000
11-4-62 4605-00 Kayak and Canoes Daily - Recreation 400
11-4-62 4610-00 Miscellaneous Revenue 1,000
11-4-62 4615-00 Miscellaneous Revenue - Refunds Quagga 0
11-4-62 4620-00 Rain Checks - Recreation -2,000
11-4-62 4625-00 Reservations 113,740
11-4-62 4630-00 Shower Facility Fees 21,000
11-4-62 4635-00 Trailer Storage Fees 171,000
11-4-62 4640-00 Vehicle Fees - Daily 438,000
11-4-62 4645-00 Violation Ordinance Fees 18,000
11-4-62 4650-00 Visitor Cards 129,200
11-4-62 4655-00 Visitor Cards - Refunds Quagga 0
11-4-62 4660-00 Wi-Fi Internet Fees 0 2,570,045.00

Revenue - Concessions / Recreation
11-4-62 4700-00 Bicycles - Concession 8,000
11-4-62 4705-00 Boat Rental - Concession 85,000
11-4-62 4710-00 Boat Rentals - Recreation - Archived 0
11-4-62 4715-00 Gasoline - Concession 100
11-4-62 4720-00 Park Store - Recreation 16,000
11-4-62 4725-00 Snack Bar - Concession 30,000
11-4-62 4730-00 Telephone - Recreation 0
11-4-62 4735-00 Trailer Rental Concession 0
11-4-62 4740-00 Water Park Snack Bar 5,000
11-4-62 4745-00 Wildlife Tours Concession 0 144,100.00

Revenue - Water Park
11-4-65 4800-00 Water Park - Cooler Fees 0
11-4-65 4805-00 Water Park - Five after Five Fee 63,650
11-4-65 4810-00 Water Park - Group Pass Fee 55,660
11-4-65 4815-00 Water Park - Junior Lifeguard Fee 6,000
11-4-66 4818-00 Water Park - Lifeguard Training Materials 1,750
11-4-65 4820-00 Water Park - Locker Fee 2,000
11-4-65 4825-00 Water Park - Next Day Pass Fee 22,560
11-4-65 4830-00 Water Park - Gift Certificates 0
11-4-65 4835-00 Water Park - Rain Checks -5,000
11-4-65 4840-00 Water Park - Reservation Fee 6,000
11-4-65 4845-00 Water Park - Season Pass Fee 7,200
11-4-65 4850-00 Water Park - Shade Rental Fee 4,200
11-4-65 4855-00 Water Park - Shower Facility Fees 13,000
11-4-65 4860-00 Water Park - Single Splash Fee 543,400
11-4-65 4865-00 Water Park - Special Event Fee 500
11-4-65 4870-00 Water Park - Water Fitness - Fee 7,500 728,420.00

Revenue - Other / Recreation
11-4-62 4900-00 Collection Over / Short - Recreation OP 0
11-4-65 4900-00 Collection Over / Short - Recreation WP 0

Total Revenue 14,011,563 14,011,562.72

Page 3 of 3



Casitas Municipal Water District
Budget Revenue, Expenses & Capital
2011/2012
Board Approved 2011/2012 2010/2011

14,895 AF 15,886 AF
Revenue 14,011,562.72 14,741,403.31

               Expenses

Administration 220,908.89 103,138.98
Board of Directors 162,547.27 180,980.65
District Maintenance 323,122.69 317,008.69
Electrical Mechanical 2,037,005.17 2,116,573.02
Engineering 555,862.54 452,520.04
Fisheries 382,643.54 366,684.17
Information Technology 188,836.86 187,892.73
Management 807,534.46 838,647.00
Pipeline, Garage & Warehouse 875,212.74 737,312.52
Water Conservation - P/R 902,079.54 919,643.91
Recreation, Operations, Maint, PR & Water Pk 3,384,752.98 3,606,340.67
Retirees 513,856.36 428,941.72
Water Quality, Lab 273,684.86 280,413.52
Water Treatment 1,683,338.08 1,606,534.71

Total Expenses 12,311,385.99 12,142,632.33

Net 1,700,176.73 2,598,770.98

           Capital

Administration 0.00 0.00
Board of Directors 0.00 0.00
District Maintenance 28,000.00 145,000.00
Electrical Mechanical 779,500.00 693,230.00
Engineering 1,377,500.00 1,786,343.00
Fisheries 0.00 0.00
Information Technology 0.00 8,000.00
Management 0.00 0.00
Pipeline, Garage & Warehouse 179,500.00 237,100.00
Water Conservation - P/R 0.00 0.00
Recreation, Operations, Maint, PR & Water Pk 209,000.00 471,500.00
Retirees 0.00 0.00
Water Quality, Lab 100,000.00 0.00
Water Treatment 470,000.00 386,250.00

3,143,500.00 3,727,423.00

Net assets, end of year -1,443,323.27 -1,128,652.02

Funding Deficit from Available Storm Damage Reserves 0.00 772,192.00
Funding Deficit from Available Un-Restricted Reserves 343,323.27 356,460.02
Funding Deficit from Available Capital Improvement Reserves 1,100,000.00 0.00

Net assets, End of Year 0.00 0.00

Prepared by dcollin 06/17/2011 Page 1



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    1

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

 

NON DEPARTMENTAL

  WATER SALES                                       6,650,795      4,950,058     5,986,093     5,986,093     5,986,093

  WATER SERVICES                                    1,993,782      1,787,521     1,908,718     1,908,718     1,908,718

  WATER DELINQUNCY                                     73,574         85,743        91,136        91,136        91,136

  WATER REVENUE OTHER                                 505,142        286,856       408,466       408,466       408,466

  CAPITAL FACILITIES                                        0          1,500           500           500           500

  INTEREST                                            129,500        237,225       308,267       308,267       308,267

  TAXES & ASSESSMENTS                               1,752,131      1,911,479     1,865,818     1,865,818     1,865,818

  OTHER GOVT. AGENCIES                                      0         16,408             0             0             0

  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES                                    0         22,992             0             0             0

      TOTAL NON DEPARTMENTAL                       11,104,924      9,299,781    10,568,998    10,568,998    10,568,998

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

  RECREATION PARK                                   2,689,980      2,037,057     2,570,045     2,570,045     2,570,045

  RECREATION-CONCESSION                               149,000        101,529       139,100       139,100       139,100

  RECREATION OTHER                                          0            364             0             0             0

      TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                 2,838,980      2,138,950     2,709,145     2,709,145     2,709,145

RECREATION - WATER PARK

  RECREATION-CONCESSION                                21,000          3,148         5,000         5,000         5,000

  RECREATION-WATER PARK                               776,500        562,604       728,420       728,420       728,420

  RECREATION OTHER                                          0            201             0             0             0

      TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                   797,500        565,953       733,420       733,420       733,420

TOTAL REVENUE                                      14,741,404     12,004,685    14,011,563    14,011,563    14,011,563



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    2

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

RETIREES

  Benefits                                            428,941        384,181       513,857       513,857       513,857

      TOTAL RETIREES                                  428,941        384,181       513,857       513,857       513,857

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

  Salaries                                             63,978         49,950        57,477        61,580        61,580

  Benefits                                             76,703         58,735        84,752        85,066        85,066

  Services & Supplies                                  40,300         22,335        15,900        15,900        15,900

      TOTAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS                        180,981        131,019       158,129       162,546       162,546

MANAGEMENT

  Salaries                                            287,653        266,316       290,263       290,263       292,428

  Benefits                                            101,299         85,806       109,888       109,888       110,385

  Services & Supplies                                 449,694        343,049       274,722       404,722       404,722

      TOTAL MANAGEMENT                                838,646        695,172       674,873       804,873       807,535

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

  Salaries                                            114,205        106,942       115,233       115,233       115,233

  Benefits                                             43,704         37,148        48,274        48,274        48,274

  Services & Supplies                                  29,984         15,534        25,330        25,330        25,330

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                              8,000              0             0             0             0

      TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                    195,893        159,624       188,837       188,837       188,837

WATER CONSERVATION

  Salaries                                            195,957        183,244       261,475       261,475       265,446

  Benefits                                             55,432         50,370        67,080        67,080        67,989

  Services & Supplies                                 668,255         65,003        92,529        92,529        92,529

  Salaries - Work Orders                                    0              0         4,462         4,462         4,550

  Benefits - Work Orders                                    0              0         1,024         1,024         1,044

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                                  0         73,913       470,523       470,523       470,523

      TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION                        919,644        372,531       897,093       897,093       902,081

FISHERIES

  Salaries                                            218,269        199,903       224,934       224,934       227,098

  Benefits                                             65,528         67,453        71,263        71,263        71,759

  Services & Supplies                                  82,887         26,100        83,537        83,787        83,787

      TOTAL FISHERIES                                 366,684        293,456       379,734       379,984       382,644

ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

  Salaries                                            366,098        333,435       373,922       373,922       376,629

  Benefits                                            149,564        128,313       164,578       164,578       165,199

  Services & Supplies                                 527,502        450,738       503,932       503,932       503,932

  Other Operating Expenses                       (    940,025)           100  (    823,489) (    823,489) (    824,851)

      TOTAL ADMINISTRATION SERVICES                   103,139        912,586       218,943       218,943       220,909



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    3

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WAREHOUSE

  Salaries                                              8,234              0         8,715         8,715         8,715

  Benefits                                              1,808              0         1,999         1,999         1,999

  Services & Supplies                                   9,620          4,993         9,420         9,420         9,420

      TOTAL WAREHOUSE                                  19,662          4,993        20,134        20,134        20,134

GARAGE

  Salaries                                             17,292              0        18,301        18,301        18,301

  Benefits                                              3,796              0         4,199         4,199         4,199

  Services & Supplies                            (     57,550)  (     36,506)       31,250        31,250        31,250

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             60,500              0             0             0        25,000

      TOTAL GARAGE                                     24,038   (     36,506)       53,750        53,750        78,750

ENGINEERING

  Salaries                                            267,478        220,438       341,148       341,148       344,210

  Benefits                                            102,118         86,516       137,278       137,278       140,651

  Services & Supplies                                  82,924         51,012        80,975        73,675        71,000

  Salaries - Work Orders                               68,344         83,522             0             0             0

  Benefits - Work Orders                               15,000         17,105             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                          1,703,000        952,015     1,692,500     1,307,500     1,377,500

      TOTAL ENGINEERING                             2,238,864      1,410,607     2,251,901     1,859,601     1,933,361

WATER QUALITY - LAB

  Salaries                                            142,151        129,085       146,001       146,001       146,001

  Benefits                                             56,409         50,020        61,435        61,435        61,435

  Services & Supplies                                  81,855         74,565        68,189        66,250        66,250

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                                  0              0       100,000       100,000       100,000

      TOTAL WATER QUALITY - LAB                       280,415        253,670       375,625       373,686       373,686

ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL

  Salaries                                            400,327        333,577       377,658       377,658       378,596

  Benefits                                            165,743        119,948       162,224       162,224       162,442

  Services & Supplies                               1,550,503        921,550     1,489,409     1,495,969     1,495,969

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            693,230        342,427       514,550       779,500       779,500

      TOTAL ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL                   2,809,803      1,717,501     2,543,841     2,815,351     2,816,507

DIST MAINT - PIPELINE

  Salaries                                            257,927        303,095       269,056       269,056       269,056

  Benefits                                            124,882        116,911       141,899       141,899       141,899

  Services & Supplies                                 371,304        171,759       390,374       390,374       390,374

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            176,600         26,833       154,500       154,500       154,500

      TOTAL DIST MAINT - PIPELINE                     930,713        618,597       955,829       955,829       955,829

WATER TREATMENT

  Salaries                                            666,265        628,193       692,910       683,206       684,905

  Benefits                                            283,419        236,869       315,807       313,561       313,949

  Services & Supplies                                 656,850        414,934       704,483       684,483       684,483



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    4

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            386,250        342,034       470,000       470,000       470,000

      TOTAL WATER TREATMENT                         1,992,784      1,622,030     2,183,200     2,151,250     2,153,337

OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE

  Salaries                                            181,966        116,033       185,360       185,360       185,360

  Benefits                                             39,049         26,519        40,119        40,119        40,119

  Services & Supplies                                  95,994         44,538       100,944        97,644        97,644

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            285,000        155,099       118,000        28,000        28,000

      TOTAL OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE                  602,009        342,189       444,423       351,123       351,123

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

  Salaries                                            642,770        561,587       643,785       643,785       646,060

  Benefits                                            203,379        152,321       182,577       182,577       183,099

  Services & Supplies                                 336,161        271,655       293,755       286,155       286,155

  Other Operating Expenses                            461,294              0       402,504       402,504       403,866

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             37,000         32,799             0             0             0

      TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                 1,680,604      1,018,362     1,522,621     1,515,021     1,519,180

RECREATION - MAINTENANCE

  Salaries                                            309,619        288,292       323,396       323,396       323,396

  Benefits                                             91,986         74,426        82,642        82,642        82,642

  Services & Supplies                                 348,574        314,157       375,631       343,646       343,646

  Other Operating Expenses                            218,969              0       197,764       197,764       197,764

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            188,500         75,041       134,000       134,000       134,000

      TOTAL RECREATION - MAINTENANCE                1,157,648        751,917     1,113,433     1,081,448     1,081,448

RECREATION - PUBLIC REL

  Salaries                                             91,917         69,494        78,327        78,327        78,327

  Benefits                                              8,926          6,333         7,204         7,204         7,204

  Services & Supplies                                  86,850         76,030        90,150        90,150        90,150

  Other Operating Expenses                             54,960              0        41,645        41,645        41,645

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             31,000         14,999             0             0             0

      TOTAL RECREATION - PUBLIC REL                   273,653        166,856       217,326       217,326       217,326

RECREATION - WATER PARK

  Salaries                                            337,217        202,499       339,683       339,683       339,683

  Benefits                                             38,566         20,530        33,240        33,240        33,240

  Services & Supplies                                 170,350        119,034       146,300       146,300       146,300

  Other Operating Expenses                            204,802              0       181,576       181,576       181,576

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             75,000         42,045        75,000        75,000        75,000

      TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                   825,935        384,107       775,799       775,799       775,799

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                 15,870,056     11,202,894    15,489,348    15,336,451    15,454,889

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                (  1,128,652)       801,790  (  1,477,785) (  1,324,888) (  1,443,326)



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    5

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

NON DEPARTMENTAL

================

WATER SALES

  Water Sales - Residential Grav                       23,575         13,658        17,944        17,944        17,944

  Water Sales - Residential Pump                      925,861        801,743       864,256       864,256       864,256

  Water Sales - Business Gravity                          996            870           869           869           869

  Water Sales - Business Pumped                       427,050        367,036       400,020       400,020       400,020

  Water Sales - Industrial Pumpe                       26,588         31,573        24,948        24,948        24,948

  Water Sales - Resale Gravity                      1,822,145      1,731,783     1,951,592     1,951,592     1,951,592

  Water Sales - Resale Pumped                         534,362        121,010       330,124       330,124       330,124

  Water Sales - Temporary Meter                         7,208          3,896         4,932         4,932         4,932

  Water Sales - Other Water Sale                       14,185         12,044        12,355        12,355        12,355

  Water Sales - Other Water Sale                      127,752        100,850       116,709       116,709       116,709

  Water Sales - Fire Prev Genera                        6,834          6,923         7,095         7,095         7,095

  Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Gr                       67,277         45,833        49,742        49,742        49,742

  Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Pu                    1,577,675      1,003,002     1,328,059     1,328,059     1,328,059

  Water Sales - Agricultural - G                       42,938         31,120        36,981        36,981        36,981

  Water Sales - Agricultural - P                      991,219        633,310       792,840       792,840       792,840

  Water Sales - Recrecation - Pu                       55,130         45,408        47,627        47,627        47,627

   TOTAL WATER SALES                                6,650,795      4,950,058     5,986,093     5,986,093     5,986,093

WATER SERVICES

  Meter Tests & Installations                           1,000          6,735         5,000         5,000         5,000

  Sale of Plans or Bid Packets                             65             40            45            45            45

  Meter Standby Fees                                1,992,717      1,780,746     1,903,673     1,903,673     1,903,673

   TOTAL WATER SERVICES                             1,993,782      1,787,521     1,908,718     1,908,718     1,908,718

WATER DELINQUNCY

  Hang Tag Fee                                         20,140         17,729        20,068        20,068        20,068

  Turn Off Fee                                          3,200          2,880         3,120         3,120         3,120

  Turn On Fee                                           3,200          2,880         3,120         3,120         3,120

  Late Fee - Residential                               23,133         22,366        22,704        22,704        22,704

  Late Fee - Business                                   1,689          4,963         6,345         6,345         6,345

  Late Fee - Industrial                                    98          1,000           164           164           164

  Late Fee - Resale                                    12,928         24,964        23,884        23,884        23,884

  Late Fee - Other                                        848            683           757           757           757

  Late Fee - Fire Prevention                                0              0         6,007         6,007         6,007

  Late Fee - Agriculture Domesti                        5,201          5,145         4,047         4,047         4,047

  Late Fee - Agriculture                                2,717          2,532           420           420           420

  N.S.F. - Returned Check Fee                             420            600           500           500           500

   TOTAL WATER DELINQUNCY                              73,574         85,743        91,136        91,136        91,136

WATER REVENUE OTHER

  Flexible Storage                                      3,784          3,784         3,784         3,784         3,784

  Grant Revenue - Other                               458,462         70,311       379,682       379,682       379,682



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    6

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Miscellaneous Revenue - Other                        42,896        212,760        25,000        25,000        25,000

   TOTAL WATER REVENUE OTHER                          505,142        286,856       408,466       408,466       408,466

CAPITAL FACILITIES

  Capital Facilities Charge                                 0          1,500           500           500           500

   TOTAL CAPITAL FACILITIES                                 0          1,500           500           500           500

INTEREST

  1% Tax Allocation                                         0          5,739             0             0             0

  Assessments - Oak View                               19,500             22        19,500        19,500        19,500

  Interest on Time Deposits and                       110,000        231,464       288,767       288,767       288,767

   TOTAL INTEREST                                     129,500        237,225       308,267       308,267       308,267

TAXES & ASSESSMENTS

  1 %  - Secured Current General                    1,744,631      1,797,899     1,858,318     1,858,318     1,858,318

  1 % - Redemption & In Lieu                                0            457             0             0             0

  1 % - Secured Prior Year Gener                            0         33,640             0             0             0

  1 % - Unsecured Current Genera                            0         70,857             0             0             0

  1 % - Unsecured Prior Year Gen                            0          1,239             0             0             0

  Availability Charge Current -                         7,500          7,310         7,500         7,500         7,500

  Availability Charge Prior Year                            0             77             0             0             0

   TOTAL TAXES & ASSESSMENTS                        1,752,131      1,911,479     1,865,818     1,865,818     1,865,818

OTHER GOVT. AGENCIES

  State - Homeowners Property Ta                            0         16,408             0             0             0

   TOTAL OTHER GOVT. AGENCIES                               0         16,408             0             0             0

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

  RDA - Pass Through                                        0         22,992             0             0             0

   TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES                             0         22,992             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   TOTAL NON DEPARTMENTAL                          11,104,924      9,299,781    10,568,998    10,568,998    10,568,998

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

=======================

RECREATION PARK

  Animal Permit                                        27,500         15,406        26,125        26,125        26,125

  Boat Fees - Annual                                   60,000         55,009        57,000        57,000        57,000

  Boat Fees - Daily                                    15,000         11,906        14,250        14,250        14,250

  Boat Inspection Fees - Quagga                         6,000          6,241         6,000         6,000         6,000

  Boat Fees - Overnight                                 2,000          1,813         1,900         1,900         1,900

  Boat Lock Revenue - Quagga                            9,800          7,837         9,310         9,310         9,310

  Boating Grant - Lauching Facil                            0   (         10)            0             0             0

  Cafe Pass Fee                                             0         20,115        22,000        22,000        22,000

  Cafe Pass Reimbursment                                    0   (     17,932) (     22,000) (     22,000) (     22,000)

  Camping Fees                                      1,613,000      1,225,637     1,516,220     1,516,220     1,516,220

  Commercials - Recreation                              7,500              0         3,000         3,000         3,000



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    7

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Donation vouchers                                         0   (        765)            0             0             0

  Events - Recreation                                  42,000         23,589        42,000        42,000        42,000

  Event Reimbursment - Recreatio                          200          1,374           400           400           400

  Gift Cards and Certificates                               0             65           500           500           500

  Guest Pass - Recreation                                   0   (        435)            0             0             0

  Kayak & Canoes Annual - Recrea                        3,180          3,070         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Kayak and Canoes Daily - Recrr                            0            303           400           400           400

  Miscellaneous Revenue                                 4,500          1,511         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Rain Checks - Recreation                       (      5,700)  (      2,004) (      2,000) (      2,000) (      2,000)

  Reservations                                        121,000         85,193       113,740       113,740       113,740

  Shower Facility Fees                                 21,000         13,263        21,000        21,000        21,000

  Trailer Storage Fees                                171,000        162,353       171,000       171,000       171,000

  Vehicle Fees - Daily                                438,000        282,143       438,000       438,000       438,000

  Violation Ordinance Fees                             18,000         14,720        18,000        18,000        18,000

  Visitor Cards                                       136,000        126,656       129,200       129,200       129,200

   TOTAL RECREATION PARK                            2,689,980      2,037,057     2,570,045     2,570,045     2,570,045

RECREATION-CONCESSION

  Bicycles - Concession                                 6,900          6,743         8,000         8,000         8,000

  Boat Rental - Concession                             77,000         71,804        85,000        85,000        85,000

  Gasoline - Concession                                   100             77           100           100           100

  Park Store - Recreation                              43,000          1,661        16,000        16,000        16,000

  Cafe - Concession                                    22,000         21,233        30,000        30,000        30,000

  Telephone - Recreation                                    0             12             0             0             0

   TOTAL RECREATION-CONCESSION                        149,000        101,529       139,100       139,100       139,100

RECREATION OTHER

  Over / Short - Recreation                                 0            364             0             0             0

   TOTAL RECREATION OTHER                                   0            364             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                    2,838,980      2,138,950     2,709,145     2,709,145     2,709,145

RECREATION - WATER PARK

=======================

RECREATION-CONCESSION

  Water Park Snack Bar                                 21,000          3,148         5,000         5,000         5,000

   TOTAL RECREATION-CONCESSION                         21,000          3,148         5,000         5,000         5,000

RECREATION-WATER PARK

  Water Park - Late Day Pass Fee                       67,000         50,140        63,650        63,650        63,650

  Water Park - Group Pass Fee                          60,500         32,770        55,660        55,660        55,660

  Water Park - Junior Lifeguard                        12,000             80         6,000         6,000         6,000

  Water Park - Lifeguard Trainin                            0          2,320         1,750         1,750         1,750

  Water Park - Locker Fee                               2,000            855         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Water Park - Miscellaneous Rev                            0            539             0             0             0

  Water Park - Next Day Pass Fee                       24,000         10,610        22,560        22,560        22,560

  Water Park - Promotion                                    0   (         12)            0             0             0



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    8

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Water Park - Rain Checks                       (      5,000)  (      4,062) (      5,000) (      5,000) (      5,000)

  Water Park - Reservation Fee                         10,000          4,365         6,000         6,000         6,000

  Water Park - Season Pass Fee                         12,000          5,200         7,200         7,200         7,200

  Water Park - Shade Rental Fee                         7,000          3,330         4,200         4,200         4,200

  Water Park - Shower Facility F                       13,000         12,568        13,000        13,000        13,000

  Water Park - Single Splash Fee                      572,000        437,870       543,400       543,400       543,400

  Water Park - Special Event Fee                          500              0           500           500           500

  Water Park - Water Fitness - F                        1,500          6,032         7,500         7,500         7,500

   TOTAL RECREATION-WATER PARK                        776,500        562,604       728,420       728,420       728,420

RECREATION OTHER

  Over / Short - Water Park                                 0            201             0             0             0

   TOTAL RECREATION OTHER                                   0            201             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                      797,500        565,953       733,420       733,420       733,420

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                                      14,741,404     12,004,685    14,011,563    14,011,563    14,011,563



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    9

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RETIREES

========

Benefits

  Insurance - Group Life                                    0            523             0             0             0

  Insurance - Group Health                            397,371        356,514       479,121       479,121       479,121

  Insurance - Group Dental                             26,966         23,232        29,821        29,821        29,821

  Insurance - Group Vision                              4,604          3,912         4,915         4,915         4,915

   TOTAL Benefits                                     428,941        384,181       513,857       513,857       513,857

Services & Supplies                               ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RETIREES                                       428,941        384,181       513,857       513,857       513,857



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   10

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

==================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     63,978         49,950        57,477        61,580        61,580

   TOTAL Salaries                                      63,978         49,950        57,477        61,580        61,580

Benefits

  Social Security Expense                               3,967          3,097         3,564         3,818         3,818

  Medicare Expense                                        928            724           833           893           893

  Insurance - Group Life                                  235            168           229           229           229

  Insurance - Group Health                             66,511         50,909        74,854        74,854        74,854

  Insurance - Group Dental                              4,456          3,383         4,658         4,658         4,658

  Insurance - Group Vision                                606            454           614           614           614

   TOTAL Benefits                                      76,703         58,735        84,752        85,066        85,066

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                      100              0             0             0             0

  Service & Supplies                                   10,700              0           200           200           200

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                              0             53           100           100           100

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            100              0           100           100           100

  Outside Contracts                                       100              0             0             0             0

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          250              0             0             0             0

  Printing & Binding                                       50              0             0             0             0

  Private Vehicle Mileage                               3,000          2,989         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Travel Expense                                        6,000          6,154         7,500         7,500         7,500

  Directors Election Fees                              15,000          8,419             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                         5,000          4,720         5,000         5,000         5,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           40,300         22,335        15,900        15,900        15,900

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS                             180,981        131,019       158,129       162,546       162,546



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   11

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

MANAGEMENT

==========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    236,364        230,953       238,510       238,510       240,289

  Vacation Pay                                         25,141         20,835        25,369        25,369        25,558

  Jury Duty                                               489              0           493           493           497

  Sick Pay                                              6,674          3,593         6,734         6,734         6,784

  Holiday Pay                                          18,985         10,935        19,157        19,157        19,300

   TOTAL Salaries                                     287,653        266,316       290,263       290,263       292,428

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            41,146         37,572        44,396        44,396        44,727

  Social Security Expense                              17,834         12,041        17,996        17,996        18,131

  Medicare Expense                                      4,171          3,917         4,209         4,209         4,240

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,599          1,246         1,550         1,550         1,550

  Insurance - Group Health                             33,561         28,666        38,723        38,723        38,723

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,646          2,168         2,768         2,768         2,768

  Insurance - Group Vision                                242            198           246           246           246

  Insurance - Unemployment                                100              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                     101,299         85,806       109,888       109,888       110,385

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                        0              7             0             0             0

  Service & Supplies                                    8,400          4,155         5,200         5,200         5,200

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                              0          2,024         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Outside Contracts                                    11,000          6,200             0             0             0

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        1,000            906             0             0             0

  Membership & Dues                                    92,335         83,219        92,335        92,335        92,335

  Printing & Binding                                      300              0           300           300           300

  Books & Publications                                  3,000          2,762         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Office Supplies                                         200              0           200           200           200

  Postage Expense                                         300             36           200           200           200

  Other Professional Fees                             320,000        223,000       160,000       290,000       290,000

  Licenses & Permits                                      200            244           300           300           300

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             200              0           200           200           200

  Private Vehicle Mileage                               3,000          1,769         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Travel Expense                                        4,900         17,271         3,700         3,700         3,700

  Education & Training Seminars                         4,700          1,308         3,200         3,200         3,200

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                            72             78             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           87             70            87            87            87

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          449,694        343,049       274,722       404,722       404,722

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   12

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MANAGEMENT                                     838,646        695,172       674,873       804,873       807,535



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   13

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     93,841         93,530        94,687        94,687        94,687

  Overtime Pay                                              0          1,110             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                          9,982          7,452        10,072        10,072        10,072

  Jury Duty                                               194              0           196           196           196

  Sick Pay                                              2,650            873         2,673         2,673         2,673

  Holiday Pay                                           7,538          3,977         7,605         7,605         7,605

   TOTAL Salaries                                     114,205        106,942       115,233       115,233       115,233

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            16,336         14,909        17,625        17,625        17,625

  Social Security Expense                               7,081          6,111         7,144         7,144         7,144

  Medicare Expense                                      1,656          1,571         1,671         1,671         1,671

  Insurance - Group Life                                  457            356           443           443           443

  Insurance - Group Health                             16,730         13,018        19,884        19,884        19,884

  Insurance - Group Dental                              1,323          1,084         1,384         1,384         1,384

  Insurance - Group Vision                                121             99           123           123           123

   TOTAL Benefits                                      43,704         37,148        48,274        48,274        48,274

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    1,000            616         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Service & Supplies                                    2,900            772         2,900         2,900         2,900

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          1,500            474         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Computer Upgrades - Software                         12,025          8,860         3,200         3,200         3,200

  Outside Contracts                                    11,465          4,047        11,980        11,980        11,980

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          750            582           750           750           750

  Books & Publications                                    100              0           100           100           100

  Small Tools                                             100             53           100           100           100

  Safety Program                                          100              0           100           100           100

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                   0             17             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                             0              0         1,200         1,200         1,200

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             78             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           44             35             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           29,984         15,534        25,330        25,330        25,330

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                   8,000              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                       8,000              0             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                         195,893        159,624       188,837       188,837       188,837



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   14

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WATER CONSERVATION

==================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    145,563        148,357       155,784       155,784       159,046

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          15,454         11,814        59,070        59,070        59,071

  Vacation Pay                                         17,127         12,731        22,853        22,853        23,200

  Jury Duty                                               334              0           445           445           451

  Sick Pay                                              4,546          3,244         6,066         6,066         6,159

  Holiday Pay                                          12,933          7,098        17,257        17,257        17,519

   TOTAL Salaries                                     195,957        183,244       261,475       261,475       265,446

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            25,819         24,302        30,958        30,958        31,565

  Social Security Expense                              12,149         11,027        16,212        16,212        16,458

  Medicare Expense                                      2,841          2,694         3,792         3,792         3,848

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,336          1,041         1,294         1,294         1,294

  Insurance - Group Health                             12,257         10,463        13,754        13,754        13,754

  Insurance - Group Dental                                788            646           824           824           824

  Insurance - Group Vision                                242            198           246           246           246

   TOTAL Benefits                                      55,432         50,370        67,080        67,080        67,989

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    3,500          2,642         3,600         3,600         3,600

  Service & Supplies                                   25,677         26,468        24,650        24,650        24,650

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          1,600            290         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            200              0           300           300           300

  Outside Contracts                                   598,570         18,653        28,000        28,000        28,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            350              0             0             0             0

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          600          1,572         1,080         1,080         1,080

  Membership & Dues                                     9,220          2,293         7,886         7,886         7,886

  Printing & Binding                                    8,500          4,458         7,500         7,500         7,500

  Books & Publications                                    800              0           200           200           200

  Postage Expense                                       9,000          4,989         8,500         8,500         8,500

  Licenses & Permits                                       50            110            50            50            50

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             600              0             0             0             0

  Public Information Program                            1,000            100             0             0             0

  Safety Program                                        2,900            500         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 600             50            75            75            75

  Travel Expense                                        2,500          1,165         2,600         2,600         2,600

  Director Fee                                              0              0         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Education & Training Seminars                         2,500          1,565         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             78             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           88             70            88            88            88

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          668,255         65,003        92,529        92,529        92,529



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   15

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders

  Regular Salaries                                          0              0         3,666         3,666         3,738

  Vacation Pay                                              0              0           390           390           398

  Jury Duty                                                 0              0             8             8             8

  Sick Pay                                                  0              0           104           104           106

  Holiday Pay                                               0              0           294           294           300

   TOTAL Salaries - Work Orders                             0              0         4,462         4,462         4,550

Benefits - Work Orders

  PERS - Retirement Expense                                 0              0           682           682           696

  Social Security Expense                                   0              0           277           277           282

  Medicar Expense                                           0              0            65            65            66

   TOTAL Benefits - Work Orders                             0              0         1,024         1,024         1,044

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Outside Contracts                                         0         73,913       470,523       470,523       470,523

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                           0         73,913       470,523       470,523       470,523

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION                             919,644        372,531       897,093       897,093       902,081



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   16

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

FISHERIES

=========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    122,196        126,891       126,624       126,624       128,404

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          51,750         44,493        52,559        52,559        52,559

  Overtime Pay                                          6,578          6,803         6,868         6,868         6,868

  Vacation Pay                                         18,502         13,472        19,060        19,060        19,248

  Jury Duty                                               361              0           371           371           375

  Sick Pay                                              4,911          2,006         5,059         5,059         5,109

  Holiday Pay                                          13,971          6,238        14,393        14,393        14,535

   TOTAL Salaries                                     218,269        199,903       224,934       224,934       227,098

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            22,878         21,315        25,315        25,315        25,645

  Social Security Expense                              13,532         12,549        13,945        13,945        14,080

  Medicare Expense                                      3,165          2,940         3,262         3,262         3,293

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,005            783           974           974           974

  Insurance - Group Health                             22,988         19,375        25,725        25,725        25,725

  Insurance - Group Dental                              1,718          1,407         1,796         1,796         1,796

  Insurance - Group Vision                                242            198           246           246           246

  Insurance - Unemployment                                  0          8,886             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                      65,528         67,453        71,263        71,263        71,759

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    3,000          4,499         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Service & Supplies                                   16,500          5,146        15,500        15,500        15,500

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          3,000            212         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            500              0           500         1,000         1,000

  Outside Contracts                                     2,000              0         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          1,500            789         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        2,150          1,811         2,150         2,150         2,150

  Membership & Dues                                     4,450             92         4,450         4,450         4,450

  Printing & Binding                                      300              0           300           300           300

  Books & Publications                                    300              0           300           300           300

  Office Supplies                                         300            157           200           200           200

  Postage Expense                                         750            203           750           750           750

  Other Professional Fees                              30,000              0        30,000        30,000        30,000

  Licenses & Permits                                      300             42           300           300           300

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 750            205           500           250           250

  Travel Expense                                       10,000         10,515        12,000        12,000        12,000

  Education & Training Seminars                         7,000          2,683         7,000         7,000         7,000

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0   (        322)            0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           87             70            87            87            87

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           82,887         26,100        83,537        83,787        83,787



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   17

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FISHERIES                                      366,684        293,456       379,734       379,984       382,644



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   18

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    298,373        285,351       304,779       304,779       307,003

  Overtime Pay                                          2,981            548         3,008         3,008         3,008

  Vacation Pay                                         31,736         23,079        32,418        32,418        32,655

  Jury Duty                                               618            246           631           631           636

  Sick Pay                                              8,425         10,209         8,605         8,605         8,668

  Holiday Pay                                          23,965         14,002        24,481        24,481        24,659

   TOTAL Salaries                                     366,098        333,435       373,922       373,922       376,629

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            51,940         47,697        56,732        56,732        57,146

  Social Security Expense                              22,698         19,261        23,183        23,183        23,351

  Medicare Expense                                      5,308          4,901         5,422         5,422         5,461

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,663          1,297         1,613         1,613         1,613

  Insurance - Group Health                             62,590         50,766        72,039        72,039        72,039

  Insurance - Group Dental                              4,759          3,897         4,975         4,975         4,975

  Insurance - Group Vision                                606            494           614           614           614

   TOTAL Benefits                                     149,564        128,313       164,578       164,578       165,199

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    1,000          1,668         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Service & Supplies                                   25,350         27,127        25,000        25,000        25,000

  Utilities                                            48,000         40,522        45,500        45,500        45,500

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          3,000          2,356         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Computer Upgrades - Software                          3,500          2,800         6,000         6,000         6,000

  Leak Relief Expense                                   5,000          2,275         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Purchased Water                                       1,200            740         1,200         1,200         1,200

  Bad Debt Expense                                      7,500              0        12,000        12,000        12,000

  Outside Contracts                                    58,500         56,542        63,000        63,000        63,000

  Communications - Radio & Telep                       22,000         19,959        21,545        21,545        21,545

  Office Equipment Maintenance                          3,800          1,374         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Membership & Dues                                       800            725           850           850           850

  Printing & Binding                                    3,150          3,161         2,200         2,200         2,200

  Books & Publications                                    150              0           150           150           150

  Office Supplies                                      13,500          8,962        10,000        10,000        10,000

  Postage Expense                                       6,629          3,724         5,000         5,000         5,000

  Other Professional Fees                              30,000         20,043        30,000        30,000        30,000

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             250            220           240           240           240

  Small Tools                                              50              0             0             0             0

  Safety Program                                            0              0           500           500           500

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 500            358           500           500           500

  Travel Expense                                        4,500          3,873         2,525         2,525         2,525

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,750          2,097         2,600         2,600         2,600

  Interest / Penalty Expenses                          95,310         95,535        88,694        88,694        88,694

  Petty Cash Over / Short                                  25              0            10            10            10



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   19

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Property Tax Collection Fee                           4,800          4,786         5,020         5,020         5,020

  Property Tax Administration Fe                       20,020         20,616        21,000        21,000        21,000

  Insurance - Liability Premium                        60,000         54,995        60,000        60,000        60,000

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                       75,000         57,206        75,000        75,000        75,000

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            235             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          218            175           218           218           218

  Bank Charges                                         30,000         18,663        18,180        18,180        18,180

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          527,502        450,738       503,932       503,932       503,932

Other Operating Expenses

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0            100             0             0             0

  Administration Overhead                        (    940,025)             0  (    823,489) (    823,489) (    824,851)

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                (    940,025)           100  (    823,489) (    823,489) (    824,851)

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION SERVICES                        103,139        912,586       218,943       218,943       220,909



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   20

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WAREHOUSE

=========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                      6,766              0         7,161         7,161         7,161

  Vacation Pay                                            720              0           762           762           762

  Jury Duty                                                14              0            15            15            15

  Sick Pay                                                191              0           202           202           202

  Holiday Pay                                             543              0           575           575           575

   TOTAL Salaries                                       8,234              0         8,715         8,715         8,715

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                             1,178              0         1,333         1,333         1,333

  Social Security Expense                                 511              0           540           540           540

  Medicare Expense                                        119              0           126           126           126

   TOTAL Benefits                                       1,808              0         1,999         1,999         1,999

Services & Supplies

  Service & Supplies                                    6,820          2,780         6,820         6,820         6,820

  Utilities                                             2,000          1,583         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Outside Contracts                                         0            630             0             0             0

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            200              0             0             0             0

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          600              0           600           600           600

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                            9,620          4,993         9,420         9,420         9,420

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WAREHOUSE                                       19,662          4,993        20,134        20,134        20,134



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   21

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

GARAGE

======

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     14,210              0        15,037        15,037        15,037

  Vacation Pay                                          1,511              0         1,600         1,600         1,600

  Jury Duty                                                29              0            31            31            31

  Sick Pay                                                401              0           425           425           425

  Holiday Pay                                           1,141              0         1,208         1,208         1,208

   TOTAL Salaries                                      17,292              0        18,301        18,301        18,301

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                             2,473              0         2,799         2,799         2,799

  Social Security Expense                               1,072              0         1,135         1,135         1,135

  Medicare Expense                                        251              0           265           265           265

   TOTAL Benefits                                       3,796              0         4,199         4,199         4,199

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                        0         11,113             0             0             0

  Service & Supplies                                   11,550          3,263        18,050        18,050        18,050

  Utilities                                             2,000          1,583         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Cost Applies - Service & Suppl                 (    226,600)  (    148,393) (     90,000) (     90,000) (     90,000)

  Vehicle Costs Direct                                135,000         78,977        75,000        75,000        75,000

  Outside Contracts                                    15,500         13,196        16,200        16,200        16,200

  Communications - Radio & Telep                            0            140             0             0             0

  Other Professional Services                               0              0         5,000         5,000         5,000

  Licenses & Permits                                    5,000          3,600         5,000         5,000         5,000

  Gain / Losses on Inventory GAS                            0             17             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                     (     57,550)  (     36,506)       31,250        31,250        31,250

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Outside Contracts                                    60,500              0             0             0        25,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      60,500              0             0             0        25,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL GARAGE                                          24,038   (     36,506)       53,750        53,750        78,750



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   22

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ENGINEERING

===========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    219,787        178,816       280,320       280,320       282,836

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                               0          2,046             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         23,378         20,696        29,817        29,817        30,084

  Jury Duty                                               454            256           581           581           585

  Sick Pay                                              6,203          5,807         7,914         7,914         7,985

  Holiday Pay                                          17,656         12,816        22,516        22,516        22,720

   TOTAL Salaries                                     267,478        220,438       341,148       341,148       344,210

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            38,258         31,568        50,398        50,398        52,647

  Social Security Expense                              16,584         12,315        20,429        20,429        21,341

  Medicare Expense                                      3,880          3,262         4,777         4,777         4,989

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,667          1,300         1,616         1,616         1,616

  Insurance - Group Health                             38,889         35,388        56,366        56,366        56,366

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,355          2,288         3,026         3,026         3,026

  Insurance - Group Vision                                485            395           492           492           492

  Cafeteria Plan                                            0              0           174           174           174

   TOTAL Benefits                                     102,118         86,516       137,278       137,278       140,651

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    3,000          1,548         3,783         3,783         2,000

  Service & Supplies                                    9,500         16,216        15,223         9,523         8,800

  Utilities                                               200              0             0             0             0

  Open Account                                              0              0           169           169             0

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                              0              0           500           500           500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                          1,000              0           500           500           500

  Outside Contracts                                    48,300         20,325        38,500        38,500        38,500

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            200              0           200           200           200

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        1,400          1,202         1,400         1,400         1,400

  Membership & Dues                                     2,500          1,932         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Books & Publications                                    600            563           600           600           600

  Office Supplies                                         900              4           900           300           300

  Postage Expense                                          75             68           100           100           100

  Licenses & Permits                                    8,250          5,282         8,300         8,300         8,300

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             325              0           325           325           325

  Private Vehicle Mileage                               1,800          1,579         2,275         2,275         2,275

  Travel Expense                                        3,000          1,825         2,300         1,300         1,300

  Education & Training Seminars                         1,700            250         2,900         2,900         2,900

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             78             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          174            140             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           82,924         51,012        80,975        73,675        71,000



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   23

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Salaries - Work Orders

  Regular Salaries                                     56,158         83,522             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                          5,973              0             0             0             0

  Jury Duty                                               116              0             0             0             0

  Sick Pay                                              1,587              0             0             0             0

  Holiday Pay                                           4,510              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Salaries - Work Orders                        68,344         83,522             0             0             0

Benefits - Work Orders

  PERS - Retirement Expense                             9,775         11,861             0             0             0

  Social Security Expense                               4,235          4,031             0             0             0

  Medicar Expense                                         990          1,213             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits - Work Orders                        15,000         17,105             0             0             0

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                       0         94,264        15,000        15,000        15,000

  Outside Contracts                                 1,703,000        857,751     1,675,000     1,290,000     1,360,000

  Licenses & Permits                                        0              0         2,500         2,500         2,500

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                   1,703,000        952,015     1,692,500     1,307,500     1,377,500

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ENGINEERING                                  2,238,864      1,410,607     2,251,901     1,859,601     1,933,361



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   24

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WATER QUALITY - LAB

===================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    113,186        109,789       116,263       116,263       116,263

  Overtime Pay                                          4,404          1,161         4,506         4,506         4,506

  Vacation Pay                                         12,038          9,422        12,368        12,368        12,368

  Jury Duty                                               236              0           241           241           241

  Sick Pay                                              3,196          3,361         3,284         3,284         3,284

  Holiday Pay                                           9,091          5,352         9,339         9,339         9,339

   TOTAL Salaries                                     142,151        129,085       146,001       146,001       146,001

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            19,705         18,332        21,643        21,643        21,643

  Social Security Expense                               8,813          8,121         9,052         9,052         9,052

  Medicare Expense                                      2,060          1,899         2,117         2,117         2,117

  Insurance - Group Life                                  883            688           856           856           856

  Insurance - Group Health                             22,988         19,375        25,725        25,725        25,725

  Insurance - Group Dental                              1,718          1,407         1,796         1,796         1,796

  Insurance - Group Vision                                242            198           246           246           246

   TOTAL Benefits                                      56,409         50,020        61,435        61,435        61,435

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    4,000          4,656         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Service & Supplies                                   15,875         17,372        16,883        14,884        14,884

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                              0              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Outside Contracts                                    34,944         32,180        19,177        19,237        19,237

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            100             87           160           160           160

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          600            331           600           600           600

  Membership & Dues                                       135            110           135           135           135

  Printing & Binding                                    3,084              0         3,084         3,084         3,084

  Books & Publications                                    250            260           250           250           250

  Postage Expense                                       1,240            122         1,320         1,320         1,320

  Licenses & Permits                                   17,240         18,456        17,193        17,193        17,193

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             100             77           100           100           100

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 600            120           600           600           600

  Travel Expense                                        1,800              0         1,800         1,800         1,800

  Education & Training Seminars                         1,800            646         1,800         1,800         1,800

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             78             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           87             70            87            87            87

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           81,855         74,565        68,189        66,250        66,250

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   25

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Outside Contracts                                         0              0       100,000       100,000       100,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                           0              0       100,000       100,000       100,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER QUALITY - LAB                            280,415        253,670       375,625       373,686       373,686



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   26

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL

=====================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    318,476        278,414       305,536       305,536       306,308

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                           6,950              0             0             0             0

  Overtime Pay                                          2,760          6,586         3,831         3,831         3,831

  Standby Pay                                           3,037          1,640         1,991         1,991         1,991

  Vacation Pay                                         33,874         21,515        32,499        32,499        32,580

  Jury Duty                                               660            181           632           632           634

  Sick Pay                                              8,990         11,611         8,627         8,627         8,648

  Holiday Pay                                          25,580         13,630        24,542        24,542        24,604

   TOTAL Salaries                                     400,327        333,577       377,658       377,658       378,596

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            55,874         46,707        57,177        57,177        57,322

  Social Security Expense                              24,820         20,371        23,415        23,415        23,474

  Medicare Expense                                      5,804          4,897         5,476         5,476         5,490

  Insurance - Group Life                                2,092          1,233         1,628         1,628         1,628

  Insurance - Group Health                             72,635         43,795        70,196        70,196        70,196

  Insurance - Group Dental                              3,912          2,589         3,840         3,840         3,840

  Insurance - Group Vision                                606            356           492           492           492

   TOTAL Benefits                                     165,743        119,948       162,224       162,224       162,442

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   21,300         11,790        10,000        10,000        10,000

  Service & Supplies                                   53,000         52,003        73,470        73,470        73,470

  Utilities                                            29,400         12,029        26,700        26,700        26,700

  Power Purchased for Pumping                       1,293,600        762,994     1,250,000     1,250,000     1,250,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,500          4,106             0             0             0

  Computer Upgrades - Software                              0              0         5,950         5,950         5,950

  Outside Contracts                                   122,040         66,294        98,850       104,410       104,410

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          4,500          2,463         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        4,380          3,577         5,460         5,460         5,460

  Postage Expense                                           0             35             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                      165            140         4,840         4,840         4,840

  Advertising & Legal Notices                               0            750             0             0             0

  Small Tools                                           1,000          1,317         1,800         1,800         1,800

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                   0             47           200           200           200

  Travel Expense                                          900          1,282         1,425         1,425         1,425

  Education & Training Seminars                        17,500          2,474         6,540         7,540         7,540

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0            127             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          218            123           174           174           174

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                        1,550,503        921,550     1,489,409     1,495,969     1,495,969

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   27

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                  18,000         39,916        41,550        36,500        36,500

  Outside Contracts                                   675,230        302,511       473,000       743,000       743,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     693,230        342,427       514,550       779,500       779,500

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL                        2,809,803      1,717,501     2,543,841     2,815,351     2,816,507



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   28

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

DIST MAINT - PIPELINE

=====================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    198,411        219,883       207,557       207,557       207,557

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                               0   (        125)            0             0             0

  Overtime Pay                                            531         36,947           531           531           531

  Standby Pay                                          15,930         14,862        15,930        15,930        15,930

  Vacation Pay                                         21,105         15,738        22,076        22,076        22,076

  Jury Duty                                               411              0           429           429           429

  Sick Pay                                              5,602          5,228         5,861         5,861         5,861

  Holiday Pay                                          15,937         10,561        16,672        16,672        16,672

   TOTAL Salaries                                     257,927        303,095       269,056       269,056       269,056

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            34,539         35,936        38,634        38,634        38,634

  Social Security Expense                              15,992         18,826        16,681        16,681        16,681

  Medicare Expense                                      3,739          4,443         3,901         3,901         3,901

  Insurance - Group Life                                  844            658           819           819           819

  Insurance - Group Health                             64,919         52,729        76,402        76,402        76,402

  Insurance - Group Dental                              4,364          3,924         4,970         4,970         4,970

  Insurance - Group Vision                                485            395           492           492           492

   TOTAL Benefits                                     124,882        116,911       141,899       141,899       141,899

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   67,440         33,311        70,940        70,940        70,940

  Service & Supplies                                  118,130         38,655       136,100       136,100       136,100

  Utilities                                             2,400          3,494         2,400         2,400         2,400

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,500          2,177           200           200           200

  Outside Contracts                                   137,400         78,987       147,300       147,300       147,300

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          2,250            935         2,900         2,900         2,900

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          660          2,553         3,260         3,260         3,260

  Books & Publications                                  1,200            264           250           250           250

  Office Supplies                                           0             51             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                    1,300            231         1,300         1,300         1,300

  Small Tools                                          19,900          8,662        15,500        15,500        15,500

  Travel Expense                                        1,550            771           550           550           550

  Education & Training Seminars                        16,400          1,371         9,500         9,500         9,500

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            156             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          174            140           174           174           174

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          371,304        171,759       390,374       390,374       390,374

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   29

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                 105,100         26,833        74,000        74,000        74,000

  Outside Contracts                                    71,500              0        80,500        80,500        80,500

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     176,600         26,833       154,500       154,500       154,500

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DIST MAINT - PIPELINE                          930,713        618,597       955,829       955,829       955,829



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   30

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WATER TREATMENT

===============

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    532,368        509,672       552,661       544,574       545,970

  Overtime Pay                                          8,042         33,671        20,328        20,464        20,464

  Shift Pay                                                 0          1,178             0             0             0

  Standby Pay                                          10,337         14,123             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         56,625         33,254        58,783        57,924        58,073

  Jury Duty                                             1,101            670         1,144         1,127         1,130

  Sick Pay                                             15,032         11,183        15,604        15,376        15,415

  Holiday Pay                                          42,760         24,441        44,390        43,741        43,853

   TOTAL Salaries                                     666,265        628,193       692,910       683,206       684,905

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            92,673         83,058       102,872       101,367       101,626

  Social Security Expense                              41,309         38,487        42,960        42,359        42,464

  Medicare Expense                                      9,661          9,242        10,047         9,907         9,931

  Insurance - Group Life                                3,031          2,257         2,940         2,940         2,940

  Insurance - Group Health                            126,443         96,019       146,660       146,660       146,660

  Insurance - Group Dental                              8,820          6,957         9,222         9,222         9,222

  Insurance - Group Vision                              1,090            849         1,106         1,106         1,106

  Insurance - Unemployment                                392              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                     283,419        236,869       315,807       313,561       313,949

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   31,360         26,319        30,000        30,000        30,000

  Service & Supplies                                  134,185         91,896       109,450       109,450       109,450

  Utilities                                           162,685         96,548       163,000       163,000       163,000

  Chlorine                                             83,000         47,491        83,500        83,500        83,500

  Polymer                                              20,000         12,434        21,000        21,000        21,000

  Ferric                                               16,000          6,727        16,700        16,700        16,700

  Ammonia                                              23,000         19,619        25,000        25,000        25,000

  Caustics                                            110,000         62,089       110,000       110,000       110,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,115          2,515         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Outside Contracts                                    47,600         30,557       107,600       107,600       107,600

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          6,550          1,913         3,350         3,350         3,350

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        2,450          5,937         2,450         2,450         2,450

  Membership & Dues                                       500            200           500           500           500

  Office Supplies                                         100             11           100           100           100

  Other Professional Fees                                   0              0        20,000             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                    2,110          1,360         1,725         1,725         1,725

  Advertising & Legal Notices                               0            200             0             0             0

  Small Tools                                           6,530          5,343         1,950         1,950         1,950

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                   0            304           200           200           200

  Travel Expense                                        1,825            724           816           816           816

  Education & Training Seminars                         6,840          2,159         5,250         5,250         5,250

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            276             0             0             0



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   31

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                            0            312           392           392           392

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          656,850        414,934       704,483       684,483       684,483

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                  36,250         34,251       140,000       140,000       140,000

  Outside Contracts                                   350,000        307,784       330,000       330,000       330,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     386,250        342,034       470,000       470,000       470,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT                              1,992,784      1,622,030     2,183,200     2,151,250     2,153,337



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   32

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE

========================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    104,504         85,233        98,114        98,114        98,114

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          52,125         30,611        62,700        62,700        62,700

  Overtime Pay                                          2,661            189         3,256         3,256         3,256

  Vacation Pay                                         11,116              0        10,436        10,436        10,436

  Jury Duty                                               216              0           203           203           203

  Sick Pay                                              2,950              0         2,770         2,770         2,770

  Holiday Pay                                           8,394              0         7,881         7,881         7,881

   TOTAL Salaries                                     181,966        116,033       185,360       185,360       185,360

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            18,192         11,823        18,263        18,263        18,263

  Social Security Expense                              11,282          7,197        11,492        11,492        11,492

  Medicare Expense                                      2,638          1,683         2,688         2,688         2,688

  Insurance - Group Life                                  264            206           256           256           256

  Insurance - Group Health                              6,158          5,188         6,885         6,885         6,885

  Insurance - Group Dental                                394            323           412           412           412

  Insurance - Group Vision                                121             99           123           123           123

   TOTAL Benefits                                      39,049         26,519        40,119        40,119        40,119

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    7,900         12,015        10,000        10,000        10,000

  Service & Supplies                                   37,350         23,626        39,300        39,300        39,300

  Utilities                                             2,500            944         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          1,000            941             0             0             0

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            250              0             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    34,000              0        40,000        40,000        40,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          2,000            459         2,000         1,500         1,500

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        1,500          1,091         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Membership & Dues                                       100              0           100           100           100

  Licenses & Permits                                    1,350            100         2,000           200           200

  Small Tools                                           5,000          4,980         4,500         1,000         1,000

  Safety Program                                        2,000            185             0         1,500         1,500

  Travel Expense                                            0             44             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                         1,000             40             0         1,000         1,000

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             78             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           44             35            44            44            44

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           95,994         44,538       100,944        97,644        97,644

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   33

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                 100,000         28,530             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                   185,000        126,569       118,000        28,000        28,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     285,000        155,099       118,000        28,000        28,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE                       602,009        342,189       444,423       351,123       351,123



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   34

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    359,665        290,118       353,318       353,318       355,188

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                         201,227        161,532       210,676       210,676       210,676

  Overtime Pay                                          3,833          7,525         3,127         3,127         3,127

  Shift Pay                                                 0          1,024             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         38,256         31,251        37,580        37,580        37,778

  Jury Duty                                               745            240           731           731           735

  Sick Pay                                             10,155         51,514         9,975         9,975        10,028

  Holiday Pay                                          28,889         18,382        28,378        28,378        28,528

   TOTAL Salaries                                     642,770        561,587       643,785       643,785       646,060

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            62,609         56,205        65,766        65,766        66,114

  Social Security Expense                              39,852         35,175        39,914        39,914        40,055

  Medicare Expense                                      9,320          8,255         9,335         9,335         9,368

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,617          1,884         2,343         2,343         2,343

  Insurance - Group Health                             36,887         45,403        60,504        60,504        60,504

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,367          3,021         3,855         3,855         3,855

  Insurance - Group Vision                                727            692           860           860           860

  Insurance - Unemployment                             50,000          1,687             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                     203,379        152,321       182,577       182,577       183,099

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   24,000         32,408        22,000        22,000        22,000

  Service & Supplies                                   30,300         25,800        41,850        41,850        41,850

  Utilities                                           119,700         82,882        95,000        95,000        95,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,500          2,625         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                              0            595           400           400           400

  Bad Debt Expense                                          0            951             0             0             0

  Fish Purchase                                        60,000         59,138        30,000        30,000        30,000

  Outside Contracts                                    32,400         33,542        39,000        33,400        33,400

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          7,500          2,097         5,500         5,500         5,500

  Communications - Radio & Telep                       23,000         13,886        21,000        21,000        21,000

  Office Equipment Maintenance                          1,700              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Membership & Dues                                     2,000            815         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Printing & Binding                                        0             52             0             0             0

  Books & Publications                                    200              0             0             0             0

  Office Supplies                                       5,200          3,696         5,000         3,000         3,000

  Other Professional Fees                               6,000            798         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Licenses & Permits                                    2,550          3,524         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Advertising & Legal Notices                           1,000            562         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Safety Program                                        2,000            156         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 750            203           750           750           750

  Travel Expense                                        4,000          1,051             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,000             86         5,500         5,500         5,500



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   35

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Credit Card Fees                                      8,100          6,237        13,950        13,950        13,950

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            168             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          261            245           305           305           305

  Bank Charges                                              0            140             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          336,161        271,655       293,755       286,155       286,155

Other Operating Expenses

  Amoritization Expense                                     0              0       356,692             0             0

  Administration Overhead                             461,294              0        45,812       402,504       403,866

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                     461,294              0       402,504       402,504       403,866

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                  37,000         32,799             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      37,000         32,799             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                      1,680,604      1,018,362     1,522,621     1,515,021     1,519,180



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   36

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - MAINTENANCE

========================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    116,958        123,633       119,056       119,056       119,056

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                         164,605        131,666       176,350       176,350       176,350

  Overtime Pay                                          2,678          8,905         2,157         2,157         2,157

  Vacation Pay                                         12,440          8,809        12,663        12,663        12,663

  Jury Duty                                               242            135           246           246           246

  Sick Pay                                              3,302          5,399         3,361         3,361         3,361

  Holiday Pay                                           9,394          9,746         9,563         9,563         9,563

   TOTAL Salaries                                     309,619        288,292       323,396       323,396       323,396

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            20,360         21,487        22,161        22,161        22,161

  Social Security Expense                              19,196         18,207        20,051        20,051        20,051

  Medicare Expense                                      4,489          4,258         4,689         4,689         4,689

  Insurance - Group Life                                  888            447           555           555           555

  Insurance - Group Health                             43,673         23,388        32,610        32,610        32,610

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,895          1,729         2,207         2,207         2,207

  Insurance - Group Vision                                485            296           369           369           369

  Insurance - Unemployment                                  0          4,614             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                      91,986         74,426        82,642        82,642        82,642

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   60,000         76,846        60,000        66,300        66,300

  Service & Supplies                                   76,300         76,514        96,800        64,800        64,800

  Utilities                                             2,500          3,306         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,000          2,155           500           500           500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            500              0             0             0             0

  Purchased Water                                      70,000         60,648        64,000        64,000        64,000

  Outside Contracts                                   124,000         69,244       135,500       135,500       135,500

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          5,000          3,741         4,500         4,500         4,500

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          300          1,978           300           300           300

  Membership & Dues                                       200              0             0             0             0

  Books & Publications                                    100              0           100           100           100

  Licenses & Permits                                    2,200            471         2,400         2,400         2,400

  Small Tools                                           5,000          4,551         8,500         2,215         2,215

  Travel Expense                                            0            244             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                           300            370           400           400           400

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0         13,983             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          174            105           131           131           131

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          348,574        314,157       375,631       343,646       343,646

Other Operating Expenses

  Administration Overhead                             218,969              0       197,764       197,764       197,764

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                     218,969              0       197,764       197,764       197,764



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   37

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                 128,500          1,665       134,000       134,000       134,000

  Outside Contracts                                    60,000         73,376             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     188,500         75,041       134,000       134,000       134,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - MAINTENANCE                     1,157,648        751,917     1,113,433     1,081,448     1,081,448



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   38

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - PUBLIC REL

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     10,881          7,186         6,514         6,514         6,514

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          78,675         62,308        70,400        70,400        70,400

  Vacation Pay                                          1,157              0           693           693           693

  Jury Duty                                                23              0            13            13            13

  Sick Pay                                                307              0           184           184           184

  Holiday Pay                                             874              0           523           523           523

   TOTAL Salaries                                      91,917         69,494        78,327        78,327        78,327

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                             1,894          1,017         1,212         1,212         1,212

  Social Security Expense                               5,699          4,309         4,856         4,856         4,856

  Medicare Expense                                      1,333          1,008         1,136         1,136         1,136

   TOTAL Benefits                                       8,926          6,333         7,204         7,204         7,204

Services & Supplies

  Service & Supplies                                   16,800         19,776         5,000         5,000         5,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          4,500            957             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                     2,500          3,250         9,000         9,000         9,000

  Communications - Radio & Telep                            0            225             0             0             0

  Printing & Binding                                   23,500         11,621        24,000        24,000        24,000

  Office Supplies                                       2,500            833         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Postage Expense                                           0          1,252             0             0             0

  Advertising & Legal Notices                               0            338             0             0             0

  Public Information Program                            2,800          2,978         5,850         5,850         5,850

  Travel Expense                                        4,250          2,048         3,800         3,800         3,800

  Credit Card Fees                                     30,000         32,753        40,000        40,000        40,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           86,850         76,030        90,150        90,150        90,150

Other Operating Expenses

  Administration Overhead                              54,960              0        41,645        41,645        41,645

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                      54,960              0        41,645        41,645        41,645

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                   6,000              0             0             0             0

  Computer Upgrades - Software                         25,000         14,999             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      31,000         14,999             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - PUBLIC REL                        273,653        166,856       217,326       217,326       217,326



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   39

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - WATER PARK

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     73,363         31,366        38,975        38,975        38,975

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                         246,421        170,174       291,291       291,291       291,291

  Overtime Pay                                          1,516            958           959           959           959

  Vacation Pay                                          7,803              0         4,146         4,146         4,146

  Jury Duty                                               151              0            81            81            81

  Sick Pay                                              2,071              0         1,100         1,100         1,100

  Holiday Pay                                           5,892              0         3,131         3,131         3,131

   TOTAL Salaries                                     337,217        202,499       339,683       339,683       339,683

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            12,770          4,526         7,255         7,255         7,255

  Social Security Expense                              20,907         12,961        21,060        21,060        21,060

  Medicare Expense                                      4,889          3,031         4,925         4,925         4,925

  Insurance - Unemployment                                  0             12             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                      38,566         20,530        33,240        33,240        33,240

Services & Supplies

  Service & Supplies                                   43,850         25,621        34,200        34,200        34,200

  Utilities                                            35,000         31,944        36,000        36,000        36,000

  Chlorine                                             24,000         19,439        24,000        24,000        24,000

  Chemicals - Water Playground                          1,000          1,541         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,000            331           500           500           500

  Outside Contracts                                    14,000         13,537         9,000         9,000         9,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          8,000          6,942         7,000         7,000         7,000

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        2,000          2,332         4,600         4,600         4,600

  Office Equipment Maintenance                          1,500              0           750           750           750

  Membership & Dues                                       950            365           600           600           600

  Printing & Binding                                    5,200             24         2,200         2,200         2,200

  Books & Publications                                    250              0           250           250           250

  Office Supplies                                       2,000            765         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Licenses & Permits                                        0              0           500           500           500

  Advertising & Legal Notices                           7,000            655         5,000         5,000         5,000

  Small Tools                                           4,000          3,249         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Public Information Program                              500              0             0             0             0

  Safety Program                                        6,000          3,623         4,300         4,300         4,300

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 700            155           350           350           350

  Travel Expense                                        2,100          1,590         1,600         1,600         1,600

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,000            618           650           650           650

  Credit Card Fees                                      7,300          5,893         7,300         7,300         7,300

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0            411             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          170,350        119,034       146,300       146,300       146,300



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   40

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses

  Administration Overhead                             204,802              0       181,576       181,576       181,576

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                     204,802              0       181,576       181,576       181,576

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                  75,000         42,045             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                         0              0        75,000        75,000        75,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      75,000         42,045        75,000        75,000        75,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                        825,935        384,107       775,799       775,799       775,799

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                 15,870,056     11,202,894    15,489,348    15,336,451    15,454,889

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                (  1,128,652)       801,790  (  1,477,785) (  1,324,888) (  1,443,326)



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    1

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

                                                  ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    2

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

PROPERTY TAX

  Services & Supplies                                       0          4,718             0             0             0

      TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                    0          4,718             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          4,718             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      4,718)            0             0             0



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    3

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    4

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

PROPERTY TAX

============

Services & Supplies

  Property Tax Collection Fee                               0          4,175             0             0             0

  Property Tax Administration Fe                            0            543             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                                0          4,718             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                         0          4,718             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          4,718             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      4,718)            0             0             0



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    1

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

                                                  ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    2

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

PROPERTY TAX

  Services & Supplies                                       0          4,417             0             0             0

      TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                    0          4,417             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          4,417             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      4,417)            0             0             0



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    3

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



 

 6-07-2011 09:54 AM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    4

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2011/2012

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2010-2011     T0:30Jun11     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

PROPERTY TAX

============

Services & Supplies

  Interest / Penalty Expenses                               0          4,338             0             0             0

  Property Tax Collection Fee                               0             42             0             0             0

  Property Tax Administration Fe                            0             38             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                                0          4,417             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                         0          4,417             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          4,417             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      4,417)            0             0             0



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FINAL GENERAL FUND BUDGET. 
DEBT SERVICE FUND AND MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

FUND BUDGETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012. 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, District staff has prepared a proposed budget for the 2011-2012 
fiscal year;  

 
WHEREAS, the General Manager has made modifications to the proposal made 

by the various section supervisors; and 
 

WHEREAS, the resultant budget has been reviewed by the Finance Committee; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, three public meetings have been held to go over the budget with the 

public; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Casitas 
Municipal Water District, that the proposed budget per Board recommendations for the 
2011-12 fiscal year is here by approved for the General Fund Budget broken down as 
follows, Revenue $14,011,563., USBR/SWP Bonded Indebtedness Fund Budget Revenue 
broken down as follows, USBR $785,394., SWP $783,964., totaling $1,569,358., Mira 
Monte Water Assessment District Fund Revenue of $19,349., and 1% secured levy tax 
apportionment of $1,858,318. Expenses $12,311,386., Capital $3,143,500. 
 
Adopted this 22nd day of June, 2011. 
        

________________________ 
       President, Casitas 
       Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
FOR THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 7910 of the Government Code requires each local jurisdiction to 
establish its appropriations limit by resolution for the following fiscal year pursuant to Article 
XIII B of the California constitution at a regularly scheduled meeting or noticed special meeting; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, 15 days prior to such meeting, documentation used in the determination of 
the appropriations limit has been made available to the public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the determination of the appropriations limit is a legislative act; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Casitas 
Municipal Water District hereby establishes the appropriations limit of $9,873,982 for Casitas 
Municipal Water District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, pursuant to Article XIII B of 
the California Constitution. 
 
 ADOPTED this 22nd  day of June, 2011 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       President, Casitas 
       Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION FIXING A TAX RATE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012 AND AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD TO EXECUTE A 
CERIFICATE REQUESTING THE VENTURA COUNTY 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO LEVY SUCH TAX 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 on June 6, 1978; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Proposition 13 limits tax rates to voter-approved indebtedness; and 
 

WHEREAS, the indebtedness to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation was voter-approved on 
November 29, 1955, and the annual pay for fiscal years 2011-2012 is in the amount of $785,394 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the annual payment to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation is the same due to 
negotiations that have taken place in the past; and 
 

WHEREAS, the indebtedness for the State Water Project was approved by the voters of 
Ventura county along with all the voters of the State of California on November 8, 1960, and 
December 19, 1933 and the payments for fiscal year 2011-2012 totals $783,964.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ventura county collection and administrative fees are estimated to be 
$5,143.; and are voter-approved, authorized expenditures; and  
 

WHEREAS,  on the basis of valuation figures furnished by the Ventura County Auditor, 
the amount to be raised by tax levy on unsecured personal property is $59,896.; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the basis of information furnished by the Ventura County Auditor, the 
amount to be raised by State subventions for voter-approved indebtedness amounts to $11,626.; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that $40,000 will be received from the County in prior year 
tax delinquencies; and  
 

WHEREAS, taking account of the amount to be raised by tax levy on unsecured personal 
property, the amount to be raised by state subventions, and the amount to be received in prior 
delinquencies, the amount to be raised by taxation on secured property for voter-approved 
indebtedness of $1,500,696; and 
 



WHEREAS, on the basis of figures furnished by the Ventura county Auditor, the net 
assessed/market valuation of local secured property, exclusive of the utility roll, is 
$8,299,195,770.; and the net assessed/market valuation of secured property on the utility roll is 
estimated at $332,731; and the net assessed/market valuation of all secured property in Casitas is 
estimated at $8,230,312,970.; and 
 

WHEREAS, with a 2.500 percent allowance for delinquency on net local secured 
property of $8,441,346,636.; the current year delinquencies are estimated at $211,033,666; and 
 

WHEREAS, the reduction for redevelopment assessments is 0.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the addition for the Homeowners Property Tax Relief exemption is 
$68,882,800.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the tax rate required to raise the necessary funds of $0.016878 per hundred 
dollars of assessed/market valuation on all property within Casitas’ boundaries; 
 

WHEREAS, the tax rate in the previous year was $0.018710 per hundred dollars of 
assessed/market valuation; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1. The tax rate of Casitas Municipal Water District on all property within Casitas’ 
boundaries for fiscal year 2011-2012 is hereby fixed at $0.016878 per hundred dollars 
of assessed/market valuation for voter-approved indebtedness. 

 
2. The president of the Board of Directors is hereby authorized and directed to execute a 

certificate in the form attached hereto. 
 

Adopted this 22nd day of June, 2011. 
 
 
 
                                                                                    ___________________________ 
       President, Casitas 
       Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 



 
CERTIFICATE 

 
 
 

The Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water District hereby certifies to the 
Board of Supervisors and Auditor of the County of Ventura as follows: 
 
1. Casitas has voter-approved indebtedness for fiscal year 2011-12 for the following: 

 
a. $785,394 to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation for indebtedness which was 

voter-approved on November 29, 1955. 
 
b. $783,964. for the State Water Project indebtedness which was approved by 

the voters of the State of California on November 8, 1960 and December 19, 
1933. 

 
2. It is hereby directed that at the time and in the manner required by law for the levying 

of taxes for County purposes for fiscal year 2011-12, the Board of Supervisors of 
Ventura county shall levy, in addition to such other tax as may be levied by such 
Board, a tax on all property within Casitas’ boundaries at the rate of $0.016878 per 
hundred dollars of assessed/market valuation.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this certificate has been executed on behalf of and at the 
direction of the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water District by the President 
thereof this 22nd day of June, 2011. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       President, Casitas 
       Municipal Water District 

 
 

 













   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

06/16/11
 

Weighed 
Average 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to Days to
Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XS4S40 09/16/11 $726,316 $706,447 3.625% 07/01/10 5.65% 90 5
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $742,826 3.125% 07/01/10 5.94% 897 53
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $739,179 2.875% 07/01/10 5.91% 1436 85
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWW470 03/09/12 $707,315 $704,613 1.125% 06/30/10 5.63% 263 15
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $807,683 $793,394 4.750% 07/19/10 6.34% 1591 101
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $756,434 4.125% 07/01/10 6.05% 821 50
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $742,882 3.000% 07/01/10 5.94% 1122 67
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACE70 09/21/12 $723,646 $716,086 2.125% 06/30/10 5.73% 455 26
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACF40 12/15/11 $706,398 $703,444 1.125% 06/30/10 5.63% 179 10
*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $745,311 3.000% 07/01/10 5.96% 1170 70
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,126,555 1.375% 07/06/10 9.01% 2549 230
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $716,191 1.500% 04/01/10 5.73% 915 52
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $728,658 2.125% 07/01/10 5.83% 1244 72
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $708,449 1.125% 06/30/10 5.67% 539 31
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,108,978 1.375% 07/01/10 8.87% 3089 274
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828ML10 12/31/11 $707,191 $703,283 1.000% 06/30/10 5.62% 195 11

Accrued Interest $58,062 $61,819

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,388,838 $12,504,549 85.38%

*CD CD - $0 $0 0.000% 0.00%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506 $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $0 $0 0.46% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,142,005 $2,142,005 0.89% Estimated 14.62%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $14,530,844 $14,646,554 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $14,530,844 $14,662,893

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $16,751,665 $16,751,665

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST $1,980,702 $1,980,702
CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $11,331 $11,331 0.470%
CASH IN PIMMA Money Market $500,206 $500,206

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $17,023,082 $17,138,793

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $16,928,794 $16,928,794

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit
*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 
** Local Agency Investment Fund 
*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.
**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 
and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 
investment policy.


	6-22-11 agenda.pdf
	6-08-11 min
	bill ist
	Rec Minutes 06 07 2011
	Fin Minutes 06 17 11
	Urban Water Management Plan
	UWMP Comments
	UWMP Comments 2
	UWMP Comments 3
	reso uwmp
	11-12 Budget Adoption Memo
	Revenue 2011-12
	Revenue

	Revenue - Expense Summary 2011-12
	Sheet1

	Budget Board Approved - 2011-2012
	Resolution Adopting Final General Fund Budget 2011-2012
	Resolution for Prop 4 - 2011-2012
	Resolution for Tax Rate State Water 2011-2012
	CERTIFICATE

	news
	Investment Report 6-16-2011
	A




